N.orfh West
Leicestershire

Diistrict Council

Scan the code above or visit www.nwleics.gov.uk/meetings
for a full copy of the agenda.

Meeting CABINET
Time/Day/Date 5.00 pm on Tuesday, 27 February 2024
Location Abbey Room, Stenson House, London Road, Coalville, LE67 3FN
Officer to contact Democratic Services (01530 454512)
AGENDA
ltem Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Under the Code of Conduct members are reminded that in declaring interests
you should make clear the nature of that interest and whether it is a disclosable
pecuniary interest, registerable interest or other interest.
3. PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION
4, MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2024 3-8

5. COMMUNITY LOTTERY SCHEME

The report of the Strategic Director of Communities 9-30
Presented by the Community Services Portfolio Holder

6. NWL LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN AND
STRATEGY

The report of the Strategic Director of Communities 31-212
Presented by the Community Services Portfolio Holder

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT

The report of the Chief Executive 213 - 226
Presented by the Infrastructure Portfolio Holder


http://www.nwleics.gov.uk/meetings

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTY LEASEHOLD DISPOSALS

The report of the Strategic Director of Place 227 - 230
Presented by the Housing, Property and Customer Services Portfolio Holder

Circulation:

Councillor R Blunt (Chair)
Councillor M B Wyatt (Deputy Chair)
Councillor T Gillard

Councillor K Merrie MBE

Councillor N J Rushton

Councillor A C Saffell

Councillor A C Woodman



Agenda Item 4.
29

MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Abbey Room, Stenson House, London Road,
Coalville, LE67 3FN on WEDNESDAY, 31 JANUARY 2024

Present: Councillor R Blunt (Chair)
Councillors M B Wyatt, T Gillard, K Merrie MBE, N J Rushton, A C Saffell and A C Woodman
In Attendance: Councillors D Everitt, J Legrys, P Moult and S Sheahan

Officers: Mrs A Thomas, Mr J Arnold, Mr A Barton, Miss E Warhurst, Mr P Stone and
Mr T Devonshire

77. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies received.
78. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no interests declared.
79. PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION
Mr Donovan asked the following question:
Is the Council aware of the wide-ranging services provided by Age UK Leicester Shire &

Rutland across NW Leicestershire and funded from external sources, including the
charity's reserves?

e A 4 day-a-week day centre based in Coalville serving 56 people at an
annual cost of £108,000. Serving the needs of people living with dementia,
mobility, and personal care needs, mental health and learning disabilities.

e A neighbourhood mental health cafe in Measham for people aged over 18
(2 days per week). Annual cost of £30,000.

e A Home Care Service supporting 54 older people - cleaning, meal
preparation and companionship.

e A Dementia Support Service. Between October-December 2023 195
people supported. Plus, a memory clinic once a month. 31 members with
26 people on the waiting list.

¢ An information/advice Service. Between January 2022 and December
2023, the charity supported 1,152 people - benefit claims, benefit checks
and general enquiries.

Benefits claimed for older people living across NW Leicestershire amounted to £249,107
during that period — money that would be spent in the local area.

The Corporate Portfolio Holder provided the following response:
Yes, the Council and Cabinet is aware of the work that Age UK conducts in the district. I'm

also aware that the Chief Executive recently met with Mr Donovan to listen to his concerns
in response to the budget proposals. The Council has also received written

3 Chairman’s initials




80.

81.

30

representations from both Mr Donovan and Mr Young, Assistant Director, Age UK,
Leicester Shire & Rutland.

The Council is aware of the reserves position of Age UK at both the local and national
level.

At today’s meeting, Cabinet will be considering the budget proposals to recommend to
Council next month. From recent discussions and correspondence referred to above, the
Council is aware that the funding provided supports around 40 clients in the district at a
cost of £22,000 per year.

The Council is aware of the range of services provided by Age UK Leicester Shire &
Rutland to support older people, their carers and families, many of which are highlighted
in the question from Mr Donovan. We understand that they are committed to providing
much-needed support to older people to help them remain independent in their own
homes.

It would be wrong of me to pre-empt that discussion and decision of Cabinet today, but we
are fully aware of the work and also the comments made by Age UK to our budget
consultation which will be taken into account in coming to our decision today.

As a supplementary question, Mr Donovan said that he had made a promise over thirty
years ago, to what was then Age Concern, that services within the district would be
maintained and developed, as an indication of the longstanding commitment which Age
UK Leicester Shire & Rutland had to the district. Were Members aware that the grant
provided by the Council served to leverage other investment from Age UK Leicester Shire
& Rutland into the district?

In response, the Corporate Portfolio Holder emphasised that he was aware of all the good
work which Age UK Leicester Shire & Rutland did, but advised that the Council was in a
position where tough decisions had to be made. However, he noted that this was still only
a proposal at this stage, and he suggested that Mr Donovan could write to him detailing
the grants which Age UK Leicester Shire & Rutland received from other District Councils
in Leicestershire, as well as Leicestershire County Council and Leicester City Council. He
would assess that information to ascertain the impact which the proposed cut would have,
and in light of this information the final proposal might be amended before it was
recommended to full Council on 22 February. Nevertheless, as of the moment, it would
remain the recommendation of the Cabinet to withdraw the grant.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on the 9 January 2024 were considered.
It was moved by Councillor T Gillard, seconded by Councillor T Saffell and
RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2024 be confirmed as an accurate record
of proceedings.

ROBUSTNESS OF BUDGET ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES
The Corporate Portfolio Holder presented the report.
It was moved by Councillor N Rushton, seconded by Councillor K Merrie, and

RESOLVED THAT:

4 Chairman’s initials




31

The S151 Officer’s advice, set out in section 7 of the appendix, be noted, as part of
proposing to Council the General Fund Budget Report 2024/25, Housing Revenue
Account Budget 2024/25 Report, and the Capital Strategy and Treasury Management
Strategy 2024/25.

Reason for Decision: to ensure the Council meets its statutory requirements when
considering its budget.

82. CAPITAL STRATEGY, TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS 2024/25

The Corporate Portfolio Holder presented the report.
It was moved by Councillor N Rushton, seconded by Councillor T Gillard, and
RESOLVED THAT:

1. The attached Council Report (Appendix A) be endorsed and recommended to
Council for approval at its meeting on 22 February 2024.

2. Authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the
Corporate Portfolio Holder to make amendments to the Council report prior to
consideration at Council on 22 February 2024.

Reason for Decision: to meet the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Government.

83. GENERAL FUND BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX 2024/25
The Corporate Portfolio Holder presented the report.
It was moved by Councillor N Rushton, seconded by Councillor T Saffell, and
RESOLVED THAT:
1. The attached Council Report (Appendix A) be endorsed and recommended to

Council for approval at its meeting on 22 February 2024 subject to the following
amendments:

e That the proposal to remove the grant of £1460 funding to Ashby Museum
be withdrawn. The full amount is to be paid in 2024, but the Council is
minded to reduce the grant in equal instalments over three years beginning
the financial year 2025/26.

e That the proposal to remove the freephone number, to make a saving of

£2500, be withdrawn.
2. The fees and charges as set out in Appendix 3 of the Council report be approved.
3. Authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the
Corporate Portfolio Holder to make amendments to the Council report prior to
consideration at Council on 22 February 2024.

Reason for Decision: to allow the Council to approve the 2024/25 budget.

84. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUDGET AND RENTS 2024/25

5 Chairman’s initials




85.

86.

87.

32
The Corporate Portfolio Holder presented the report.
It was moved by Councillor N Rushton, seconded by Councillor A Woodman, and
RESOLVED THAT:
1. The attached Council Report (Appendix A) be endorsed and recommended to
Council for approval at its meeting on 22 February 2024.
2. The fees and charges as set out in Appendix 3 of the Council report be approved.
3. Authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the
Corporate Portfolio Holder to make amendments to the Council report prior to
consideration at Council on 22 February 2024.

Reason for Decision: to allow the Council to approve the 2024/25 budget.

FORMER TENANT RENT ARREARS, CURRENT TENANT RENT ARREARS,
COUNCIL TAX, NON-DOMESTIC RATES AND SUNDRY DEBTS

The Corporate Portfolio Holder presented the report.
A Member asked what the triggers were for the Council to recover National Non-Domestic
Rates and over what time frame. The Corporate Portfolio Holder advised that he would
consult with the Section 151 Officer and the Revenue and Benefits Team, and formally
write to the Cabinet with the details.
It was moved by Councillor N Rushton, seconded by Councillor K Merrie, and
RESOLVED THAT:
The National Non-Domestic Rates write offs that are over £10,000 be approved.
Reason for Decision: to comply with proper accounting practices.
MINUTES OF THE COALVILLE SPECIAL EXPENSES WORKING PARTY
The Business and Regeneration Portfolio Holder presented the report.
It was moved by Councillor T Gillard, seconded by Councillor M Wyatt, and
RESOLVED THAT:

1. The minutes of the Coalville Special Expenses Working Party be noted.

2. The recommendations made by the Working Party at its meeting on 20 December

2023 be approved.

Reason for Decision: So that the decisions of the Coalville Special Expenses Working
Party can be considered.

HOUSING IMPROVEMENT BOARD AND SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH MOULD AND
DAMP RECOMMENDATIONS

The Housing, Property and Customer Services Portfolio Holder presented the report.

A Member asked about planned changes to the IT system. The Portfolio Holder referred
to the Strategic Director of Communities, who advised that tweaks had been identified as
being required for the existing system to better manage the process and to incorporate
best practice from other providers.

6 Chairman’s initials




33

A Member asked whether the current Housing software system had been created by the
organisation. The Strategic Director of Communities advised that it was one of three
industry standard systems, tweaked to the Council’s specifications.

The Chair noted that resolving issues in the Housing Service was something which was
both a key Alliance priority and something that there was strong cross-party consensus
over.

It was moved by Councillor A Woodman, seconded by Councillor K Merrie, and
RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Scrutiny Task and Finish Group be thanked for its work examining the issue of
Mould and Damp during the last quarter.

2. The response to that report as set out in paragraph 2.2 of this report be agreed.

3. The actions by the Portfolio Holder in conjunction with the Strategic Director of
Communities and the Head of Housing in addressing the improvement of the
Housing Service, as set out in paragraph 3.3. onwards in this report, be noted and
endorsed.

Reason for Decision: to comply with the constitution regarding a Task and Finish Report,
and to update Cabinet on wider work to improve the Housing Service.

88. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It was moved by Councillor R Blunt, seconded by Councillor T Gillard, and
RESOLVED THAT:
In pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that the business to be
transacted involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in maintaining this
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
Reason for decision: To enable the consideration of exempt information.

89. APPOINTMENT OF HOUSING CONTRACTORS
The Housing, Property and Customer Services Portfolio Holder presented the report.
Members discussed the contents of the report.
It was moved by Councillor A Woodman, seconded by Councillor N Rushton, and
RESOLVED THAT:
The recommendations within the report be approved.
Reason for Decision: to comply with the Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm

The Chairman closed the meeting at 5.34 pm

7 Chairman’s initials




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5.

0’0‘0
)
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL ,Oo o
North West
CABINET — TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 Le | Ce Ste rS h | re

Title of Report COMMUNITY LOTTERY SCHEME

Presented by Councillor Michael Wyatt
Portfolio Holder for Community and Climate Change

PH Briefed | veg

Background Papers Minutes of the Community | Public Report: Yes
Scrutiny Committee, 8
February 2024. Key Decision: Yes
Financial Implications The Community Lottery Scheme will be financially self-

sustaining with the Council’s initial and on-going costs being
met by income from the Scheme. However, this is based on
the assumptions as highlighted in Section five of the report.
There are risks that income levels will not be realised, but
these are considered to be low. It is considered extremely low
risk that the scheme will not cover its initial set up costs and
may, therefore, not have a detrimental impact on the
Council’s budget.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications Legal Services has advised on the project. Due to the
bespoke nature of delivering a Community Lottery Scheme in
partnership with local authorities, there is only one
organisation that has been identified who can deliver this.
Consequently, delegated authority will need to be exercised
by the Head of Community Services to satisfy the
requirements of the Contract Procedure Rules and to enter
into an arrangement with this organisation. This would be a
twelve-month agreement with a further procurement process
taking place to identify a preferred delivery partner every
twelve months to ensure value for money for the Council.

The Council will also need to nominate two Lottery Licence
holders to deliver the Community Lottery Scheme.

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate It is proposed that the Community Focus Team Leader is the
Implications officer who takes responsibility for liaising with the preferred
delivery partner and ensuring the effective delivery of the
Community Lottery Scheme.

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes



https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/g2524/Printed%20minutes%2008th-Feb-2024%2018.30%20Community%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/g2524/Printed%20minutes%2008th-Feb-2024%2018.30%20Community%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/g2524/Printed%20minutes%2008th-Feb-2024%2018.30%20Community%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

Purpose of Report To seek agreement to the establishment of a local authority
lottery for North West Leicestershire.

Reason for Decision To offer financial security to voluntary and community groups
across NWL and to support further community work via the
grants scheme with the income generated from the
Community Lottery.

Recommendations THAT CABINET:

1) NOTES THE COMMENTS FROM COMMUNITY
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AS SET OUT IN PARAGRAPH
8.1 OF THE REPORT

2) AGREES THAT A NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE
COMMUNITY LOTTERY BE INTRODUCED IN 2024/25.

3) AGREES TO APPOINT GATHERWELL LTD AS THE
COMMUNITY LOTTERY OPERATOR FOR THE NORTH
WEST LEICESTERSHIRE COMMUNITY LOTTERY
SCHEME AND DELEGATES AUTHORITY TO THE
HEAD OF COMMUNITY SERVICE AND DIRECTOR OF
RESOURCES TO NEGOTIATE AND FINALISE ANY
ASSOCIATED AGREEMENTS.

4) AGREES THAT THE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES AND
HEAD OF FINANCE BE NOMINATED AS PERSONAL
LICENCE HOLDERS FOR THE PURPOSES OF
GAMBLING COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS

5) AGREES THAT THE INCOME GENERATED THROUGH
THE COMMUNITY LOTTERY SCHEME IS
REINVESTED BACK INTO THE COUNCIL’S
COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAMME.

BACKGROUND

The Community Lottery Scheme was developed with the aim of helping good causes
raise money within their local community. Since 2015, around 140 councils and
community and voluntary organisations have set up and run a Community Lottery
Scheme in their local community (see APPENDIX A for details of some of the local
authorities who currently run a lottery scheme). In Leicestershire this includes Melton,
Harborough, Blaby and Charnwood.

The Council is considering introducing a Community Lottery Scheme (CLS). The
principle of the scheme would be that NWL residents would have the opportunity to
purchase a £1 ticket on a weekly basis with a view to winning a national cash prize.
The £1 ticket fee would then be distributed between the following:

e A local ‘good cause’ which would be a voluntary or community group, or a
specific project or initiative organised by such a group.

e NWLDC.
The cash prize pot.

e The organisation that supports delivery of the CLS.

10




1.2

1.3

15

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

The benefits for the Council would be:

e Additional income generated for the Council budget that could be used to
support NWLDC community-based projects or initiatives.

e Additional income generated for the community and voluntary sector
organisations which may allow for the Council to reduce the funding support it
currently offers through its grant schemes.

The benefits for the voluntary and community organisations would be that the CLS:

e Empowers organisations to raise money for their projects and initiatives in a
different way as opposed to continually applying for grants.

e Gives the organisation control to proactively sell their organisation or good cause
to the local community.

o Keeps funds local to the district as the groups would need to serve residents of
North West Leicestershire.

e Offers a more sustainable form of funding for the organisation.

Whilst there are a number of organisations that can support the delivery of a CLS,
there is only one that has been identified that has extensive experience of doing so in
partnership with a local authority. Gatherwell Ltd is an External Lottery Manager,
registered with the Gambling Commission to run lotteries across the UK. To date they
have raised money for over 13,000 good causes and they deliver in partnership with all
local authorities listed in APPENDIX A along with examples of neighbouring
authorities’ good causes.

COMMUNITY LOTTERY SCHEME OVERVIEW

In order to deliver a CLS, the Council would commission an External Lottery Manager
(ELM) who would work in liaison with the Council’s nominated officer to deliver the
scheme. The ELM would support the Council with the following:

Ensuring all appropriate licences are obtained from the Gambling Commission.
Creating and managing a NWLDC CLS website.

Promoting the scheme to the voluntary and community sector.

Liaising with the voluntary and community sector to identify ‘Good Causes’.
Managing the relationship with the voluntary and community sector
organisations engaged.

e Administering ticket sales, payments, and prizes.

e Marketing and promoting the CLS.

In order to deliver a CLS, the Council would need to have two nominated
representatives named on the Council’s licence. From discussions with other
authorities, this would normally be the Head of Finance and the Council’s Section 151
Officer.

If approved, it would take 16-20 weeks to launch the CLS. This is to enable all the
bullet points as highlighted at 2.1 to be delivered.

As part of the promotion of the scheme, it would be proposed to have a launch day for
the CLS. If timing allows, this would potentially align with the 125 year celebration

11



2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

event at Coalville Park on 29-30 June 2024 to allow for maximum exposure of the
CLS.

Following the launch, there would be ongoing promotion of the scheme. Whilst this will
be co-ordinated by the ELM in liaison with officers, it will also incorporate the voluntary
and community organisations to allow them to effectively promote their good causes
and gain ticket sales. APPENDIX B sets out how the scheme will work.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

As highlighted at 1.5, there is currently only one organisation that has extensive
experience of delivering a CLS in partnership with local authorities and this is
Gatherwell Ltd.

Gatherwell Ltd has a proven track record of working with the councils to deliver low-
cost lotteries and offers the flexibility to provide a scheme tailored to North West
Leicestershire’s requirements.

Subject to approval to commence with the CLS, due to the value of having a 12-month
contract with Gatherwell Ltd, the Head of Community Services has the delegated
authority to allow an exemption from obtaining three quotes and to enter into an
agreement with Gatherwell Ltd to deliver the CLS as the Council’s preferred partner.

In order to ensure ongoing best value for the Council, officers would then review every
12 months to understand if there are any other providers of a CLS tailored to meet the
requirements of a local authority and to undertake a further procurement process in
line with the requirements of the Contract Procedure Rules to determine who would be
best placed to become the Council’s preferred CLS delivery partner for the following
12 months.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Gambling Act 2005 creates eight categories of a permitted lottery, one of which is
a Local Authority Lottery. Local Authority lotteries are promoted by the relevant council
and the net proceeds can be used for any purpose for which the authority has the
power to incur expenditure. A NWLDC CLS must be run under an operating licence
issued by the Gambling Commission and would need to comply with the specific
licence conditions and relevant codes of practice.

The appointed ELM of the CLS would manage the lottery on the Council’s behalf in
accordance with Section 257 of the Gambling Act. The ELM would also obtain the
necessary consent and operating licence from the Gambling Commission. However,
the Council would remain responsible for ensuring that the lottery operates lawfully.

To this end, the Council would have an obligation to have two officers who would hold

the Gambling Commission’s Lottery Licence. It is proposed that in NWLDC this would

be the Head of Finance/Deputy Section 151 Officer and Director of Resources/Section
151 Officer.

A CLS is classed as low risk by the Gambling Commission as they are a form of

‘incentivised giving’. However, there are still procedures in place to mitigate against the
risks of problem gambling:

12



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

o Maximum of 20 tickets per supporter.

¢ No instant reward or gratification when purchasing.

e Payment by direct debit and recurring payments (no cash).

¢ Unable to buy single tickets, or tickets for a draw on the same day.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

If the Council progresses with a CLS, the initial set up costs would be £7,025 for the
first year, and these would be split over 2023/24 and 2024/25 if it commenced in
June/July 2024. This cost would reimburse back from the first year of ticket sales into
the Council. A breakdown can be seen in the table below:

ltem Outgoing
Costs

Fees payable to Gatherwell Ltd £5,000
Annual Gambling Commission Fee £400
Gambling Commission initial set up license fee £220
Annual Lotteries Council membership £385
Lotteries Council membership initial set up fee £20
Launch of the Community Lottery in North West Leicestershire

(includes, workshops printing, posters, press releases, £1,000
adverts in community newsletter)

Total £7,025

There are also ongoing annual costs of £1,285 per annum which are set out in the
table below.

ltem Ongoing Costs
Gambling Commission fees £400
Lotteries Council membership £385
Marketing and Promotion £500
Total £1,285

Based on the success of the CLS in Charnwood and Blaby and considering the
associated promotion undertaken in each authority, it is anticipated that the Marketing
and Promotion budget allocated to the CLS in NWL should be adequate to generate
average sales of 1,000 tickets per week at £1.00 per ticket.

The proceeds of each £1 ticket sale are split as follows:
e £0.60 is allocated to local ‘Good Causes’ (60%)
e £0.18 is allocated to cash prizes (18.2%)
e £0.18 is allocated to Gatherwell Ltd (18.17%)
e £0.04 is the VAT element of the allocation to Gatherwell Ltd (3.63%).
As a direct comparison, 28% of ticket sales from the National Lottery go to good
causes, 27.5% from the Postcode Lottery, and 20% from the Health Lottery.

13



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

511

Of the 60% allocated to ‘Good Causes’, £0.40 of this is allocated to a specific
Voluntary or Community good cause with £0.20 being allocated to the Council to use
towards community initiatives.

At the point of purchase of the lottery ticket on the website, the resident will choose
which voluntary and community good cause they would like their purchase to
contribute towards. If no good cause is chosen, then the full 60% or £0.60 will be
allocated to the Council to use towards community initiatives.

Guidance from Gatherwell allows the Council to reclaim the VAT of £0.04 (3.63%) on
their service charges. This can be reinvested back into the wider CLS.

Based on an estimate of selling 1,000 tickets per week, the income to the Council to
contribute towards community initiatives will be £10,400 per annum. This is based
solely on the contribution to the Council of £0.20 per ticket and does not consider any
potential uplift from ticket purchases not nominating a ‘Good Cause’ or any VAT
reclaim.

Whilst there will be initial set up costs to the Council incurred in 2023/24 if the CLS
commenced in July 2024, 1,000 lottery sales tickets per week would ensure that by the
end of 2024/25 all set up and ongoing running costs for the CLS would be fully
covered and there would be a surplus generated that could be allocated to community
initiatives of the Council’s choice from 2025/26. This is highlighted in the table below,
considering the expenditure as highlighted at 5.1 and 5.2, and the income at 5.8.

Cumulative
Financial
Year Quarter Costs Income Sesifan Tor (e
Council
0 | 2023/24 Q4 £6,025 £0 -£6,025
1 | 2024/25 Q1 £1,000 £0 -£7,025
Q2 £2,600
1 | 2024/25 Q3 £500 (marketing) £2,600 £275
Q4 £2,600
2 | 2025/26 Q1,2,3,4 £1,285 £10,400 £9,390
3 | 2026/27 Q1,2,3,4 £1,285 £10,400 £18,505
4 | 2027/28 Q1,2,3,4 £1,285 £10,400 £27,620
5 | 2028/29 Q1,2,3,4 £1,285 £10,400 £36,735
Total £36,735

The table above highlights that by the end of 2028/29, £36,735 of income would have
been generated by the Council through the CLS that could be allocated to community-
based initiatives. However, this is based on the following assumptions:

e 1,000 ticket sales per week.

o A fixed marketing budget of £500 per annum.

e No increase to Gambling Commission fees or to membership fees for the
Lottery Council.

e Any changes to the amount the Council receives per ticket if the annual
procurement process identifies an alternative preferred delivery partner for the
CLS.

Based on performance of the CLS in Charnwood and Blaby, it is not unreasonable to
assume that 150 of the 1,000 tickets purchased weekly will not designate a ‘Good

14



Cause'. If this is the case, then this will see an uplift of £3,120 to the income per
annum.

5.12 It is proposed that a separate budget is established for the CLS to ensure that it is self-
sustaining and does not impact negatively on Council budgets.

5.13 The income the Council generates through the CLS will be reinvested back into the
community grant programme in line with the agreed community grant criteria.

5.14 Gatherwell Ltd has provided the Council with suggested/potential projections for NWL,
as shown in the table below:

NorthWest Leicestershire
Community Lottery Projections

£1 Ticket Price / 1 Ticket per week
: Good
Ticket Number of Hckes Number of| Gross Causes Eantral —
Pricef players b L DDA weeks Return Total i Somes
week (60%) (20%) (40%)
1 219 0.25 1.8 52 £20,503 | £12,302 | £4,101 £8,201
1 438 0.5 1.8 52 £41,007 | £24,604 | £8,201 | £16,403 Year 1
1 876 1.0 18 52 | £82,013 | £49,208 | £16,403 | £32,805 e’g"ic‘a“"”
etween
| 1314 15 1.8 52 £123,020| £73,812 | £24,604 | £49,208 0.5% and
1 1752 2 1.8 52 |£164,027| £98,416 | £32,805 | £65,611 1%
1 2191 2.5 1.8 52 £205,033 | £123,020| £41,007 | £82,013

NW Leicestershire estimated 18+ populatio 87,621

5.15 The Gross return column reflects the total ticket sales (£1). So, based on 1% of the
population playing the lottery, the revenue annually would be £82,013 in Ticket Sales,
£16,403 to the Council Central Fund, £32,805 to Good Causes directly, £14,926 on
Prize fund, £17,879 to Gatherwell Ltd’s running costs of which £2,977 of VAT would be
reclaimable.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Whilst the CLS will be managed by the ELM, there would need to be a Council officer
who supports and manages the scheme in liaison with them. It is proposed this is the
Community Focus Team Leader within Community Services. The responsibilities of
the Team Leader would include:

e Ensuring all licences are paid.

e Ensuring the CLS is delivered in a fair, equitable and ethical manner.

e Ensuring the preferred delivery partner of the Council undertake their
responsibilities in an appropriate manner.

e Considering and making recommendations to the Head of Community Services
and Portfolio Holder for Community Services on which voluntary and
community ‘Good Causes’ should be supported.

¢ Presenting an annual report to Community Scrutiny on the CLS progress.

15



6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

8.0

8.1

There is a risk that the additional workload created by the CLS may cause capacity
issues for the Community Focus Team Leader and this will need to be monitored and

re-assessed if necessary.

There is a requirement that the Licence Holders take part in a one-hour training
session, so they fully understand their and the Council’s responsibilities.

RISK

In establishing a new North West Leicestershire Community Lottery, any potential risks
need to be considered. These have been highlighted in the table below along with
suggestions on how they may be mitigated:

authority

Risk Risk Level Mitigation
The voluntary and Supported by the ELM,
community sector choosing L delivery of workshops to sell
; ow
not to engage with the CLS, use examples from
initiative neighbouring authorities
Anticipated levels of ticket Increase marketing.
sales are not realised and, L Target marketing
. ow .
therefore, income levels are Review sales monthly.
not as high as expected Consider withdrawing
. . . Set-up costs covered by
The CLSis hot financially Very Low NWLDC General Fund
sustainable ; . .
consider withdrawing
Capacity of Community To be monitored and work
Focus Team Leader to Medium levels/priorities re-
manage the CLS assessed/reallocated if issues
There are two licence holders
to split the responsibilities and
tasks. The role can be
A Licence Holder leaves the Low transferred in the short-term

to the remaining licence
holder and then an additional
licence holder can be named
when appropriate.

It should be noted that these risks do not appear to have been realised in other
council-operated lotteries and it is considered that they are outweighed by the potential
to generate new funding for local voluntary and community organisations. The worst-
case scenario is that the initial start-up costs are effectively written off.

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY ENGAGEMENT

The CLS proposal was taken to Community Scrutiny Committee on 8 February 2024 to
allow comments to be made by the committee for consideration by Cabinet when
deciding whether or not establish a Local Authority Lottery. Comments and changes
made to the document following the Community Scrutiny Committee include:

COMMENTS FROM COMMUNITY
SCRUTINY

RESOLUTION

Paragraph 2.1 should say ‘commission’ not

Amended

16




‘appoint’

The financial set up cost, what does this
include

Paragraph 2.1, sets out what the financial
contribution would cover by Gatherwell Ltd
(the External Lottery Manager).

Projected sale figures

The projected costs are highlighted in 5.9
Gatherwell Ltd was asked to provide
projected costs and these are set out at
5.14 and 5.15.

Comparative figures from other authorities

Due to GDPR the Council has only been
able to gather data from Blaby District
Council at this stage, Appendix A

Feedback from other authorities

This can be viewed in Appendix A

Procurement process, has this been robust
enough

Legal and Finance teams have advised on
the project.

Gatherwell Ltd is a specialist provider in this
area, other providers have been considered
but do not have the same output for the
good causes. Please note in 3.4, the
contract will be reviewed every 12 months.

Concerns relating to this scheme promoting
gambling

Gatherwell Ltd would be responsible for
robustly mitigating risks. Appendix B
section “Gambling concerns managed” sets
this out.

How would the scheme be promoted

Gatherwell Ltd would hold sessions to
promote the scheme and encourage good
causes to the local NWL website that would
be created. Advertising material from
Gatherwell Ltd would be provided to
organisations to promote their good causes.
Paragraph 5.9 shows that allocated funds
from the scheme would be reinvested back
into advertising

How will the tickets be sold

Gatherwell Ltd advised that the process
was largely digitalised, with a phone line
also available for less technologically
enabled-residents, and that it was an easy
to use platform. Appendix C shows step-
by-step screen shots of the process for
purchasing a ticket.

Limited funds to support the Officer who is
supporting the Community Lottery Scheme

6.1 sets out the role of the Community
Focus Team Leader.

The Council will carry out an impact
assessment at the end of year one both on
staff time and the impact to the local
charities.

Concerns of displacement of existing
donations to charities

The CLS offers local charities and
community groups the opportunity to gain
funds and keeps funding local within NWL.
Officers will undertake an impact
assessment at the end of year one to
understand what impacts there might be on
local charities.

17




£1,000 does not seem enough for the

launch

Officers have checked with Gatherwell Ltd
and the average launch spend is £1,000.

The CLS should not affect the current

grants scheme

Removed “The Community Lottery will look
to offset the community grants expenditure”

from 5.12.
9.0 TIMESCALE
Activity Date
Community Scrutiny 8 February 2024
Cabinet 27 February 2024

Website/Gambling Licence

March — June 2024

Launch of NWL Community Lottery

June/July 2024

Policies and other considerations, delete as appropriate

Council Priorities:

Clean, green and zero carbon - looking after the local
environment.

A well-run council - making sure Council services are
provided in a positive and friendly way, that the Council
provides value for money and that its finances are in good
order.

Policy Considerations:

None.

Safeguarding:

The criteria for accepting good causes includes
safeguarding measures.

Equalities/Diversity:

The process is online however a local phone number would
be available for those individuals who are computer illiterate
in order to purchase tickets and support their local ‘good
cause’.

Customer Impact:

The benefit to voluntary and community groups and to
NWLDC will have a positive impact on residents and
customers of the Council.

Economic and Social Impact:

Ensures income for the community and voluntary groups as
highlighted within the report.

Environment, Climate
Change and Zero Carbon:

Voluntary and community good causes and NWLDC
community-based initiatives will potentially have a positive
impact on the environment.

Consultation/Community

Engagement with the voluntary and community sector to

Engagement: submit good causes.
Launch day to promote the scheme with the community.
Risks: As highlighted in the report.

Officer Contact

Paul Sanders
Head of Community Services
paul.sanders@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

18



mailto:paul.sanders@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

APPENDIX A

o,

. - Nor(.West
Gatherwell — A growing network of over 120 local authority Leicestershire
lotteries
YA Portsmouth Tandridge . 6\; I_i R . Q ] m Hmn 4 South Bucks| 2
D DR (P | Pobc.....| Do 5 Havant I ™ et o HELTE A
¢ ~—— Kevord [Pray_| oo
—— e hi ‘ N0
S— 6 - District Council BN
o P G
52 DAVENTRY — )
Gloucester e South Hams "5
~City Council WYCOMBE| | mansfield District Council Coundl
sforming Your ity o DISTRICT COUNCI) Council —
: el 773 Nuneaton ‘& Horsham
1\11‘:.1::1- @ snekrpieid m’k 2y 3 “ E:B o a weean | [Bedworth "% s
Council b A West Norfolk o ‘3,’ _5‘ couNCcIL
ounclt - C"Y"'m w COUNCIL 0,(' ot OXFORD
CITY | I
Harrogate CITY OF ot S cuiLDFORD| & Boucremavin— 295 councir| | ==
SOmOUGH S L{g&g{n Charwood CUILDFORD i AR Forest of Dean

WestLindsey "

}{‘”mw Y- 23 Elmbridge RoRTs Gxr R0 puiak
=% Borough Council

& .Y =
DOVER
Powy. e

NAWA Cambridgeshire
AAA County Council

Hinckley g Bosworth
Borough Council

gatherwel| D

Examples of good causes;

Charnwood Community lottery

Quorn Local History Group https://www.quorndon.com/localhistory/
Falcon support services https://www.falconsupportservices.org.uk/

e East Goscote community Library https://east-goscote-community-
library.webador.co.uk/

Blaby Community Lottery

e Croft Happy Circle https://leicesterleicestershireandrutland.icb.nhs.uk/be-
involved/vcse-introduction/vcse-alliance/vcse-directory/happy-circle-croft/

e Greenfields PTFA
http://www.greenfieldstmary.oldham.sch.uk/parents zone/ptfa/ptfa.html

e W.I.L.E Wombles in litter Education
https://womblesinlittereducation.co.uk/#:~:text=0ur%20concept%20is%20very%20si
mple,sorts%200f%20littering%20we%20find.

Harborough Community Lottery

e Great Glen Community Library https://www.greatglencommunitylibrary.co.uk/
¢ Dementia Harborough https://www.dementiaharborough.org/
e Harborough FM https://harboroughfm.co.uk/

19


https://www.quorndon.com/localhistory/
https://www.falconsupportservices.org.uk/
https://east-goscote-community-library.webador.co.uk/
https://east-goscote-community-library.webador.co.uk/
https://leicesterleicestershireandrutland.icb.nhs.uk/be-involved/vcse-introduction/vcse-alliance/vcse-directory/happy-circle-croft/
https://leicesterleicestershireandrutland.icb.nhs.uk/be-involved/vcse-introduction/vcse-alliance/vcse-directory/happy-circle-croft/
http://www.greenfieldstmary.oldham.sch.uk/parents_zone/ptfa/ptfa.html
https://womblesinlittereducation.co.uk/#:~:text=Our%20concept%20is%20very%20simple,sorts%20of%20littering%20we%20find
https://womblesinlittereducation.co.uk/#:~:text=Our%20concept%20is%20very%20simple,sorts%20of%20littering%20we%20find
https://www.greatglencommunitylibrary.co.uk/
https://www.dementiaharborough.org/
https://harboroughfm.co.uk/

0¢

Example of sales from another local authority in Leicestershire.

£ going to . . .
Local Weekly Number of _Average Good £ going to the £ going to £ going to £ going
Year . . players per ticket per Councils grant the cash Gatherwell
Authority | ticket sells Causes : to VAT
week player (50p) schemes (10p) prizes Ltd
2022-23 Blaby 983 568 1.73 25,272 5,054 9,199 9,199 1,819

Feedback from other authorities that have the Community Lottery Scheme.

From Blaby District Council

Aside from the initial development fee, the Council does not pay annual fees to Gatherwell for the service so it is relatively self-
sustaining.

It requires relatively little officer time compared to say a community development or grants officer role.

The Council can still control which organisations are accepted on the platform to ensure they are legitimate.

It offers a fundraising platform for local Voluntary and Community Sector organisations. It complements the Council’s community grants
scheme, and allows organisations to raise un-ringfenced income without the need to provide receipts for expenditure etc (as is the case
with publicly funded grants)

It provides a fundraising platform that does not need face-to-face contact and offers a good level of return to good causes (60% from
each ticket)

The model used allows the Council to top up our community grants pot (10p from every ticket) allowing funding for an addition six to
seven projects a year to be available.

From Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

The lottery has been welcomed in the community and is on track to raise around £15,000 in the first year.

The lottery was easy to set up but requires a good marketing plan to encourage signs ups and ticket sales.

The Central Fund has been particularly successful and accounts for around half of the £15,000 raised. The Council is looking at setting
up a separate grant scheme to distribute this to community groups.

The lottery has been easy to manage and support from Gatherwell has been good. The platform largely runs itself and you mainly just
need to focus on that comms work to promote sales.

It’s good that community groups get out what they put in. If they promote it a lot they sell more tickets and therefore get more money
back — there is an onus on community groups to drive this in partnership with the Council.




T¢

There have been very few issues over the idea of the Council ‘encouraging gambling’ — with perhaps two complaints early on and
nothing since.



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Draft North West Leicestershire District Council Community Lottery Scheme (CLS)
Policy.

How will the scheme work in the district
The Council operates a CLS in accordance with a Community Lottery Operator (CLO).

The CLO will be engaging community groups across the district and provide information on
how the CLS can support local organisations and services in raising funds to strengthen
outcomes and build resilience.

A website showing the CLS will be created by CLO and where local groups can promote
their good causes.

There are no application fees to join and the CLO will provide marketing materials to help
promote organisations good causes.

Please note every twelve months the contract arrangements are reprocured.

How ‘Good Causes’ are accepted on the CLS

The Council has been granted a licence to run the lottery by the Gambling Commission and
part of its licence obligations are to ensure that all ‘good causes’ meet certain criteria.

The Council will review each of the ‘good causes’ registering before they are accepted onto
the CLS website.

The criteria used to identify ‘good causes’ is as follows:

¢ Must be a non-profit organisation; constituted group, registered charity or a social
enterprise.

¢ Have a constitution or a formal set of rules appropriate to the legal status of the
organisation.

e Have an active bank account named to the organisation.

e Must be active in their community and supports the residents of North West
Leicestershire.

¢ Have a safeguarding policy in place if working with children, young people and/or
vulnerable adults.

e Have adequate insurance cover for the project.

Where we would not accept a good cause:

e Requests from schools and Parent Teacher Associations (PTA), Parish or Town
Council.

e Requests for funding for religious activities.

e Requests for funding for political activities or by a political organisation.

o Requests for funding for activities / projects which do not benefit individuals who live
within North West Leicestershire.

o Requests for funding from private organisations or individuals.

o Requests where there is potential reputational risk for North West Leicestershire
District Council.

23



Appendix B

Successful applications to the CLS will need to:

e Provide evidence of all eligibility criteria.

e Agree to spend the proceeds from the North West Leicestershire Community Lottery
on community activities or services that directly benefit the residents of North West
Leicestershire District.

e Agree to a site visit / meeting before agreement if required, possible six monthly spot
checks thereafter or any further contact as deemed necessary by North West
Leicestershire District Council for audit purposes.

e Aim to sign up to 20 supporters within the first month.

e Agree to the name of the organisation being used in publicity for the North West
Leicestershire Community Lottery.

e Agree that the Noth West Leicestershire District Council logo must be included on all
publicity material relating to your projects or activities that are funded through the
North West Leicestershire Community Lottery.

¢ Inform North West Leicestershire District Council immediately if the organisation /
group intends to disband, changes its aims, legal status or any other policy that may
affect its eligibility for the scheme.

How are the proceeds of the £1 ticket allocated

The proposed scheme with Gatherwell Ltd as a CLO offers tickets at £1 each. Under this
CLO, the £1 is allocated as below:

e 60p would go to local ‘good causes’ (this would be split between £0.40 allocated
directly to the community organisation good cause and £0.20 being reinvested into
the Council community grant scheme)

e 18p would be allocated for prize money
18p would go to the External Lottery Manager (Gatherwell Ltd)

e 4p would be VAT, which is reclaimable by the Council.

What does the Council do with the income generated by the ticket sells

Under the CLO with Gatherwell Ltd any income generated (which would be the 20p that the
Council receives for each ticket sales) will be reinvested back into the Council’s existing
community grant scheme to be investing into community projects

Gambling concerns managed

As part of the Council’s approach to the lottery, it is aware of the issues around

problem gambling. As set out in the policies submitted to the Gambling Commission,
North West Leicestershire District Council takes this issue seriously.

The form of North West Leicestershire Community Lottery, as borne out by similar schemes
operating in other local authority areas, is not considered to be particularly attractive to those
with a gambling addiction as:

¢ Itis being marketed with the promotion of ‘good causes’ as its focus.

e Itis delivered remotely, non-cash based, and takes effort to subscribe to.

e There is no instant gratification element.

24


https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/about-us/transparency/policies-and-procedures

Appendix B

o The ability for players to self-exclude and have the ability to place blocks or caps on
players is provided.

Gatherwell Ltd, as one of the CLOs, is an External Lottery Manager (ELM) and has a
responsibility to run an ethical and responsible lottery. Gatherwell Ltd has provided guidance
to mitigate the risk, as per below. Please note that the Council will be reviewing CLO
providers every twelve months to ensure that the selected CLO has strict and robust
gambling mitigations.

1. A lottery is a raffle; a supporter purchases a ticket, one of which is drawn at
random just like picking a raffle ticket from the hat. Therefore, if the
organisation holds a Christmas raffle or has a raffle at a summer fair, for
example, it is exactly the same level of risk.

2. Although tightly regulated, the Gambling Commission view the lottery as a low
risk form of gambling, hence the license required to hold a lottery is the same
as a raffle.

3. Players have to be over 18 years of age to participate. The site requires all
players to register for an account before they are able to purchase tickets and
play the lottery which includes age verification via a date of birth.

4. Gatherwell currently runs successful lotteries for a number of religious organisations.
For example, Village Halls and schools to name a couple of categories.

5. Although not right for everyone, it is each individual’s choice whether to
participate or not in the lottery. If a person doesn’t agree with spending their
money in a lottery, it does not mean everyone else should be prevented from
taking part and raising money for the cause in this way.

6. There are strict guidelines in place to prevent marketing lotteries to
underage or vulnerable people. This includes the imagery that can be used and
where the Council? Gatherwell? can advertise.

7. Players can stop their subscription at any time. At the bottom of the website
there are links to the Gamble Aware organisation for help if anyone needs it.

8. There is no instant gratification with a lottery and all monies must be cleared
before a ticket can be entered into a draw.

9. There is a vigorous vetting process and very strict guidelines in place in order
to gain approval and a licence to run lotteries via the Gambling Commission.
This includes measures to protect children and vulnerable people from being
harmed or exploited by gambling.

10. Players are able to set up a self-exclusion agreement and the lottery will take
reasonable steps to prevent further participation, including removing their
name and details from any marketing databases.

11. Safeguards are in place to ensure that ticket purchases are not excessive.
These include Gatherwell Ltd monitoring this and contacting any supporter with a
high-ticket yield to ensure they are fully aware of their purchase and lottery
entries.

For any further information, please contact info@gatherwell.co.uk / 01865 582 482.

25


mailto:info@gatherwell.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C

The ticket process to payment.

1. Find the website and choose Play

CHARNWOOD

COMMUNITY

LO**evg Play Are you a good cause? = Menu Log in

(S el 223 Win the ultimate Nintendo Switch bundle! >

Play Charnwood Community

Lottery and support your
community with a fundraising
lottery.

At least 60% from each ticket sold goes to support
Charnwood, and there’s a chance to win the £25,000 jackpot

2. Select your chosen Good Cause (Charnwood Community Fund)

Charnwood Community Fund

ster this lottery

COMMUNITY £4,024.80 of £7,800.00 target
oo e
129 tickets of 250 ticket goal

& Supporter count About Charnwood Community Fund:

Charnwood Community Lottery is a weekly lottery that directly supports local good causes

70 supporters oo o
PP and community initiatives.

Lotteries are a fun and effective way for causes to raise much-needed funds in these difficult

Ms R supported us with 3 tickets times. By getting more people on board, they don't just raise funds, they also raise awareness.

m When you play the Charnwood Community Lottery you know that 60% of your ticket price
goes to good causes (more than DOUBLE what the National Lottery gives) AND the money
raised is going to good causes that benefit your local community.

© Next draw date Proceeds generated from this page go into a general good cause fund, administered by

Charnwood Borough Council, which will be spent on providing vital support to a wide range of
local organisations and community initiatives which have a beneficial impact on the local
community.

5d Th 1B3m 2§

27



Appendix C

3. Select Your numbers

Select your numbers! @

You are supporting Charnwood Community Fund.

Only £1 per line each week.

B 0 EEEE
B OO 0000
B O 0000

+ Add more tickets

|:| Would you like to receive emails from Charnwood
Community Lottery and the good causes you support
about the different ways you can help support good

4. How you would like to pay DD or by Card

Order summary

You have chosen to play 1ticket per week.

How would you like to pay?

rssst visa @D
Direct Debit Debit card
Direct Debit is the safest and easiest way We accept both Mastercard Debit and
to pay. You can cancel at anytime. Visa Debit cards as payment options.

Pay by Direct Debit { Pay by debit card

28



Appendix C

5. If Chosen DD then enter details DD details.

Order summary
You have chosen to play 1ticket per week.
For £4.34 every month.

How is this calculated?

Bank details:

Account holder name

The full name of the account holder

Account number

Sort Code

6. If Chosen by card then enter for the number of months (as below) and then enter Card
details.

When would you like to pay?

O Pay Monthly

@® Pay A One Off Payment

Months to play

How many months?... 4

How many months?...

1 month (£5.00 - 5 draws)

3 months (£13.00)

6 months (£26.00)

12 months (£52.00)
Cara aetwans

o Please note we can only take payment via debit
card.
Due to a legislation change, we can no longer take
credit card payments.

29



Appendix C

Please note the screen shots show the process from Charnwood’s Community Lottery Scheme.
For North West Leicestershire Community Lottery it would be the same just with NWL branded.

Payments can be made on a Direct Debit or Debit (block Purchase) online. Payment for a block
purchase can also be taken over the phone (a local NW Leicestershire area code number manned as
NW Leicestershire Lottery).

30



Agenda Item 6.

9’0.0
)
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL .° ®
North West
CABINET — TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 Le | Ce Ste rS h | re

Title of Report NWL LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN AND STRATEGY

Presented by Councillor Michael Wyatt
Portfolio Holder for Community Services

PH Briefed: Yes

Background Papers Community Scrutiny Public Report: Yes
Meeting Minutes 24
November 2021

LCWIP Guidance

Cycling Route Audits

Walking Route Audits Key Decision: Yes

Route Prioritisation Audits

Community Scrutiny
Meeting Minutes 8
February 2024

Financial Implications Whilst there are no financial implications in adopting the Local
Cycling and Walking Strategy and Infrastructure Plan, there
will be financial implications in delivering improvement
schemes and works. These will be considered on a case-by-
case basis as funding opportunities present themselves with
business cases being developed and the appropriate
corporate approvals and funding solutions sought prior to
delivery.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications There are no legal implications in adopting the Local Cycling
and Walking Strategy and Infrastructure Plan. However, there
may be legal implications in the delivery of improvement
schemes and these will be considered on a case-by-case
basis as part of the business case for each individual project.

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate None
Implications

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Purpose of Report To inform Cabinet of the North West Leicestershire Cycling
and Walking Strategy and draft Local Cycling and Walking

31


http://prod-modgov:9070/documents/g2333/Printed%20minutes%2024th-Nov-2021%2018.30%20Community%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1&$LO$=1
http://prod-modgov:9070/documents/g2333/Printed%20minutes%2024th-Nov-2021%2018.30%20Community%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1&$LO$=1
http://prod-modgov:9070/documents/g2333/Printed%20minutes%2024th-Nov-2021%2018.30%20Community%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1&$LO$=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://nwleicestershire.sharepoint.com/sites/MemberHub/SitePages/Community-Scrutiny-%E2%80%93-NWL-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-and-Infrastructure-Report-%E2%80%93-8-February.aspx?web=1
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=351&MId=2524&Ver=4
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=351&MId=2524&Ver=4
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=351&MId=2524&Ver=4

Infrastructure Plan, and to seek approval to adopt them
corporately in order to assist with seeking funding streams to
deliver improvements as highlighted in the Infrastructure
Plan.

Reason for Decision To help secure funding, whether as part of new developments

or via other means, in order to enable delivery of the
improvements as highlighted in the Local Cycling and
Walking Infrastructure Plan. It will also from part of the
evidence base for the Council’'s new Local Plan.

Recommendations THAT CABINET ADOPTS THE NORTH WEST

LEICESTERSHIRE CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY
2022-2032 AND LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN.

11

1.2

13

14

BACKGROUND

The government has an ambition to make England a great cycling and walking nation
and has demonstrated a commitment to get more people cycling and walking through
improving the infrastructure of cycling and walking networks throughout the country.
This commitment is evidenced through the following:

Department for Transport Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy 1 (2017).
Gear Change: a Bold Vision for Cycling and Walking White Paper (2020).

Cycle Infrastructure Design - Local Transport Note 1/20 (LTN1/20).

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans; Technical Guidance for Local
Authorities.

e Department for Transport Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy 2
(2021/22).

The government’s approach has been further supported by other organisations through
the publication of related documents:

e Working Together to Promote Active Travel - A briefing for local authorities,
Public Health England (2016).

e Active Design: Planning for health and wellbeing through sport and physical
activity, Sport England (2015).

e The 20 Minute Neighbourhood, Town and Country Planning Association
(2021).

Getting more people to cycle and walk within North West Leicestershire (NWL) and
beyond will;

¢ Enhance the area’s profile as an attractive place to live, work and visit.
e Contribute to the drive to encourage residents and visitors to increase levels
of physical activity.
e Develop healthier communities.
o Help reduce CO2 levels and harmful particulates, such as PM 2.5.
An improved cycle and walking network will also contribute to:

e Supporting local businesses and the economy.

32




15

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

e Supporting local tourism.

The government has highlighted that, in order to be able to access funding streams to
help facilitate infrastructure improvements, local authorities will need to have in place a
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP).

The creation of a LCWIP will enable the Council to:

e Identify short, medium and long-term investment priorities for cycling and
walking infrastructure improvements.

e Ensure that consideration is given to cycling and walking within both local
planning and transport policies and strategies.

¢ Make the case for future funding for cycling and walking infrastructure.

The first stage to producing a LCWIP was to develop a Cycling and Walking Strategy
(Caws).

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY 2022-
2032

In February 2021 the Council commissioned consultants Knight, Kavanagh and Page
(KKP) to support the Council in developing a CaWsS. The CaWs sets out the context
for improving cycling and walking networks, identifying key locations within and outside
the district that need to be linked, and providing the evidence base for developing the
LCWIP. It was developed in collaboration with and with the support of Leicestershire
County Council (LCC) and NWL Planning Policy colleagues. It involved extensive
consultation with key stakeholders including:

Parish and town councils.
NWLDC officers and members.
Sustrans.

Neighbouring local authorities.
Local cycling and walking groups.
The National Forest.

The Forestry Commission.

LCC Public Health colleagues.

In November 2021, officers consulted with the Community Scrutiny Committee to
secure feedback on  the draft NWL CaWs (see background papers). Comments
from Community Scrutiny members helped to shape the strategy into its final format
which can be found at Appendix 2. In addition, members suggested that the
document was slightly unwieldy and therefore an outward facing and easy to read
overview version of the strategy was designed which can also be found at Appendix
1.

The vision of the CaWsS is;
“The vision for North West Leicestershire is, via development of a safe,
attractive, integrated cycling and walking network plus a range of behavioural
change initiatives to become a District where walking and cycling are safe,
accessible and obvious choices for short journeys”.

The objectives of the strategy are to:

33



Create a highway infrastructure to support and encourage cycling and walking

for all by:

o Developing an accessible, safe cycling and walking network, with
relevance to and links with employment, leisure, education and
everyday destinations.

o Ensuring that current and future networks are of a high standard.

o Striking an appropriate balance between the needs of all road users.

o Making all new schemes and infrastructure optimally inclusive and

accessible to all.

o Integrating existing and future networks with public transport hubs.
o Working with key destination venues/agencies to secure their support
for cycling and walking.
Work with key partners to create a greener infrastructure
Secure funding and support to enhance the cycling and walking infrastructure
o Through the Local Plan and section 106 contributions
o Through other external funding sources
Develop and support behavioural change processes and opportunities

2.5 The table below gives an overview of the identified and prioritised cycle desire lines,
potential routes, and/or locations as identified within the NWL CaWws;
Priority Coalville Ashby Castle Kegworth Measham | Ibstock
Donington
1 East to West | Hicks Lodge | Green way | Link between | Strategic link | Route
route through around the | Kegworth and | to Ibstock through the
Town Centre Airport/EMEG | Castle town centre
Donington/East
Midlands
Gateway
2 Coalville to | Town Centre | Strategic Link | Strategic link | Strategic Ibstock to
Hugglescote/ Traffic to Kegworth north Link to | Ellistown
Ellistown/Sence | Calming Ashby and Bardon
Valley Hill
Industrial
Estate
3 North to South | Cloud Trail | Upgrading Strategic link | Creating a | Strategic
through the | Extension Long Lane | west/east link between | link to
Town Centre into a the new | Coalville
dedicated Jaguar Land
cycling route Rover  site
and
Measham
4 Coalville to | Link to | Linking Castle | Link to Strategic
Ashby Coalville Donington to | Loughborough link to
Ratcliffe  on Ashby
Soar
5 Coalville to | Link to | Linking Kings Strategic
Coalville Swadlincote | Mills link to
Community Measham
Hospital
6 Sence Valley | Providing Creating a link
Forest Park sustainable north to
options from | Sawley and
(proposed) beyond
Ashby
railway
station
7 Connecting Strategic link
Coalville to the to
Cloud Trail Loughborough

34




2.6 With regards to walking, the NWL CaWs identified the need to link educational sites,
key leisure sites, shopping areas, major employers, and tourist destinations, as well
as the walking priorities highlighted in the table below:

Area Priorities

Ashby Improve links from Bath Grounds crossing South Street and accessing the
town centre.

Improve pedestrian crossing points at the roundabout crossing Bath
Street/Market Street/Kilwardby Street.

Improve pedestrian links crossing Brook Street/Market Street.

Improve National Forest Trail — Ivanhoe Way is currently not well maintained-
improve surface quality.

Integrate the Cloud Trail with 089 footpath at Money Hill.

Coalville Review and improve all crossing points across main roads within town centre.
Install a new walking route across Scotland’s Playing Field linking in with the
upgrade of the former LMS line.

Measham Create walking links from the new development at Measham Wharf
development to the village centre and the canal.

Kegworth Improve walking route for Kegworth to Castle Donington The bypass (A6) is
currently difficult to bypass.

3. DEVELOPMENT OF THE NWL LCWIP

3.1 Following a procurement process in early 2022 jointly managed between the Leisure
Services and Planning Policy teams, Sustrans was identified as the preferred partner
to develop the NWL LCWIP.

3.2 The Government has published guidance for the development of LCWIP’s which was
followed by Sustrans, with elements of the process having already been undertaken
as part of the development of the CaWs. A copy of this guidance can be found in the
Background Papers.

3.3 Aligned to the CaWs, the LCWIP focusses on the six main urban areas of the district;

e Ashby de-la Zouch
e Castle Donington
e Coalville

e |bstock

¢ Kegworth

e Measham

34 LCWIPs are evidence led and based on data that evaluates several existing and
potential trips that could feasibly be made by walking or cycling if current conditions
were improved.

35 A range of tools and information sources were used to examine the data to inform the

LCWIP, including:

e Transport network — including the existing walking and cycling network, along
with synergies with other planned and proposed transport and land use
schemes that could potentially have an impact on walking and cycling.

e Travel patterns — data about existing walking and cycling trips, and journeys
that people currently make using other modes of transport. This information

35




3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

informs where walking and cycling may be able to contribute to all or part of a
journey.

e Location of significant trip generators — location and size of existing and
planned trip generators, such as key employment sites, transport
interchanges, education facilities and housing developments.

A copy of the draft NWL LCWIP can be found at Appendix 3.

With regards to cycling routes and walking infrastructure, once an analysis of data
and local knowledge was completed, physical route audits were undertaken to
determine what high level infrastructure improvements could be made to improve
route quality and make cycling more likely to be adopted for journeys in the future,
and to make walking routes more attractive and safer for pedestrians in the future. As
part of this process, a number of elements were considered the detail of which can
be found in the LCWIP Guidance highlighted in the Background Papers.

A detailed copy of the Cycling and Walking Routes Audit for NWL can be found in the
Background Papers.

Once potential schemes for improvement had been identified, they were then
prioritised. This was completed using a scoring methodology against the following
key criteria:

e Economic - value for money.

o [Effectiveness — increased number of pedestrians and people on bikes,
network development contribution and integration.

e Policy — improved transport connections for multi modal journeys, public and
political acceptable and environmental constraints.

The cycling schemes were also assessed using the Department for Transport’s
Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit (AMAT) in order to quantify the key impacts of each
proposed intervention, and to measure the value for money of each scheme in the
form of a benefit-cost ratio.

A copy of the prioritisation scoring can be found in the Background Papers.
NWL LCWIP OUTCOMES

The full detail of the LCWIP, the audits, and the prioritisation for cycling and walking
can be found in Appendix 3 and in the Background Papers.

The tables in Appendix 3 (the draft LCWIP) from page 52 give an overview of the
key cycle schemes and pedestrian improvements identified in the plan for each area,
and the priority ranking of these.

The detail of the prioritised key cycle schemes and pedestrian improvements for
each area, including indicative costs for the cycling schemes, can be found in
Appendices 4 and 5.

ENGAGEMENT

Engagement with key stakeholders has been undertaken to sense check the NWL

LCWIP. This included engagement with NWLDC members that took the form of a
survey upon circulation of a highlight report and the full draft LCWIP.

36



5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

The LCWIP was also taken to Community Scrutiny Committee on 8 February to allow
comments to be made by the committee for consideration by Cabinet when deciding
whether or not to formally adopt the Strategy and Infrastructure Plan. Comments
received by Community Scrutiny Committee included:

e The raising of specific infrastructure issues omitted from the LCWIP. In
response, officers explained that omissions were either because the issue
had not been raised through the consultation process or had not been
deemed a priority. Officers also explained there was a process for adding
arising issues into the LCWIP and if any members wished to discuss
concerns then they could do so with either the Leisure Services Team
Manager or the Health and Wellbeing Team Leader.

e The process for linking into new developments and the lvanhoe Line. In
response, officers explained that the LCWIP would be used as an evidence
base for the Local Plan which would enable requests to be made to
developers to ensure there was adequate infrastructure within the
development, that these link to the wider network, and that contributions be
made to help develop the wider network. Officers also updated the committee
on intentions regarding the lvanhoe Line.

o How will the LCWIP enable the Council to deliver against proposed
improvements? In response, officers explained that there was no funding
attached to the LCWIP and it was unclear as to how funding would be
distributed. However, it had been made clear that government funding will not
be able to be accessed without having a LCWIP. That said, with regards to
pedestrian improvements, there may be some quick wins and, if adopted by
the Council, officers would be engaging colleagues at Leicestershire County
Council with a view to trying to deliver some of these.

The feedback obtained from stakeholders has been used to refine the NWL LCWIP
into its current version. Following feedback from Community Scrutiny Committee, no
further changes have been made to the document. The minutes from the Community
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 8 February can be found in the Background Papers.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Whilst there are no financial implications in adopting the CawsS and LCWIP, there will
be financial implications in delivering improvement schemes and works. These will be
considered on a case-by-case basis as funding opportunities present themselves
with business cases being developed and the appropriate corporate approvals and
funding solutions sought prior to delivery.

NEXT STEPS

If adopted corporately, the CawsS and the LCWIP will be used to help secure funding,
whether as part of new developments or via other means, in order to enable delivery
of the improvements as highlighted in the LCWIP. It will also from part of the
evidence base for the Council’'s new Local Plan and will inform a viability assessment
of the infrastructure requirements arising from the plan. Where consistent with legal
requirements, contributions will be sought as part of new developments identified as
part of the new Local Plan.

37



Policies and other considerations, as appropriate

Council Priorities:

Planning and Regeneration
Clean, Green and Zero Carbon

Policy Considerations:

NWL Local Plan
NWL Health and Wellbeing Strategy
NWL Zero Carbon Roadmap and Action Plan

Safeguarding:

None

Equalities/Diversity:

In line with Cycle Infrastructure Design - Local
Transport Note 1/20 (LTN1/20), design should be
inclusive, beginning with the principle that all
potential cyclists and their bikes should be catered
for in all cycle infrastructure design and that
authorities which bid for government funding for
cycling and walking infrastructure, must ensure
that their designs comply with LTN1/20. In
addition, the Walking Route Audit Tool also
requires consideration of all types of pedestrians

Customer Impact:

Improved health and wellbeing
Improved air quality
Increased connectivity

Economic and Social Impact:

Increased accessibility to businesses and tourist
attractions

Environment, Climate Change and
Zero Carbon:

Reduced CO2 emissions
Less cars on the road

Consultation/Community/Tenant
Engagement:

Consultation and engagement as per the report

Risks:

Failure to produce a CaWs and/or a LCWIP will
mean no government funding can be accessed to
improve the cycling and walking infrastructure in
NWL.

Officer Contact

Jason Knight
Leisure Services Team Manager
jason.knight@nwileicestershire.qgov.uk

38



mailto:jason.knight@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Appendix 1

North West Leicestershire

WALKING AND

CYCLING STRATEGY
2022-2032




S e
{ -.__'..‘h..,.\./ PraA 7?'. =
g /W G W i

VISION

For North West Leicestershire to become a district where walking and cycling
are safe, accessible and obvious choices for short journeys.

This will be achieved by creating a safe, attractive, integrated cycling and walking
network, and by using a range of behavioural change initiatives.




OBJECTIVES

» Create a highway infrastructure to » Work with key partners to create a
support and encourage cycling and greener infrastructure
walking for all. » Ringfence funding to support cycling
» Ensure that current and future and walking infrastructure

networks are of a high standard » Develop and support behavioural

» Strike an appropriate balance change processes and opportunities.
between the needs of all road users

» Make all new schemes and infrastructure
optimally inclusive and accessible to all

» Integrate existing and future networks
with public transport hubs

» Work with key destination venues /
agencies to secure their support for
cycling and walking.



BENEFITS OF
IMPROVED
INFRASTRUCTURE

Support the district’s ambition to be
carbon neutral by 2050 by tackling
road congestion and air quality and
increasing resilience to climate change

Support the local economy, businesses
and tourism

Improve the health and wellbeing of
residents

Address inequalities and improve
connectivity.

THE STRATEGY

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure
Plans (LCWIPs) allow authorities and other
organisations to source funding through
central Government to improve local
cycling and walking infrastructure.

To do this successfully, we need evidence
to tell us what we need. This strategy
provides the evidence needed to support
a LCWIP for the six key towns and villages
in the district: Ashby de la Zouch, Coalville,
Castle Donington, Ibstock, Kegworth and
Measham.

Using this evidence, we will draw up a
LCWIP, which will set out the associated
costs, the types of routes and infrastructure
needed, and where they should be,
maintenance requirements and so on.

NEXT STEPS

This strategy will now be used to develop a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan for
the district.

This will take a number of months to complete - we expect the LCWIP to be available from
autumn 2022.



CREATING THE STRATEGY

We have consulted with the public through
surveys, local walking and cycling clubs and
groups and local action groups, as well as with
neighbouring authorities to understand their
current schemes and future proposals. This
ensures that, where possible, these programmes
are integrated with the cycling and walking
aspirations identified in this strategy.

Partners and stakeholders, including
Leicestershire County Council, town and parish
councils and the National Forest Company, have
given their feedback, and we have considered
how local and national policy will impact on

our plan, with a literature review of all relevant
local documentation, including North West
Leicesteshire’s Local Plan and the current cycling
strategies for Ashby, Kegworth and Coalville.

To access the full strategy please visit

We have used the Propensity to Cycle Tool
(PCT) - a model which identifies potential
commuter cycling routes.

A series of maps have been produced
identifying where investment should be
focused to support cycling and walking in the
six key towns and villages, and include the
following:

« Cycling maps incorporating proposed routes
with key destinations

- Walking heat maps to indicate where
priorities for investment could be focused.

These maps have been developed to inform
the LCWIP. The finalised route proposals will
be completed as part of the LCWIP process.

Local Cycling and Walking Strategy - North West Leicestershire District
Council (nwleics.gov.uk/Cyclingandwalkingstrategy)



https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local_cycling_and_walking_stategy
https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local_cycling_and_walking_stategy

COALVILLE PROPOSED CYCLE ROUTES

| izabeth
mond.

:.%' North West Leicestershire
Coalvilla

Local cycle network

Cyecling priority

KEY destination sites by type

[l Employment
[7] Housing growth
Leisure
QOuter suburb
Coalville boundary

.| ®#-®-®-® National Cycle Network (NCN)

> Coalville

y 4 Walking deslinations
] B schoois
N

&
y
\ ~
Copyriht § 1987 - 2020 HERE
Created by Knigh, Kavanagh & Pedk: iwey ko b uky

ID Walking destination
Bus and coach station (family centre)
2 Coalville Park
3 Hermitage fishing lake and
recreation ground
4 High Street
5  Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre
6  Morrisons / Whitwick Retail Park
7  Snibston Colliery Park
8  Urban Forest Park
9  Broom Leys Surgery
10 All Saints Church of England
Primary School
11 Belvoirdale Community Primary School
12 Broom Leys Primary School
13 Hugglescote Community Primary School
14 Newbridge High School
15 St. Clare's Catholic Primary School
16 Stephenson College

Stephenson Studio School




ASHBY PROPOSED CYCLE ROUTES

s
North West Leicestershire
Ashtyy-de-la-Zoueh

Local cycle metwork J
®:8-8- National Cycle Notwork (NCN)

€ Cycing prcity route

Settlement area

& Page (winiv khp couk) .-

ASHBY WALKING HEAT MAP

Ashby

ID Walking destination & Viakns dostmations
1 Ashby de la Zouch Castle
2 Bath Grounds

3 High Street

Ashby Lido and Leisure Centre and
Hood Park

Ivanhoe Business Park

Memorial Grounds and Castle
Prestop Park
9  Ashby Hill Top Primary School
10 Ashby School
11 Ashby Willesley Primary School Cretesty Koot Ko 73
12 Ashby de la Zouch C of E Primary School
13 Ivanhoe College

5
6  Ivanhoe College
7
8

14 Lewis Charlton Learning Centre

15 Woodcote Primary School
16 Castle Medical Group




CASTLE DONINGTON PROPOSED CYCLE

North West Leicestershire
Casile Donington

Local cycle notwark
®-8-®- National Cycle Network (NCN)

H Cyeling priority route

o K aqworth cycling priorities
KEY destination sites by type

[ Employment

7] Housing growth

Leisure

Quter suburb

[} Settlement area

Sul'on
Bur nngloh

ID Walking destination

1 Castle Donington College / Leisure
Centre

Castle Donington
* Walking dostination
M scnool

/]

Castle Donington High Street

East Midlands Gateway

Spital Park Pavilion

Orchard Community Primary School

bW N

St. Edward's Church of England Primary
School

7  Castle Donington Surgery

gt 5 1007 . 2020 HERE
Created by riight, Kavanagh & Page (wwer 4 co uk)




KEGWORTH PROPOSED CYCLE ROUTES

North West Leicestershire
Kegworth

Local cycle network
®-8-8-® National Cycle Network (NCN)
Cycling priority route

= === = Castle Donington cycling priorities
KEY destination sites by type
| Employment

| Housing growth

Leisure

Outer suburb
| Settlernent area

LI W
I TR et R

U™ g
East Midlands = 2
Pentérpﬁsxe'eate;fay—“

L

[ Weirs . =13
f 1 =y
Sutton, Flelds|

| o Ho ez

Sutton -
Banington*

springg” - | ||°4d
“House Em i i

ol

M , o \F -
|| Charnock’ , X | # =L/ PN — | = \ 3

if ! - : F { \ | R, )

AR Crealed_ﬂ.xﬁigh[‘lﬂﬂaﬁvanﬁage {wwwe kkp.co.uk), e Y o \

KEGWORTH WALKING HEAT MAP

ID Walking destination

Kegworth High Street / Market Street
Kegworth play area
Kegworth village hall

Kegworth Primary School

Sutton Bonington Campus

N Oy W N =

Orchard Surgery

Created by Knight Kavanagh & Page (s kkp. co.uk) Copyright © 4387 - 2020 HERE

w

i

Q

¢




MEASHAM PROPOSED CYCLE ROUTES

North West Leicestershire
Measham

Local cycle network .
®-8-9-8 National Cycle Network (NCN)

Cycling prionty route
KEY deslination sites by type

.| Employment
] Housing growth
Leisure

Outer suburb
Settiement area

Ngfnant 3§

&uesn Ellzabe‘lh

Dlamond Jubilee
“ Wood' |

e

MEASHAM WALKING HEAT MAP

= v ’ " '
& Waking deitination. >

Walking destination ”\* ‘/Qr\ Ve
Ashby Woulds Heritage Trail o \/\‘“\\% ,
Industrial estate to the south — L
Measham High Street \
Measham Leisure Centre (o~ /’/

Measham Park

o

Proposed Jaguar Landrover site

Wooded area to the north - with cafe

0NN B~ WIN | =

Measham Church of England Primary
School

J‘l‘ : /
5 \
=

?’ 7> \
P }m,wmnm.mmmmww,

9  St. Charles Catholic Primary Voluntary
Academy

10 Measham Medical Unit




IBSTOCK PROPOSED CYCLE ROUTES

T

| ¥ 9= QueenElizavetn | " Kelham Bridae | =
Vi }' 132\’ Diamond Jubilee Wood 4 Em, Q=" Donington
- YA B A g e HepthT
L / ¥ = e
| o Vah ;
N - / = L - ]
pm._ & 715 7 #
_Ap | NG | o
o AT 2N
R NS e v N PN
Lo \
Tempe | . 3 L Yi3s - 3
\ p}'\\Fm . /_;. ¥ Latto;-:; t? k s
gl \ £ w/MJpper ‘f’ 1

77

North West Leicestershire
Ibslock

Local eycle network iy,
&-8-8-8 National Cycle Metwork (NCN) T

<'—> Cycling prionty route
KEY destination siles by type o
[ Employment i

*\Wiggs Fm
by

A Trcher's Bar 8585
a2

[ Housing growth :
Leisure § W r T
Outer suburt 1 . i TR Nén_:tc-ne \.S
’ S range - ! o
Seltlement area ; L f 3 Qe - § &
-0l o oo, E TN /\3/ 3
Wi M Created by Knight Kavanaghi$-Rage (wwwikkp co uk) L Wf 1

IBSTOCK WALKING HEAT MAP

Ibstock

ID Walking destination & Watingdostraton

School

High Street

Leicester Road Play Park

3 Ibstock Leisure Complex / Ibstock
Community College

4 lbstock Junior School

5  St. Denys Church of England Infant
School, Ibstock

6  lbstock and Barlestone Surgeries

Copyright © 1587 - 2020 HERE
Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Page (www kkp.£o uk)




50



.g :. ° °
North West Leicestershire
Leicestershire County Council

District Counci

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE

WALKING
AND CYCLING

STRATEGY
2022-2032

QUALITY, INTEGRITY, PROFESSIONALISM

Knight, Kavanagh & Page Ltd
Company No: 9145032 (England)

MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

Registered Office: 1 -2 Frecheville Court, off Knowsley SSrfet, Bury BL9 OUF
T: 0161 764 7040 E: mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

Appendix 2

b

KNIGHT, KAVANAGH & PAGE

S\

Cert Num: 6543-QMS-001


mailto:mail@kkp.co.uk

Quality assurance
Report origination
Quality control

Client comments

Final report preparation
Quality control

Final approval

Name

Paul Barrett / Chris MacFarlane
John Eady

Jason Knight

Paul Barrett / Chris MacFarlane
John Eady

Jason KnighUEmm%Enight

Date
September 21
September 21
September 21
October 21
October 21
February 22



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

CONTENTS

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND .......cccvtiiiiiiieeiiieeii e 1
SECTION 2: SCOPE AND METHODOLOGY ...covttiiiiiiieeiiieeiiiiire e 2
SECTION 3: NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT PROFILE ..........cccovvviiiinnnnnn. 3
SECTION 4: POLICY CONTEXT ...ttt ettt e e e ee s 5
SECTION 5: CYCLING AND WALKING ENGAGEMENT .....ouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 14
SECTION 6: VISION AND OBJECTIVES ..ottt 19
SECTION 7: CYCLING PRIORITIES ...t 21
SECTION 8: WALKING PRIORITIES ... 43
SECTION 9: MEASURING IMPACT ..ottt 51
SECTION 10: ENCOURAGING BEHAVIOURAL CHANGE .........ccoviiiiiiiiicceei 53
SECTION 11: NEXT STEPS . ... 57
APPENDIX A: PROJECT CONSULTATION LIST ...t 60
APPENDIX B: PARISH COUNCIL CONSULTATION QUESTIONS.........ccvvvvviiiiiiiiiieee 62

53



Executive Summary

North West Leicestershire District Council, along with the majority of local authorities across
England, has declared a climate emergency and set a goal for the District to be carbon
neutral by 2050. The Council has a clear responsibility to lead and ensure that the District
faces up to the challenges involved in meeting this target.

One way to do this and help reduce the consumption of fossil fuels is to create a sustainable
transport network and to encourage change with regard to how people travel. The
Government has set out its ambition to create sustainable travel networks across the
country and to change people’s mindsets making cycling and walking the natural choice for
shorter journeys, or incorporating walking and cycling as part of longer journeys, by 2040.

Increasing the number of people cycling and walking will help tackle some of the most
challenging issues we currently face as a society, including:

tackling road congestion;

improving air quality;

resilience to climate change;

addressing inequalities;

supporting local economies/businesses, and
improving health and wellbeing.

A A A A A A

The nation’s number one health challenge; obesity, is a major concern for local service
providers. In North West Leicestershire, 69.7% of adults (age 18+) are classified as
overweight or obese. This is higher than both regional and national averages.

Increasing the number of people who choose to walk or cycle, even if just for part of their
journey, will have a positive impact on health and wellbeing (physical and mental). The
benefits of regular physical activity are well known. It is estimated that health issues related
to inactivity alone cost the NHS £billions every year. In addition, related issues such as
sickness and premature death among the working age population impacts on society and
the wider economy.

To create sustainable cycling and walking networks, the Government is encouraging local
authorities to produce a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP). These
allow local authorities to take a long-term approach (typically over a 10-year period) to
develop walking and cycling networks and routes to connect places that people need to get
to, whether for work, education, shopping or for other reasons.

The first stage of North West Leicestershire District Council’'s LCWIP process is production
of its Cycling and Walking Strategy (the Strategy). Knight Kavanagh and Page was
commissioned to do this in Spring 2021.

This Strategy identifies and explores the factors which will influence and help ensure the
right environment to enable people to choose to cycle and walk more. It identifies potential
cycling route priorities and areas for investment to support walking. Proposed cycling routes
link to the District’s six key settlements (Ashby, Coalville, Kegworth, Castle Donnington,
Ibstock and Measham) and relate to employment, leisure and daily destinations. There is
also a focus on improving walking infrastructure in core areas within each of the six
settlements.

54



Schemes and aspirations that extend beyond the Authority boundary (including those of
Leicestershire County Council) are also recognised. These will underpin partnership work
and maximise opportunity whilst ensuring cycling and walking-based connectivity for
people looking to travel to and from destinations within and outside the local area.

Finally, the Strategy proposes a number of key behavioural change initiatives to encourage
people to change to and further embed active travel habits. Many factors influence people’s
propensity to cycle and walk - and those most applicable to North West Leicestershire are
set out.

The research and extensive local consultation which informs the priorities set out in this
Strategy provide the Council with the foundations to draft its LCWIP.

This will focus on converting the priority schemes set out in the Strategy into reality. This
means exploring them in greater detail, assessing design options, estimating costs,
securing funding and managing their subsequent delivery. It will necessitate work across a
range of council departments (e.g., leisure, health, planning, transport) as well as with
external partners to ensure that schemes align with Strategy aims and that opportunities
and funding are maximised.

Once produced the LCWIP will be the go-to document for the Authority to seek funding to

ensure that North West Leicestershire has an effective sustainable cycling and walking
network to cater for the active travel needs of current and future generations in the District.

55



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This document is the Strategy which sets out the approach that North West Leicestershire
District Council and partners intend to take at district level over the next 10 years to deliver on
the Government’s ambitions to make England a great walking and cycling nation. This, in turn,
will provide the evidence base for the Authority to develop and publish a further document,
which will be a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP).

LCWIPs are designed to allow local authorities to take a long-term approach to the development
of networks of walking and cycling routes that connect places that people need to get to,
whether for work, education, shopping or for other reasons. They are based on evidence of
existing and future travel patterns and current barriers to walking and cycling. LCWIPs include
network plans for walking and cycling which identify preferred routes and core zones for further
development, and a prioritised programme of infrastructure improvements for future investment.

The key outputs of a LCWIP are:

< A cycle and walking network plan identifying preferred routes and core zones for further
development.

<« A prioritised programme of infrastructure improvements which will drive future investment.

4 To ensure that the proposed network continues beyond the Authority’s boundary.

<« To provide a report detailing the narrative behind the prioritisation of routes and schemes.

This Strategy identifies and explores the factors which will set the right environment to enable
people to choose to travel by ‘active modes’ — cycling and walking. Examples include ensuring
that cycle training opportunity is not just restricted to children within primary school and
examining how technology can be best used to promote modal shift.

Getting more people to cycle and walk within North West Leicestershire (NWL) and beyond will:

< Enhance the area’s profile as an attractive place to live, work and visit,

< Contribute to the drive to encourage residents and visitors to increase levels of physical
activity,

< Develop healthier communities and

4 Help reduce CO2 levels and harmful particulates, such as PM2.5.

Report structure

The structure of this strategy follows a similar structure to the recently published Leicestershire
Cycling and Walking Strategy, to ensure consistency across the County. It is set out in the
following chapters:

Section 2: Scope and methodology

Section 3: North West Leicestershire district profile
Section 4: Policy context

Section 5: Cycling and walking engagement
Section 6; Vision and objectives

Section 7: Cycling priorities

Section 8: Walking priorities

Section 9; Measuring Impact

Section 10: Encouraging behavioural change
Section 11: Next steps.

A A A A A A A A A A

2021 NW Leicestershire 56Cyc|ing & Walking Strategy 1



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 2: SCOPE AND METHODOLOGY

Scope

As mentioned, the key purpose of the strategy is to develop the evidence base for a future
LCWIP, which will in turn, provide the platform for the Authority to source funding through
Central Government to improve local cycling and walking infrastructure.

The LCWIP will be produced in line with NWL'’s Local Plan, which acknowledges future
developments, such as key housing growth and areas of business development. Therefore,
future routes and areas can be developed in conjunction with known proposed developments.

Via consultation and the gathering of evidence from the Local Plan, this strategy identifies
potential cycling routes and areas for investment to support walking. Proposed cycling routes
link to the six key settlement areas and relate to employment, leisure and daily destinations. In
addition, there is also a focus on core areas within which the intention is to improve walking
infrastructure in each of the six settlements.

It is also important to note that the Strategy recognises schemes and developments beyond the
Authority’s boundary, ensuring that there is connectivity for people accessing destinations
outside NWL for a variety of reasons.

Finally, the Strategy presents key behavioural change initiatives to consider when encouraging
a modal change. There are many factors which can encourage more people to consider cycling
and walking, and those most applicable to NWL are set out.

Methodology

To develop this strategy and, in so doing, provide opportunities to create a positive behavioural
change programme, the following has been undertaken:

4

4

Literature review of all relevant documentation, including NWL’s Local Plan and the current
cycling strategies for Ashby, Kegworth and Coalville.

Participation in a range of consultation sessions with various stakeholders, to ascertain key
destinations for cycling and walking both within and beyond the Authority. A full list of
consultees is listed in Appendix A.

Produce an online survey to allow people from the wider community in NWL to express
their views and opinions.

Use has been made of the Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT), a model which identifies
potential commuter cycling routes.

A series of maps have been produced identifying where investment should be focused to
support cycling and walking. These focus on the key six areas of Ashby, Coalville, Ibstock,
Measham, Kegworth and Castle Donington; and include the following:

— Cycling maps incorporating proposed routes with key destinations.
— Walking maps displayed as heat maps to indicate where priorities for investment could
be focused.

Consultation with neighbouring local authorities to gain insight into and a fuller
understanding of current schemes and future proposals in the areas surrounding NWL, to
ensure that, wherever possible, these programmes are integrated with the cycling and
walking aspirations identified in this strategy.

2021 NW Leicestershire - g:%/cling & Walking Strategy 2



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 3: NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT PROFILE
Geographic and demographic context

NWL is in the East Midlands, located in the heart of England. It has six key main towns,
including Ashby and Coalville. The M1 motorway runs north to south through the east of the
Authority, and East Midlands Airport, which is a strategic freight centre for the country, is in the
north of the district. Due to its strategic location, NWL accommodates some large employment
areas, including the East Midlands Gateway (north of the airport) and the new Jaguar Land
Rover site (south of Measham).

The south of NWL contains the National Forest within which there are several key leisure
destinations, including Hicks Lodge and Conkers Visitors Centre. The Authority borders five
others, the longest border shared with the largest of these: South Derbyshire.

The North West Leicestershire District Council area

Hemington “&

Castle
Donington

Isley Walton

RUSHCLIFFE

SOUTH DERBYSHIRE Diseworth 5%

Belton

Worthington

Osgathorpe
£ Griffydam

Blackfordby ! Coleorton
Ashby de Thringstone
la.Zouch

. \ Swannington Whitwick y
\_,/'\\\
Willes! Packington 0
"(\;ey oy Coalville

€ Ravenstone

CHARNWOOD

Norris Hill

tretton Oakthorpe Hugglescote
en le Field Normanton
i1 Measham le Heath -
Chilcote
Ellistown
g Swepstone Heather
, Ibstock
LICHFIELD Appleby
§ | Magna Newton

Burgolang

{Appleby HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH
Parva

Creatéd by Knight, Kavanagh & Rage (www.kkp.co.uk)
@& Crown Copyright. All rights res¢rved. Licence number 100020577

(©JOpensStreetiap [CCIBYCSAS

2021 NW Leicestershire Sgycling & Walking Strategy 3



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

The population of NW
Leicestershire is currently
103,611. As is shown in
this diagram, the Authority
has slightly more females
than males (male: 51,236,
female: 52,375).

It has a lower proportion of
20-24 year olds (16.8%),
than the East Midlands
region (18.7%) but slightly
more people aged 50-54
(15.4% compared to
13.8%).

Population age structure in
NWL compared to the
regional average

East Midlands and North West
Leicestershire

90+ | '

85-89 |

80-84 |

75-79 |

70-74 |

65-69 |

60 -64 !

55-59 |

50-54 |

45-49 |

40 - 44 |

Age Range

35-30 |

30-34 |

25-29 | |

20-24 | U

, , h]
15-19 | y

10-14 |

5-9 O
0-4 ! |

3

-6.0% -4.0%
Males

— East Midlands

-2.0% 0.0%

2.0%

Percentage

4.0% 6.0%

Females

Morth West Leicestershire

Adults and Children
Uvarweight or Obage
80.0%
) 69.7% 68.5%
70.0% 64.2%
B80.0%
80.0%

JG. M
40.0% 32 Bop 33.6%
30.0%

20.0%
10.0%
0. 0%
Adults Children
m North West Leicestershire = East Midlands = England

Current levels of cycling and walking

The nation’s number one health
challenge — obesity — is a major
concern for the Authority’s local
service providers. In 2018/19,

69.7% of adults (age 18+) in NWL
were classified as overweight or
obese. This is higher than both the
regional and national averages

Healthy weight issues begin at an
early age and by year six at
school, 32.6% of NWL’s pupils
were either overweight or obese in
2019, which is slightly below both
regional and national averages.
There is clearly a role for cycling
and walking to play in helping to
address such health concerns
across the Authority.

In NWL, current levels of cycling and walking are lower than the national average. The
percentage of adults in the Authority that cycle at least three days per week was 2.4% in
2018/19. This is lower than the national average of 3.1%. Similarly, the percentage of adults
walking for at least three days per week was 18.5% in 2018/19 - this is lower than the national

average of 22.7%.

2021

NW Leicestershire - ggcling & Walking Strategy




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 4: POLICY CONTEXT

It is important for any Cycling and Walking Strategy to link to national and regional programmes
and agendas, particularly in relation to transport, the environment, behaviour change, health
and physical activity.

Almost all local authorities across England, including North West Leicestershire District Council,
have declared a climate emergency, and set a goal to become carbon neutral by 2050. The
Council has a responsibility to lead in this area to ensure that North West Leicestershire plays a
crucial role in meeting this challenge. One way to reduce the consumption of fossil fuels and
achieve this target is to create a sustainable transport network supported by a behavioural
change programme.

Increasing the number of people choosing to walk or cycle, even just for part of their journey,
will also have a positive impact on people’s health and wellbeing (physical and mental). The
benefits of regular physical activity are well known. It also has wider benefits. It is estimated that
health issues related to inactivity alone cost the NHS billions per year. In addition, it costs
society and the wider economy due to sickness and premature death among people in the
working age population.

NWLDC acknowledges the need to increase active travel through the NWL Health and
Wellbeing Strategy (2018 — 2028). A key aim of this is to provide every incentive to encourage
people to build walking and cycling into their everyday lives in the context of journeys to work, to
school, to shop and for leisure purposes. This is to be achieved by focusing on improving the
current network via, for example, better infrastructure segregation and building active travel into
future developments ensuring that cycling and walking are a go-to mode of travel, rather than a
secondary alternative.

Several national, regional and local strategies and documents identify the need, challenges and
benefits of walking and cycling.

National context
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (2017)

In 2017 the Government published its first Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy. This sets
out the Government’s ambition to make walking and cycling the natural choices for shorter
journeys or as part of longer journeys. To achieve this, it is acknowledged there will need to be
sustained investment in cycling and walking infrastructure, as well as partnership work within
and between local bodies, the third sector and the wider public and private sector to build a local
commitment.

Local and regional authorities are being encouraged to develop LCWIPS, in partnership with
other strategic organisations, to determine a long-term approach to local cycling and walking
networks, ideally over a 10-year period. Collectively these form a vital part of the Government’s
strategy to increase the number of trips made on foot or by cycle.

2021 NW Leicestershire égycling & Walking Strategy S



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

LCWIP development process

Stage Name Description
1 Determining Scope Establish the geographical extent of the LCWIP,
and arrangements for governing and preparing
the plan.
2 Gathering Identify existing patterns of walking and cycling
Information and potential new journeys. Review existing

conditions and identify barriers to cycling and
walking. Review related transport and land use
policies and programmes.

3 Network Planning Identify origin and destination points and cycle
for Cycling flows. Convert flows into a network of routes and
determine the type of improvements required.
4 Network Planning Identify key trip generators, core walking zones
for Walking and routes, audit existing provision and
determine the type of improvements required.
5 Prioritising Prioritise improvements to develop a phased
Improvements programme for future investment.
6 Integration and Integrate outputs into local planning and
Application transport policies, strategies, and delivery plans.

Gear Change: A bold vision for cycling and walking (2020)

The contention of this strategy is that cycling and walking can help tackle some of the most
challenging issues facing society today; improving air quality, combating climate change,
improving health and wellbeing, addressing inequalities and tackling road congestion. Despite
fewer people travelling overall during the COVID pandemic, there has been a 100% increase in
weekday cycling and walking. On some weekends, that increase has been around 200%. The
Government is keen to build upon this opportunity before people slip back to old behaviours.

The Government’s stated vision is to make England a great walking and cycling nation ensuring
that cycling and/or walking become the first choice(s) for travel with half of all journeys in towns
and cities being cycled or walked by 2030.To achieve this, it has established four key themes:

4 Better streets for cycling and people: the ambition is to create thousands of miles of safe,
continuous, direct routes for cycling in towns and cities, physically separated from
pedestrians and motor traffic, serving the places that people want to go.

< Putting cycling and walking at the heart of transport, place-making, and health policy:
spending will be significantly increased to create a long-term cycling and walking programme
and budget, similar to the roads programme. In addition, new local and strategic A road
schemes include appropriate provision for cycling.

< Empowering and encouraging local authorities: this will result in significant increased funding
for local authorities and also new powers to enforce against moving traffic offences such as
disregarding one-way systems or entering mandatory cycle lanes.

< Enable people to cycle and walk more and protect them when doing so: there will be a drive
to offer more cycling training opportunities for both adults and children through the Bikeability
programme, resulting in increased confidence to cycle. In addition, there will be more of a
focus to work with the NHS and other partners, incentivising GPs to prescribe walking and
cycling into individual health plans.

2021 NW Leicestershire - g]\_/cling & Walking Strategy 6



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Cycle Infrastructure Design - Local Transport Note 1/20 (LTN1/20)

The National Cycling and Walking Plan also recognised that, in order to deliver the intended
increases in cycling, the quality of cycling infrastructure must dramatically improve. LTN1/20,
launched in tandem with the Plan, details of the quality of infrastructure required.

<« Cyclists must be separated from volume traffic, both at junctions and on the stretches of road
between them.

Cyclists must be separated from pedestrians.

Cyclists must be treated as vehicles, not pedestrians.

Routes must be integrated; isolated stretches of good provision are of little value.

Routes must feel direct, logical and be intuitively understandable by all road users.

Routes and schemes must take account of how users actually behave.

Purely cosmetic alterations should be avoided.

Barriers, such as chicane barriers and dismount signs, should be avoided.

Routes should be designed only by those who have experienced the road on a cycle.

A A A A A A A A

LTN1/20 also stresses that design should be inclusive, beginning with the principle that all
potential cyclists and their bikes should be catered for in all cycle infrastructure design and that
authorities which bid for government funding for cycling and walking infrastructure, must ensure
that their designs comply with LTN1/20.

Working Together to Promote Active Travel - A briefing for local authorities, Public
Health England (2016)

This document sets out why active travel is so important due to its role as a form of daily
physical activity. It details how even small increases in physical activity among those who are
the least active can bring great health benefits. Many benefits of physical activity are
recognised, including lower death rates, lower risk of heart problems and depression. It
highlights that inactivity directly contributes to one in six deaths in the UK. Furthermore, over
one quarter of adults in England reportedly do fewer than 30 minutes of physical activity a week
with the concomitant impact on people’s health and wellbeing.

Motorised transport is recognised as having many benefits although the cost of road transport to
society is still high, contributing to immediate and longer-term health hazards and health
inequalities such as:

Increased disease burden due to reduced levels of physical activity.
Road traffic collisions and injuries.

Air pollution.

Noise.

Reduced social cohesion and increased social isolation for many.

A A A A A

The UK is demonstrably behind many European countries in respect of levels of active travel
and the impact this is having on the nation’s health, including in relation to childhood obesity.
Recent analysis of Active People Survey data has shown that people who cycle for travel
purposes are four times as likely to meet physical activity guidelines than to those who do not.

Given the trends observed in countries with the high levels of active travel and low obesity rates,
investment in both walking and cycling infrastructure and behaviour change programmes can be
expected to deliver low cost, high-value dividends for individual health, the NHS, the transport
system and the economy as a whole.

2021 NW Leicestershire égycling & Walking Strategy 7



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Both Bristol and Cambridgeshire are cited as successful examples of increasing active travel as
a result of improvements to the road network, e.g., reducing speed limits for motorised transport
and changing behaviours and attitudes towards cycling and walking. In Bristol, cycle commuting
rose by 94% between 2001 and 2011 and commuting on foot by 40%.

Active Design: Planning for health and wellbeing through sport and physical activity,
Sport England (2015)

Sport England’s Active Design looks at the opportunities to encourage sport and physical
activity through the built environment in order to support healthier and more active lifestyles. It
sets out ten principles that should be considered during urban design to promote environments
that offer individuals and communities the greatest potential to lead active and healthy lifestyles.

Ten principles of active design

Activity
for all
Activity
promotion & Walkable
local champions communities
/Qq
Management, Connected
maintenance, walking &
me?rl:ltsuntrilogn& = M G\ cycling routes
o Y

Active imamW Colocation
buildings Sy of community
facilities

oo (LS
Appropriate = “. ’, Network of
infrastructure multifunctional

open space
High quality
streets & spaces

All these link to values associated with active travel. The principles of Walkable Communities
and Connected Walking & Cycling Routes directly reference active travel. Others, such as
Activity for all, Co-location of Community Facilities and Network of Multifunctional Open Space
also relate strongly to active travel. They reference the need for areas to be accessible to all
and multifunctional, with a range of facilities serving a wide variety of community needs. This will
reduce the number and length of trips needed to access facilities increasing the likelihood that
people will, thus, walk or cycle.

Active Design should be promoted through all planning activity, including local and
neighbourhood plans, using clear policy support within the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) and its supporting Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). Many Active Design principles
are already implicit within overlapping disciplines related to open space and landscape,
transport, access and design.

2021 NW Leicestershire - 8ycling & Walking Strategy 8



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

20-Minute Neighbourhoods, Town and Country Planning Association (2021)

The growing idea of the '20-minute neighbourhood’ is a way of describing a complete, compact
and connected neighbourhood, where people can meet their everyday needs within a short walk
or cycle. The Town and Country Planning Association (TCPA) have been working with partners
to explore and introduce the idea to the wider planning system in England.

Features of 20-minute neighbourhood

Diverse and
affordable homes
22
A place for Well connected paths,
all ages | | 0 | streefs, and spaces
0 2 @

bty

C Features of a
\29,) 20-minute
neighbourhood
Community health and Schools at the heart
wellbeing facilities of communities

g )=

Keeping jobs and gg Good green spaces
money local in the right places

Regional and local context
Leicestershire’s Cycling and Walking Strategy

Leicestershire County Council is committed to increase levels of active travel across the county
and has set three targets, identified in its strategy, to meet the challenges of improving public
health, air quality and congestion over the next 10 years:

< Increase cycle and walking trips to schools and education by 10%
< Increase commuting cycle and walking trips to employment by 10%
< Increase the levels of walking and cycling trips in the county by 15%

To achieve this, it is looking to create change, by using two levers; Infrastructure and Enabling
and Encouraging across the County. Infrastructure will consider things including improving way
markings and public realm and creating dedicated cycle infrastructure. The lever of Enabling
and Encouraging will focus on behavioural change elements, including promoting cycle training
for all and the delivery of regular promotional events. The County Council will work with all
regional authorities to create this change.

2021 NW Leicestershire éz?ycling & Walking Strategy 9



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Leicestershire County Council: Environment Strategy 2018 — 2030: Delivering a better
future

There are clear drivers for action to protect and improve the environment and to tackle climate
change at a global, national and local level. The County Council is building on its longstanding
commitment to the environment and taking action to; reduce the impact of its operations on the
environment, its contribution to climate change and to ensure its assets are resilient to the
effects of climate change. The diagram below sets out the Strategy’s aim and vision.

To reduce carbon emissions through travel and transport, the County Council will work with all
nine local authorities to enhance the County’s green infrastructure and to ensure this is
integrated across the County.

Leicestershire County Council: Environment strategy’s vision and aims

Leicestershire County Council will minimise the environmental impact of its activities
and will improve the wider environment through local action. We will play our full part
to protect the environment of Leicestershire. We will tackle climate change and embed

environmental sustainability into what we do.

Carbon &
Climate Change
Impacts

Resource Use. g TTravel 8.l
and Low / Zero ranspor
Carbon Energy

Leicester & Leicestershire 2050: Our vision for growth (Strategic Growth Plan)

The vision is that the county will have established itself as a driver of the UK economy,
exploiting opportunities for linkages across its diverse economic base, supporting its urban and
rural centres, and taking advantage of its exceptional location. It focuses on four key matters:

< Delivering new housing

4 Supporting the economy

< Identifying essential infrastructure, and

< Protecting our environment and built heritage.

As part of this growth strategy, developing a good infrastructure is key. The Strategy identifies
several key projects which will support the conurbation’s growth. These include the A46 priority
growth corridor and the A5 expressways, which should both be built by the early 2030s. This is
in addition to other key projects, including HS2.

Given the scale of development and the number of projects, there will also be a focus to

increase sustainable transport, including the development of an integrated safe cycle network
both within and between urban areas, to support the growing population.

2021 NW Leicestershire - ggcling & Walking Strategy 10



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

North West Leicestershire Local Plan (2017)

The vision of the Local Plan is to transform the Authority from a former coalfield area
characterised by environmental degradation, a struggling economy and poor connections into a
place fit for the 21 century. To achieve this, the Council has a number of objectives, including
the development of high-quality green infrastructure network across the Authority and beyond. A
good quality green infrastructure network is important because it can provide many social,
economic and environmental benefits, enhance health and wellbeing and improve air quality.

Through working with key organisations, NWLDC plans to review and upgrade the current
Green Infrastructure network. It will also ensure that any new development is supported with
high quality green infrastructure, in the same way that grey infrastructure (e.g., roads and
sewers) is required to be developed or enhanced in line for any new development. The Local
Plan also lists proposed housing growth areas over the next five years. It is important to
recognised these, as they will influence future proposed routes or investment to encourage
future sustainable travel. Key growth areas include?:

4 South East Coalville (Coalville Urban Extension) - 3,500 dwellings (estimated population of
8,400)

< Money Hill, Ashby - 2,050 dwellings (estimated population of 4,900)

< Land north and south of Park Lane, Castle Donington — 900 dwellings (estimated
population of 2,160)

4 Measham Waterside Development - 450 dwellings (estimated population of 1,080)

Local Cycling Strategies

There are two local cycling strategies produced by the District Council. These are:

4 Ashby Cycling Strategy (2016)
< Coalville Cycling Strategy (2012)

Both follow a similar format which is to:

< Identify key destinations within and surrounding the towns.
< Review the existing network and identify provisional gaps.
< Provide proposals, in relation to the current network, connecting to destinations.

In addition, Ashby Town Council has produced a draft Cycle Strategy (2021) which, similar to
the 2016 document, identifies the potential cycle network in and around Ashby de la Zouch. The
priorities for the Town Council includes:

< Connecting the town centre to Hicks Lodge - The proposed route would connect the town
centre to Hicks Lodge via Willesley Recreation Ground.

< Nottingham Road - Develop a safe cycle route to connect users to the town centre and
towards Lount in the opposite direction.

Kegworth Cycling and Walking Strategy (2021)

! National occupancy rate of 2.4 persons per dwelling has been used to calculate estimated
populations.

2021 NW Leicestershire é()CycIing & Walking Strategy 11



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Sustrans produced a cycling and walking strategy for Kegworth that investigates current
journeys and forecasts future development helping to inform part of the evidence base for
delivering new and improved routes.

Following the LCWIP guidance, the Strategy has identified demand using the Propensity to
Cycle Tool (https://www.pct.bike/) and overlayed this with the current network to identify current
gaps in provision and possible investment opportunities.

As part of strategy development, the current network was reviewed to assess its quality.
Recommendations have been made in respect of where investment is required to ensure that
cycling follows the Local Transport Note 1/20 (LTN1/20). The strategy process also incorporated
a review of key pedestrian routes in the town centre and made recommendations for
improvements.

Interim Coalville Transport Strategy (2021)

Coalville is the principal town of the North West Leicestershire District. As such, it is identified by
the District Council and Leicestershire County Council as a key area for significant growth and
regeneration in the period up to 2031. This includes 4,300 new dwellings in the Coalville Urban
Area. As part of this growth, through the latest interim Coalville Transport Strategy, the Local
Authority applied for additional funding to support the infrastructure in the area, with a focus on
the A511 from the A42 to the M1. The revenue was from the Major Road Network (MRN) fund.

Work has already begun, with several highway projects completed and more planned in the
future to reflect the growth. As part of the series of schemes there is also a priority to improve
cycling and walking infrastructure in and around the corridor which this strategy references.

National Forest: Heart of the Forest Strategy (2021)

The latest masterplan for the Heart of the Forest (covering 10 square miles at the heart of the
National Forest) is a conceptual plan with clear proposals to positively develop and improve the
forest landscape for the benefit of local communities and visitors. These proposals include:

< Create a visitor hub and gateway to the National Forest at Hicks Lodge.
< Identify sites for accommodation throughout the Forest - including pods and lodges.
< Utilise the lakes for wild swimming, beach, kayaking and other unpowered water sports.

North West Leicestershire: The Climate Emergency

The Local Authority has set a target for the whole District to become carbon neutral by 2050 and
this report focuses on the measures required to achieve net zero greenhouse gas emissions.
These measures include:

< Retrofit of existing authority owned buildings or buildings operated by the Council (e.g.
Council’'s offices) to become more sustainable.

<« Installation of wind turbines on Council’s land.

< Devise and implement plans for every green space owned by the council to enrich carbon
capture and storage.

< Ensuring electric charging points are ubiquitous throughout the Authority, especially at
strategic car parks.

2021 NW Leicestershire - g%/cling & Walking Strategy 12


https://www.pct.bike/

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

High Speed Rail 2
High Speed 2 (HS2) is currently the largest rail infrastructure project in Europe.
It is being developed in three phases:

4 Phase 1: Will connect London with Birmingham
<« Phase 2a: Will connect Birmingham with Manchester
<« Phase 2b: Will connect Birmingham to East Midlands Parkway.

The proposed Eastern leg of Phase 2b from West Midlands to East Midlands Parkway travels
through the north of the District. The route is illustrated in image below. It is uncertain how the
proposals listed in the strategy will be affected by HS Rail 2, however, once further details of the
rail route are known, the LCWIP will assess scheme impact.

High Speed Rail 2 route through North West Leicestershire

Mickieover ttenberough  Clifton Cdarave
Pear Borrowash
Tree Alvaston Long ESGTGn

Sunnyhill Ruddington
Allenton
Keyworth
Chellaston

on

Swadlincote 1
Shepshed | oughborough

Ashby-de
la-Zouch
Whitwick
Sileby

Coalville

East Gosco

2021 NW Leicestershire égycling & Walking Strategy 13



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 5: CYCLING AND WALKING ENGAGEMENT

A range of individuals and organisations have been engaged to ensure this strategy considers
and reflects a wide range of views. These were captured via four phases of consultation:

< Public consultation: An online survey was established to allow an opportunity for the public
to have its say on where priorities should be directed towards to supporting cycling and
walking. The list of questions are presented in Appendix B.

<« Stakeholder engagement: All interested parties, including, local cycling clubs, rambling
organisations and strategic bodies were invited to take part in virtual face to face
consultation to discuss their views on cycling and walking.

4 Town and parish councils; A specific session was undertaken to identify the key cycling and

walking destinations within all town and parish councils, as viewed by parish clerks and

local elected members.

<« Neighbouring authority engagement: These were consulted with to understand the current
and future ambitions they have for cycling and walking.

A summary of the consultation findings are presented below.

Public consultation

The online survey secured the views of 166 respondents, thereby providing data with a
confidence limit? of +/-6.1%. Consequently, while the data is indicative of public opinion and
behaviour it is recommended that its results are not used in isolation but are taken as support

for a wider range of evidence and opinions gathered.

An online survey was conducted
summer 2021 exploring the following:

< Residents current purposes for
cycling and walking.

< Key destinations for these
journeys.

< What improvements would
encourage more people to cycle
and walk in the future.

Overall, most people surveyed cycle
for leisure (94%) and walk for general
exercise purposes (92.4%).

Over half of respondents walk to do
everyday activities (54.6%). With less
than one quarter cycling to do
everyday activities (24.1%).

A lower proportion of respondents’
cycle (17.5%) or walk (20%) to/from
work and/or /school.

§17.5%
94%

f24.1%

o 8.4%

oo

PEOPLE CYGLE...

To travel to/from
work/school

For leisure

To undertake everyday
activities

Other

PEOPLE WALK...

To get to work/school

§ 20%

For general exercise

92.4%
To undertake everyday
activities 54.6%

Oth
- 015.1%

2 represents how often the true percentage of the population who would pick an answer lies within the confidence limit

2021

NW Leicestershire - ggcling & Walking Strategy 14




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

To encourage increased levels of cycling, respondents were keen to see better cycling provision
both on highway and also for off road journeys. Respondents were also keen to see better cycle
parking infrastructure, including safe cycle parking at destination points.

What are the most important ways to encourage people to cycle more?

Response Percentage
Better highway provision, including segregated highways 84.6%
Better cycle parking at specific venues 53.1%
Route markers 34.0%
Availability of E-Bikes, as a way of encouraging beginners to cycle 27.8%
Finance schemes to help people purchase bikes 27.2%
Improved opportunities for cycle training 19.8%
Other (please state) 14.2%

To encourage people to walk more, respondents wished to see safer routes including better
lighting and safer public realm. In addition, they wanted better pedestrian links between public
transport nodes to encourage multi modal journeys and to discourage people from using cars.

What are the most important ways to encourage people to walk more?

Response Percentage
Safer routes, including well lit paths, etc. 72.5%
Better highway design - surfaces/wider pavements 45.6%

Better public transport links to key areas to encourage more people to leave their car

0
at home 40.9%
Improved pedestrianised areas in town centres 36.8%
Other (please state) 12.3%

Stakeholder consultation

A wide range of key organisations and local interest groups were consulted with. These
included local cycling clubs, rambling organisations and strategic bodies (such as the NWLDC,
the County Council and the Primary Care Network). A list of all stakeholders is in Appendix A.

Information ascertained from these sessions included local knowledge of current network and a
range of ideas about where and how investment should be directed to improve integration. It
has also meant that this strategy is underpinned by a strong understanding of the nature and
impact of current initiatives to encourage more people to become active and what may be
required in the future to expand and improve these programmes.

2021 NW Leicestershire ?gycling & Walking Strategy 15



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Parish and Town Councils, and ward consultation

The parish/town councils for the six main settlements along with local ward members were met
with (virtually) to discuss existing provision, issues and aspirations relating to cycling and
walking. For all other parishes, a survey was sent.

In addition, a specific one-off event was organised to ensure the views of all elected district
council members were captured as part of the work.

The session was formed around the following themes:

<« Perceived key destinations for cycling and walking within your ward.
< What other initiatives would increase the level of cycling and walking in the locality and
across NWL?

For those who could not attend the open consultation forum, an online survey was available

Key destinations identified through the stakeholder engagement are set out in Section 7. In
addition, each scheme per area is ranked in terms of development priority. For example, in
Ashby, the link from the town centre to Hicks Lodge has been listed as the most important

project.

Answers to the second question were in keeping with the public consultation responses, with
safer, practical infrastructure required within all key urban areas a high priority. In addition, there
was a focus on ensuring routes link up with future housing growth areas, as identified in the
Local Plan. For example, the proposed Coalville Urban Extension will have over 2,000 new
dwellings.

Neighbouring local authority consultation

All the surrounding neighbouring local authorities were consulted. Differing responses were
received as some local authorities do not have aspirations or plans which affect NWL. The table
below sets out any relevant aspirations of neighbouring local authorities.

It must be noted that the projects listed below are only proposals, and no detailed feasibility
work has been undertaken. It will be the responsibility of NWL to work with these authorities, to
ensure that the listed projects are integrated with projects within the Authority’s boundary if and
when they may happen.

2021 NW Leicestershire - %\_/cling & Walking Strategy 16



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Neighbouring local authority aspirations

Ref | Authority Scheme Route details
1 | Rushcliffe Upgrade A453 with Upgrade the A453 with dedicated cycling infrastructure
dedicated cycle lanes | from the Airport/Enterprise Gateway to Nottingham.
This proposal will require support from NWLDC to
complete the route.
Scheme will also support the proposal for Long Lane,
creating links with Kegworth, East Midlands Parkway
and the new Power Station development.

2 | Rushcliffe Create additional links | The River Soar, which links Leicester to the River

onto the Soar Valley Trent is a popular river walk/cycle route. Rushcliffe

Trail Council would like to see improved links off the route,
enhancing it to destinations such as Kegworth and
Castle Donington.

3 | Rushcliffe Develop a cycle link Kegworth has a strong student population. Providing a

from Kegworth to safe link to Sutton Bonington would encourage more

Sutton Bonington students to cycle from the town to the campus.

(Nott’s University)

4 | South Upgrade of the Trent The River Trent runs through the south of the authority
Derbyshire | Valley Way through of South Derbyshire. The Authority has ambitions to

South Derbyshire. upgrade the path to support cycling and walking.

5 | South Connecting NCN 6 The proposed route will consist of a spur off the NCN
Derbyshire | with the NCN 63 with a | 6, which will connect to the NCN 63 in Swadlincote.

dedicated route The route will run north of Ashby.

6 | Hinckley Upgrade Ashby Canal | HBC has plans to upgrade the Ashby-de-la- Zouch
and towpath surface for Canal Towpath which runs north to south. It begins in
Bosworth cycling and walking. Measham and runs through to Nuneaton. HBC would

like to upgrade the path to create a leisure link
between Market Bosworth and Hinckley.

2021

NW Leicestershire ?Eycling & Walking Strategy 17




€L

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Neighbouring authority’s cycling and walking aspiration -
ASO X (i EREWASH North West Leicestershire
4 Neighbouring authorities
A NGN-"GG 19 . .
(A50); ) - N - H Cycling priority route
atd) r— ol : National Cycle Network (NCN)
= =2 | Settlement area
Q¥Castle L RUSHCLIFFE |0 North West Leicestershire
& Dpningtop_.-"’ 2
SOUTH DERBYSHIRE —
Swadthcote sughborough
- -‘ o } ¢ . "‘. -
i\ Ashby-de Ia-Zouch (A4
' Pt N
Zowehs (®)
A
2} CHARNWOOD
&D) A
Méa‘sham
LICHFIELD i
@ HINCKLEY
~_ AND BOSWORTH
NORTH % %
WARWICKSHIRE \AC\*"'
fam am\

18

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 6: VISION AND OBJECTIVES
The following vision and objectives could look to be agreed with key strategic partners.

Vision

For North West Leicestershire to become a district where walking and cycling are safe,
accessible, and obvious choices for short journeys. This will be achieved by creating a safe,
attractive, integrated cycling and walking network, and by using a range of behavioural
change initiatives.

Objectives
Create a highway infrastructure to support and encourage cycling and walking for all.

To develop an accessible, safe cycling and walking network, with relevance to and links with
employment, leisure, education and everyday destinations. This network will be underpinned by
the following objectives - to:

< Ensure that current and future networks are of a high standard
There is a need to guarantee that the current network is brought up to, and future cycling
and walking infrastructure is developed at, a high standard - to ensure that people feel safe
and confident using these networks. This includes excellent road/track/path surfaces,
correct, visible and easily understood sighage and adequate lighting. This will necessitate a
technical review of the current network and upgrading where present provision is rated
unsatisfactory.

4 Strike an appropriate balance between the needs of all road users
Whilst safe and integrated cycling and walking infrastructure is required, there is also a
need to ensure that urban (and all) areas still offer appropriate access for other road users.
Where needed, safe segregation or improved traffic calming measures should be
implemented. Over-restricting access to certain road users could adversely affect the local
economy and those who may have limited accessibility of walking and cycling networks

< Make all new schemes and infrastructure optimally inclusive and accessible to all
Cycling and walking should be available via an infrastructure designed to be inclusive. For
example, feasible cycle paths should be sufficiently wide to accommodate adaptive bikes
and walking infrastructure should be suitable for people with a visual impairment, i.e. with
tactile pavements.

< Integrate existing and future networks with public transport hubs
Integrating walking and cycling with public transport is essential wherever possible to make
it easier for people to leave their cars at home and build active travel into regular journeys
to work or school. This includes developing high quality walking routes and providing
secure cycle parking infrastructure at public transport hubs.

< Work with key destination venues/agencies to secure their support for cycling and walking.
Work with strategic destination venues (i.e., major shopping and leisure centres,
workplaces and schools) to make cycling and walking a preferred choice of transport when
travelling to and from them. This includes reviewing physical infrastructure and making sure
that options such as safe cycle parking/storage, access and changing facilities are
available.

2021 NW Leicestershire ?Eycling & Walking Strategy 19




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Work with key partners to create a greener infrastructure

To develop an attractive cycling and walking network, partnership work across a range of
platforms will be required. This includes active collaboration with key organisations such as
Sustrans with regard to design principles and links with provision in neighbouring authorities to
ensure that networks extend beyond NWL’s authority boundary.

Ringfencing funding to support cycling and walking infrastructure

It will be essential to ensure that local growth funding, such as Section 106 receipts, is
ringfenced to support local cycling and walking infrastructure, particularly where it is directly
physically aligned and/or relevant to a particular development. In addition, any related central
government funding also needs to be ringfenced.

Developing and supporting behavioural change processes and opportunities

It is important to ensure that improvements in infrastructure are accompanied and supported by
appropriate behavioural change initiatives. This relates directly to the ambition to influence
people’s attitudes to walking and cycling and helping to address barriers and/or build upon
motivating factors that will enable them to make positive active travel and/or physical activity
habit changes.

This can include offering cycle training to all residents (rather than limiting this to just children)
or working with local primary care trusts to expand cycling and health referral programmes. The
range of possible initiatives is discussed in more detail in Section 9.

It must be noted that any listed behavioural change initiative is intrinsically linked with the need
to develop a high quality, safe cycling and walking network. Without a high-quality network, any
behavioural change initiative will not be as successful.

2021 NW Leicestershire - %Cling & Walking Strategy 20



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 7: CYCLING PRIORITIES
Introduction
This section identifies the cycling priorities for the six key urban areas. As mentioned earlier in

the strategy, these are informed by the consultation and prioritised based on importance and
potential impact.

Each scheme has been prioritised along with
the type of journeys it would support, which are
defined as the following:

< Everyday journeys: trips to the shops,
visiting friends,

<« Employment: accessing sites for
employments.

<« Safer routes to school: travelling for
education.

<« Leisure: walking or cycling for exercise
purposes.

The priorities also take account of the National
Propensity to Cycle Toolkit (PCT).

Propensity for Cycle Toolkit (PCT)

This is an online interactive planning support tool to provide an evidence base to inform
investment in cycling. Based on modelling, it considers which commuting trips could most likely
be able to switch to cycling. Based on Census data it offers four different scenarios of change.
These were designed to help develop understanding about which areas and routes have the
highest potential for cycling under different sets of assumptions. These assumptions include:

< Government target - assumes that cycling levels double nationally and uses trip distance
and hilliness to predict which trips would switch.

4 Gender equality - models the trips generated if women have the same propensity to cycle
a given trip as men.

< Go Dutch - draws on Dutch Travel Survey data to estimate what cycling levels would be
observed if England acquired Dutch cycling infrastructure and Dutch cycling culture but kept
its current trip distances and hilliness.

4 E-bikes - takes Go Dutch even further and uses additional data on how e-bike ownership
encourages longer trips and overcomes hilliness.

To illustrate this model, the Go Dutch scenario has been presented across the six settlement
areas in the table below. This helps to analyse the routes which have the greatest propensity to
increase cycling. The last column details the increase in cycling should that route be upgraded
to a standard similar to the infrastructure and behaviour found within the Netherlands.

It must be noted that using this tool is only one element of the overall process and the data used

as part of the modelling is from 2011 Census. The data does not pick up the current quality of
routes, links to education and if any new housing/employment areas have been created.

2021 NW Leicestershire ?gycling & Walking Strategy 21



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Go Dutch scenario

Area Proposed route % Increase of people
likely to cycle
Coalville Coalville to Ellistown 32.7%
Ashby East to West Town Centre improvements 32.8%
Kegworth Sutton Bonington/Castle Donington and Long Eaton. 4.6%
Measham Local journeys/Swadlincote 17.3%
Ibstock Local journeys 42.6%
Castle Donington | Local journeys 48.0%

All the identified routes are illustrated in the maps below. These are numerically ranked in terms
of which route has the highest propensity for change (one being the highest). The top-ranking
routes are depicted in blue, with the remaining routes in red.

Cycle route prioritisation

Routes are prioritised based on the importance of the need and on the impact the route will
have to increasing modal shift. This has been agreed through consultation with NWLDC officers
and ward councillors. There are no set timescales with the priorities being identified to help be
ready if/when funding is available.

The tables also detail the following considerations:

Linking in with the existing network and key destinations:

It is important to ensure the routes listed link up with the existing network along with key destinations.
These include the current National Cycle Network of which two, NCN 6 and NCN 63, pass through
NWL. In addition, there is a need to ensure routes connect to key destinations such as employment,
education and leisure destinations.

Acknowledging current cycling strategies:

Three local cycling strategies currently exist in Ashby, Kegworth, and Coalville. These strategies list the
priorities for these respective areas. It is important to ensure that this strategy acknowledges and
complements the priorities listed in these existing documents.

Ensuring routes are accessible for all:

It is important to guarantee that routes are accessible for all users. Accessibility will ensure that cycle
lanes/paths are wide enough for all types of bikes, steps and other obstacles are limited, and that
barriers and potholes are reduced.

Acknowledging neighbouring authority’s priorities:

Consultation was undertaken with all neighbouring local authorities to understand their priorities for
cycling and to ensure that the proposals in this strategy link with neighbouring LA’s priorities. See
previous chapter.

Summary of cycle network proposals

The final map in this chapter displays all projects overlayed with the current National Cycle
Network. It is hoped that this will illustrate the future integrated aspirations of the Authority.

2021 NW Leicestershire - %cling & Walking Strategy 22



8.

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Coalville Propensity to Cycle map

{1 Coalville
Routes

— Greatest potential for change

Other routes with potential for change

[ District boundary
Urban area

“&&Eu’nh T g /
- i H|ll“'--:'..r 07
T._t-r" x.j‘:-~ 4 “".fl.mkmgq e FETF

- * _{_l_nLamus

ﬁE 218 3 ]'II: ﬁ; _m_:, -.f'l.rl:in:r'nr[-. {
Quarry .Eﬂ,gﬂ?"-r-ﬁ S AT e
AR /,L’ Bardon Drive

4 . L

L 'I:% ;

Wt:lr = o Warkings
atl s o

i ’w,."" s -"-, 42 o e e
Jjg' 2wl I R Tty S g |
A e W AT L A AL
Yo A b i, b A L .\_.-'__.-"' '\-\.:h'. L \
y "*'4?... . .-:Hh%fhwl:xjfklu-)f?ﬂ k ﬁl'll EEFIFF;-H G_I"HHEIE: = "‘F
B E=F N8 BT A '::f";'.'- 3 F%- ., N\ Friss e

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

23



6.

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Coalville proposed cycle routes

.""/gj *x-’ | h}:_mlt

/

) ' o A

.'"-"Z& pBotany g

[ e b "rg _'BEV S
H ! e

\‘\f’} .. e W Y, %

T R T B - V[T & PEL Y - -
¥y -fﬁ;;‘f?%rﬂf““__ - .;b,j North West Leicestershire
. M = Gradaiﬂié‘ﬁ Manor e B Coalville
Y AR I S Sch) 4 ey
i I X y Lol _.-__ ! A
e Sl [ hE-'.-”gﬁ‘EJE[ ﬁ;ﬁf--tzzm_ i 1y ?’ﬁ Local cycle network
N | g » ﬁ"_ RER J_fgaacﬁérs',\r.g .| ®-®-8-® National Cycle Network (NCN)
PN ) 3 Tl SRS ) = g Lorngr 0 [y
! P s g s ] L"‘.'"'I AT £ \\E-n" . N
s P S [0 Ak 20 =l Y Cycling priority
LB p g bos S A 17 \ - i
iy é;'.r 4 . g b ;’j&']l’»;.m‘* -'7?:-,_‘:\- 5 "LI:
~ormmog?” o = e LT F/\\\l‘} o
/R - C ) ‘;ﬂ: KEY destination sites by type

% | Employment

S0 ] Leisure

| Housing growth

| Outer suburb
Coalville boundary

S | “\\Bﬁ%"E]liﬁa_wnﬁJ
\_\’\ L ‘\'5,"* N i

A
B T

l‘ . -:-"’. “\‘-'ﬂ 1.0 l‘ .. o . T ’ |JIII . ! { z ...._.. . :".
Cattgws 73" I'Ejlw. ' st Fo i — NPT Eat T
Fm & N )t 40 2l —— %ist T 7 .
I

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

- E_}..-t' \.:s
gl Wl A ellamis
T argy kil i b Rt
5 L ré AT E_ -.i ; p oLy e Edrtiimer
e T U Quarry A S8raansg St . ASE - Sa = =a=
e Al It g —=
- ~'¢x\.§'-.xElard0rt I _1._’ 7 i< Bardon Drive

3 Teeam V'
-f'-_ - r g .
Af%&!ﬁdon ;’;‘ 4 Warkings
~ Tl .

l‘:\' . W " -"7.- 7 N v =if ‘;-;Q-b-“' i
! _a'l' N\ \'*i "\' o g Rt &&b 03

[55S - i
j—%ﬂﬂr_“" '_Sti—lﬂt.‘fﬂ_‘f}

= o s ol e U J /88 et | i

"; -8 : il il = i Ly e . Pt E . PRl

i _ I ; oo TRl = ~ I S [y e B g b

s & o e S L et et N D) “Wie | (i Battletiat

i °d by 1 ! A Hﬁ%e 9 CO ] ._. ; .E;_‘?‘:_;.=_ .ﬂf__ifr-!_ ".II | ‘ ~ Ak 1|a|'C!'=;_| -|’ 4I1ﬂdg“e-l- Z lh".. ‘.';-i-'m'!u‘fr'#'-!*'c.\ T

R TN G
. C et j:'[ _f’ueh i
Timberwaod T =) 1 :-I'I;J

I,
[ )_l-'_-l \: ~ [
‘i/./ ,i.lfalh .rL tﬁ;ﬁ“'ﬂ ;Ir !:_.?
__E?Grmnhill_ll_qxd_?é i Shud % :
: Frm ,:,{ Ul %{ %.\'[
X! all W, -
Charief Mif_Fm

N

.||-|I||.-':i.

i =

) £ -iW?fkiﬂgﬂ, o ‘E"?_"'fl

UL LLR S

Feym

g7

24



08

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Coalville proposed cycle routes

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Measuring the impact | PCT model Cycle network Coalville Cycling Strategy
number ranking provision
1 1 East to West Improve east/west cycle provision | Provide an east west route through | Leisure 4,6,8 Parts of the route with | There is a proposed route covering the
route through through the town centre. This will | the Town Centre. Employment current on highway east/west link currently. This is referenced
Town Centre link existing provision on the Safe Routes to School cycle provision and as scheme 22a/b/c.
A511. This should also be Dailv Journevs small sections also link | pProposed diversion around back of
supported by additional traffic y y with the NCN 52. Coalville but route should aspire to be direct
calming measures. along route 1.
2 3 Coalville to As part of the Coalville Urban Provide off road routes between the | Leisure 1,2, 3. No existing network. No current proposals
Hugglescote/ Area Extension there are plans to | town centre to Ellistown/Sence Employment
Ellistown/Sence | upgrade the disused LMS line Valley upgrading former rail line.
Valley (London, Midland and Scottish This will be linked with two major
Railway Line) to support links to | housing growth areas; Hugglescote
Sence Valley/Ellistown/Bardon Grange and Swinfen Vale which will
Industrial estate for both cycling result in 2,700 new dwellings being
and walking. delivered over the next 10 years.
Access along the current line also
needs to be addressed (a fence
currently prevents access).
3 2,6,8 North to South | Improve cycle provision on Belvoir | Provide a north south route through | Leisure 7.9, 10 No existing network. Scheme 13 and 27 addresses some of the
through the Road/Central Road/ Mantle Lane | the Town Centre. Employment north/south link, however, the proposal is
Town Centre between the junction of Central This would also ensure there is a Safe Routes to School not fully integrated with the Town Centre.
Road/ Forest Road to the junction | Jink from the town centre to Daily Journeys
of A511. Similar with option 1, this Stephenson Co”ege, the new
should be supported by additional | eisure Centre and Whitwick.
traffic calming measures. It will also link in with any
redevelopment of Hermitage Rec
Ground.
4 4 Coalville to Strategic link required between Provide a safe off-road route Leisure n/a No existing network. No current proposals
Ashby Coalville and Ashby between the two towns, creating a Employment
strategic link along the A511.
5 7 Coalville to Direct link from the town centre Encourage cycling as a mode of Employment 28 This proposal would The enhancement is covered through
Coalville north east providing links from choice from the centre of town to Daily Journeys provide the link proposal Route 17.
Community Coalville to Coalville Community the hospital and major educational Safe Routes to School between the current
Hospital/Castle | Hospital and also two educational | establishments. provision on the A5111
Rock School establishments. and Meadow Lane.
6 5 Sence Valley Spur off the current NCN 52 to Create an integrated network Leisure 20 NCN runs along the No current proposals
Forest Park link to Sence Valley. between the destination site and site.
the current network.
7 9 Connecting Utilising the disused rail line north | This route will link Derby to Leisure n/a Create a spur off the No current proposals
Coalville to the | west of Coalville to connect to the | Coalville. NCN 6
Cloud Trail Cloud Trail.
8 2a Link to 1620s Spur creating link to 1620s house, | Providing an additional leisure route | Leisure n/a No existing network. No current proposals
house a tourist destination in Coalville option from route number 2, which
will link the tourist destination into
the current proposed network
2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 25




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY
% -
,_[‘Q?%& = :- ,,:H
k#\\\% ‘ ~| \\

G <
" .vr-\ﬁiu X

Ashby Propensity to Cycle map

Ashby-de-la-Zouch
Routes

i
¥

I\‘__‘ S rcatest potential for change
w0

L TS
1 %]J - 1'\. i
1&'1 &4 %‘?} i A ‘[--E Other routes with potential for change
= . \ L /v{d N
L]

L3I N < a4 0ld Parks|
%'J' o7 f"&ﬂﬂ =

t\.m Fr s, e

'h:-‘L_‘ B

'q {l‘ : sl a1 Nl
{Waodyilley
SE TR €S ;
'\ Ill.- # |

st ,‘ Y ﬁ‘(‘j 4
. i S(}UTH ."ln-r el S 51 " iy hﬂﬂ "TILOTR 2 =
r\DERB‘r’SHIh o CI fronthorpe™gs [0 District boundary
N N | Urban area

r & fE
f Lﬂ?_ﬁr‘é&iﬁ‘i’x Y ‘i
e < -
DS 0 1y ‘o) r
| NA-TALO '@(m
i N ..--: ¥ i) ‘ “
Sty YL RS i
b IFLTEF$ l'J A -~ k
. fj_ . e 1 .-"‘,-f
4 w.-':'-f—
70
: 77,

pd——

7 Dilywort R : —eyl
§ New Chu NpS ‘“g'j”—f‘j:uﬁm;‘ . .
e Ermp P =S -
L o R GaraRiaR - et 4 7R
o, - a\Wood "\-.;;-"J

[P - n 2 e 1 - - - r":-' rd

S N / : Lk S o A s
NGt 1?4’5"’#1?’% he wm WoodJFrn* ‘:'}“ ! B Rothertkoad T, AW gﬁmh'ﬁ"'g“ﬂﬂh A
R e £ i (o . : - Sk ight. Al Fights rebbrved. Li spErl
LN, O S T N A SN | . —tEmin A / otherwoad TN n Copyright. Al rved. Licence 2

q
L

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 26



Z8

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Ashby cycling proposals

ANk e ——Haddorne T A N T TEEIT T 7 : h
L?.e‘ : S:WT%!@EE‘; i vé‘l o j“aﬂ-,t.sﬁﬁfﬁﬂ-{_} Qj’ffﬁ P . ﬁ“wb‘\‘\ "y Heath A 2N ~End [ : L:‘:'i’{{5 ‘% ' If i/ ¥4 o ¢
= ) s : .r_ o = & ..: 7 L " A X ? FT] 7 7 i A ; '\_J ) ' = r
& e *"é. S ""f %@@ﬁ; ; 2 Lawer | / Vs ‘J £ ’ WP I acl e i _\*.,}I‘ L “"Qill.l.ln:p Fm | P L
F— g Eﬂaﬂ’@ll = i pMidway 3 TNy 125 54 1og_4g_i gl
S o : I L : E'?f&?; S VAN \\&Héﬁ;ﬁrsh%?/" “—__Eﬁ, & & =W
£y | g o a1 : % R - Lr g
- 3 JJ E 5 *-\-:D FI-L“UE:? <“~f R Doy - : o \{?\\\"‘I 104 44 &y V3 ||1 m"r_ﬁ 77
A | 2 w2 s Pt ; isp, I)_L}- % 9% VigEia e NI W y-A 13 b = g HE
A TR FE - sl AR AN JFATRR LRI _ B By Yy, | Wicket, Nook . ! REE ‘1\
g B el 1~ N _ E = | : -] 4 Aok |; B . J:. = 4 d
"SWADLINCOEEZ= Biogre 2 7N VRN
= 5 o — e e ) IERY
e v e 1 FATRE 1 o . | . \
-J; mﬁ o B - Ilng e\\j E;¥= c'.\l E’C? e, \_\,}ﬁi;:—\h HJ\T_? - T I ‘l\' | |
- ; owile) L o q
o L sl S N N
L " - 1 |
B B - Blacktordly. ;aBoL[_ﬁdarv f“}f{’”ﬁ: 57 - 2{1\1"”' o L';?
5 oy ‘%‘.Q SHo iy o L ) liftontharpe |
J.'B%?": ‘ 3 o S
fa S -2t
Workings, ko . 1 L~ (/ n‘*ﬂ”‘z g
g = o L R
124 ‘}% T 5;) 2 = .r'.%gs_m

/ﬁ Vﬁéﬂg ’
o 8

i =1
= b e Kol 1
— e T
[ g "-:£ IJAC.EL}%':%LLE‘J) I 3 Farm
- - s = I —-==1 I‘r_‘|_—!-— i == .
a=d -Wlii;ﬂﬂn-‘w = g IvanhgeWay o) o = e Towun:
}Vﬂﬂ Heatho . 23] WA DIWOTh | e bt = T £/
: il P - l'.'q'- 7 <N Mew .Eful:l_‘l aty = (G -':‘:jj J
North West Leicestershire R B A (A N oL i"(-'@-.{;-:" & ' =
Ashby-de-la-Zouch o : : f—r_‘ arafisnn, G & A N A Botai 'Il 4
ST NN I T Gt may
Local eycle network Ry “‘@:‘:ﬂ S, ¥y P SRR e gle
®-®-®- National Cycle Network (NCN) | [#A2 1 e NSV S
Cveli . e GarseRay o ik ey s L Sinope {
ycling priority route AR Lei: T l,L(_l;l (i \r\\_ﬁ . !
o -\\.-- _f'l_ _@' 2 l‘\ s e |‘ - L I'L l | ” |
KEY destination sites by type d 1 Sgéhort o ,1597'?&?&'[5 A .+ -Hoo AS ol
- ) : § i ] HrR
[[1 Employment " Heath o5 nﬁ,.l‘ e ' LY fm f\x{&‘?
[] Housing growth F¢ " Ealar - ~ 5 (=== DR TN il Y
\ ; Farrm F: g A M= -\ . oo e
[ Leisure A X o e R R (i E—""’n. [ i el =2
[] Outer suburb A f)ﬁi Do-ﬁ;l S » _f i &)
[] settlement area :{l RN A “Doni 1f]i'::-r|;>‘££l g . = THRY L W B
' F D?ALLJ : s : - Y averston
-5 ediby t, a Em.kk co.uk
=T £ ’34" e g‘:".:'\\ n - p } n@\ ﬂ'_if

SR\ S
=D, e Ll TR N A

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

27



€8

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Ashby cycling proposals

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Measuring the impact | PCT model Cycle network Ashby Cycling Strategies
number ranking provision (District Council and Town Council)
1 2 Hicks Lodge Connecting the Town Provide a safe off-road route linking the Town Centre Leisure n/a Will connect with Key route listed in both strategies,
Centre with Hicks Lodge to Hicks Lodge. This can provide additional links to Daily journeys local cycle network | however, both strategies present
via Ridgeway Road. Conkers and other leisure attractions in the National in Hicks Lodge and | different route options.
Forest. NCN 63.

2 6&7 Review Town | Consider keys routes There is a need to create a safe cycling environment in | Employment 1,2,3,4,6 n/a The District Council presents several
Centre which prioritise cycling. the town centre. It does not seem feasible to provide Daily journeys route options for the Town Centre,
cycling Main focus should be to traffic free routes due to the existing design of the Leisure including a north-south route through
infrastructure | improve the north/south town. However, consideration to installing traffic Safer Routes to School the Town Centre utilising Hood Park.

and east/west options for | calming measures to slow the traffic down is providing The Town Council strategy highlights
the Town Centre to ensure | @ safer environment may benefit access to the specific options to improve cycling and
they are cycling friendly. following destinations, including: walking, including infrastructure

o Ivanhoe Business Park improvements to Brook Street to

o Ashby business park (east) support both cyclists and walkers.

o Ashby Leisure Centre

o Ashby School

o Ivanhoe College

It has also been requested that, as part of the Town

Centre improvements, Northfield Connection Pathway

be widened to support cyclists.

Creating a positive cycle network will also allow future

routes to leisure destinations surrounding the Town

Centre to be considered. These destinations include;

Calke Abbey and Staunton Harold.

3 1 Cloud Trail Linking the current Cloud NCNS6 currently runs from Derby to Worthington. It is Leisure n/a NCN6 extension Listed as a priority in the Town Council

Extension trail from Worthington to proposed that the route could be extended to Ashby Employment strategy.
Ashby Town Centre, using | Town Centre. A local interest group is already
the former rail line. exploring opportunities regarding route direction and
Sustrans is aware of this proposal.

4 3 Link to Providing strategic link to Connecting two main towns together with a safe Leisure n/a n/a n/a

Coalville Coalville connecting the cycling link. Daily Journeys
two towns. Opportunity to Employment
explore a segregated cycle
link along the A511.

5 5 Link to Providing a strategic link to | Connecting Ashby to areas in the west, including the Employment 5,10 Partial local cycle
Swadlincote Smisby and Swadlincote. main town of Swadlincote. Daily journeys network on A511.

Possibility of using A511
as a direct link.

6 4 Providing Should the Ivanhoe rall There is a proposal to convert the former Leicester to Leisure n/a n/a

options from line re-open, there is an Burton (lvanhoe line) railway line into a passenger line. | paily journeys
(proposed) opportunity to create a As part of this, Ashby could have a new station,
Ashby railway | new station in Ashby. If however, no location for this station has been
station- part this happen, sustainable identified. Cycling and walking routes to the station
of potential travel options to and from | could be enhanced to support all users, including
re-opening of | the proposed station commuters, and leisure journeys.

the lvanhoe should be considered.

Rail Line.

7 8 Infrastructure | Upgrade of network The National Forest is one of the key leisure Leisure n/a n/a
improvements | surface and improvements | destinations within the Authority. Ensuring route
within the to signage within the surfaces and way markers are of a suitable standard
National National Forest network. to encourage more people to cycle to, and within, the
Forest Forrest’s network is important.

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 28




78

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Castle Donington Propensity to Cycle Map

Castle Donington
Routes

| eo—Greatest potential for change

Other routes with potential for change

"
i

[ District boundary
| Urban area

Bl -

ey

[ ! o= L]
ERE AT T -||_:-_-_:'_. Er_:'-,".'-l:_"-_-_-c- P"E_ W .I.- -'b...
e _:IEI.-;.._.}- 1, Lo -\-.,_;_: = F k .r.-\. -.-‘l.,_.‘.__.-.h_

oy, T e
ma T et T R -
e .-""ﬁ.i-.:"""'-.:': o .'? ':'-h H

-

T T g
.

i
s Kl g

e
3
ﬁp..-ul‘ﬁ.l-\.'f.l (Cr iy

i LN,

flre -
v e e Pl e

Rarton
TG, -z
HES |

' :L"%"?L -

- 4 -
ol = A ] '
T J e ":"‘I""l

'. F ] u. e _:-'-Fj.-.i-
1 - -. e B3 ] I_: l_-_'_::""ﬂl\:.. 'F\-_l-.
o elhourria ;-k““-?:aj‘-_' L
0 A St LR ST

g I
St
Lt Enirpen

ErS
e

[
Tl bt

. S

- Rz maly

. e

.‘E‘E‘ﬁu .
=
[ "2 H - ; S
. /! B TLE =il ;—;h-f-" .
i - { e kb o A T e
. .\"'1.-.:-‘._ h o v Wiamleaa _F:'_ : ‘;ju-i.. g . Lok o ) ; e .
p 3 ’ : g ot T Srare i L et ol i Chasn Paate | onf
' = | e -l 2 ol ]
. TP Y wopel g P, ST Fag e o [y i
% i '_g'-il-.-.-;!.- u Firk ol , = el .-:el"""‘-.m:-;s”- ) d::.-:- =
Y LI L ..'-'"il - & Tazkare i
ERCR I A F1 ' b v
e t o - i R A
I . i X ol o .
NS - - X o, "
T i £ i
i g ;ﬁ_ " : .| L & Pape iwww. p_m.uki: e
- ' ) ! ot} ;
Ll o W Pl B :,Hﬂmbér TO00M0STT - ?
AT B Sy T '

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 29



G8

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Castle Donington cycling proposals

North West Leicestershire o BE”'W-'ITO"; \\—" manqer el Wairs ||Ch\‘?eh n e
Castle Donington T, T

ﬂlqlflf%'-and R "-.- e _.?d"' I %ﬁﬂ!lne ﬁ

B "nad
Local cycle network = X el Ithﬁw'1 h ﬁ%:mmum (=4 e, R W TN o i 4y %1

.,-‘F%Q e Iﬂg}l’l I*l‘ o X *oca ) # B P Rl . Sl - Thfumptﬂn
®-®-®- National Cycle Network (NCN) Fine= I f’"i T e P N : et 4

H Cycling priority route Fovet gj \%

= s K egworth cycling priorities o/ Glese ;X\\(‘ _Lh_r
1 EITH A e ¥
T ;,r' L._,{-‘_..ﬁi‘f PH'!_ xr

by T _,_q_,v =t
L

.i‘

AR L
- ot
G reat WJ lne_,_

-:"'\.
"“\*\\
i —

_r

KEY destination sites by type

o
O Emplf:yment : | iy /’*‘Shdrdmw
[] Housing growth ol i :._.; “"‘}x.%:- i > [t
| Leisure Cerny *E / ’“““"/ﬂ,ﬁt Sivdon il / » }:IHT
I,«‘f’ \._ e T g ,a>,_.]| inking—Hills
[ Outer suburb Aﬁtﬂrﬁ;zr*&:— T—“—'?-. i : | P A, ay Stations|J: - '-‘-’mkmq :Hitl El
| | Settlement area on- TI'E.'./FIT £33 3 it ot Brid il i () N P S]%, * ¥ e
: :'h-., =TT 3 mFpEApARANF T = = Tl = ¢ . .
B . ,,,_I N : . ':. g B r A 1 x> f\f\.\\_ s
T'?\ 4 Werkings ‘ =

‘_-? ST Ea
L"\--u[ra!h‘-"ﬂ " ,r "l Ii'l'.l *F

S _L;ru[l “‘G'Wes.qn L g "
““}@«pj?]:Fiféstmqqf g ' ' A

*“., on-Trepi====
o O

= -;r;@ ’.New I|l|-I
KlngbLuu '.:‘
% ?f‘f

-Z'

at -
?_Lﬁ i
DEll:_:h'L

E/b:lemmgton _ :
BT o

Klngst-_'m F Phhl__.'-

[ —

: LI |:|1 r.rl-rr e I.I.'|I -" ""1'.#'
S
East'MldIandﬁ%

& pds
i qanlnpt n F’ark C|rt:L.||t ﬁi

ey

= a g
:_'_ o T_:__-';

Spring G [
*House Fm% ==

B JHE
B i Pt i
o 1 J o .
oo “Fo . Fwisen Hall, 'E;T:::;
Fey — . F.-r.é;_,f Ambro ==
Comrmpn e’ HitL” i _

R B 1™ \ |
h - Y | '\-q:J'} ) L] '.
e ST Q : ; L 'n"'.n'll'ldrrlllg:__ o

f h?“ 'f‘ e Plgh Barn ?\% g Fi H-.
| i s r;:l ; _ !
1 _.:I -_? [ -c|‘_|\"'\| . =

g S U | Wioodhouse

!{t oo }ﬁi“ > 1
e e
lbourae FParkg lL e

i"a

Feat | £

Iy ] ’
! f | Th
/9-”’ [ Bulwarle
3 | £ -
L || ST
gL 3 o Wef St
||" ;ia L \\"--':_ \{
& a Z “i L '
f"m-a aﬂ*ﬁ‘aﬁ e v 5 D = ai belews e wiley

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy



98

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Castle Donington cycling proposals

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Measuring impact PCT model Cycle network provision
number ranking
1 1&2 Green way Creating a sustainable link between Enhancing the current network will provide direct links for | Employment n/a There is a dedicated Airport link, which
around the Castle Donington with the Airport and workers to key employment destinations. Leisure connects the airport with the Gateway.
AII’pOI’t/EMEG East Midlands Gateway. It will also provide leisure links for pe0p|e W|sh|ng to visit This needs to be enhanced with
the airport and its surrounds. additional links to both Castle
The current Airport trail provides a circular Donington and Kegworth.
route around the Airport and the NCN 15 CUrrently links in with the
Enterprise Gateway. This could be current airport link.
upgraded to support cycling. The current
network also requires linking to Castle
Donington, with several options including
the High Street and Diseworth Lane.
2 3 Linking Castle | Linking route numbers 1 and 2 up to East | Providing a link east to west connecting the Parkway Employment n/a n/a
Donington to Midlands Parkway and the future station, Castle Donington, gateway/airport and Everyday journeys
Ratcliffe on development at Ratcliffe Power Station. Nottingham. Leisure
Soar This route also provides residents of It will also provide local links to Hemington/Lockington.
Hermington and Lockington improved This will also support the aspiration of Rushcliffe Council
links between Kegworth and Castle in providing a direct link from Nottingham.
Donington.
This would be a joint project with
Rushcliffe Council.
3 4 Linking Kings | Providing a link west from Castle Create a link from Castle Donington west. This will provide | Employment n/a n/a
Mills Donington to Kings Mills and beyond. options for commuters in South Derbyshire to access Everyday journeys
Castle Donington and also the large employment area. Leisure
4 5 Creating a link | Providing opportunities north from Castle | There is a major employer in Sawley (Aldi distribution), Employment n/a The section from the A50 to the
north to Donington, linking to Sawley. Opportunity | which employs people from Castle Donington and Everyday journeys boundary is already classed as a local
Sawley and to upgrade the B6540. Consultation Kegworth. Opportunity to connect the two areas to Leisure cycle route.
beyond. indicates that a cycle friendly bridge will encourage sustainable travel.
need to be developed when crossing the
River Trent.
5 8 Strategic link | Connect Long Whatton to Diseworth with | Long Whatton & Diseworth Parish Council would like to Employment 12, 20, 21 n/a
to a dedicated cycle route. This network can | connect the two villages together with a dedicated cycle Everyday journeys
Loughborough | then continue through to Loughborough, path, as the M1/A42 splits the parish. This route could Leisure
ultimately connecting the town with link the employment areas to the north and also south to
EMEG/Castle Donington. Loughborough.
2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 31




.8

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Kegworth Propensity to Cycle map

avmt

il

,

"emz ."‘ S TIEIE
-'1:' ! B
\

“?:}.-__1;: |
t““r‘
-

.'. |
""T‘lq'l A ’
:Elﬂon:,:m,' 3 (2)
o — 2 (9)
L [ District boundary
;ﬁumm”; | Urban area
bellingtr AMTENgE
H.gufn i
Gravél Pt B
LH N .
JB i
;il_':m q TrE|1tlnrk i
- : p =
I i;a b1 gadeGreat Wilng s i % SETN i o7 e Y 9
f| e —l 1 m ?'u—' : N, Rl S st ; = AT ey 7 :;
%ﬁf{ﬂi} Ha l!_ /j?u v\i‘eﬁw'ﬁ .» i il : e i ; - LN T "'-.5.3“}

[ Eharmiack "I, d

H-L

'\/’ o

by o

Kegworth
Lines by number of cyclists

(3)

OyT ] ..
= i

FHle
f‘—Dellght
ks Hemmgtun
=

oA,
sSSP

e R

y :_-_'.-" .' |' h_\x
Ur‘ll'n.rsn',rl' ,__IE o z'::;
.r-_:-’;fr - 4 B
& Sutton ,
e N E!rjnlr:gtcm i
. __,.

PR e
S gl I

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

32



88

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Kegworth cycling proposals

T 7

North West Leicestershire
Kegwaorth

Local cycle network
®-8-8-® National Cycle Network (NCN)

H Cycling priority route

e e = Castle Donington cycling priorities
KEY destination sites by type

| Employment
|| Housing growth
| Leisure

| Outer suburb
|| Settlement area

emmgton o

Pm—=u_ o FfTHall )
'r:_—:——':;ﬁ_g—(:u ‘-ﬁf? I_'Z:\ Y .
ti',hureh Dale?fre‘ty‘?ﬂi Hote

:.Spring
“House Fm?;

o
I

S “' Parkwq 'é-‘tgflqn P

E A MlDLAND
PARKWAY STAJ

_.._-l 3

,;;
,."". Tty
3'".:"’/"‘ 4

iy

__Winking:H
qu,h

"i(“' K|r1gston leds: \
Q--— {:;J

Suttan

dnlngton‘*
\B

h{_'!. =3

. ; ;\ \\‘{,\ a5t Ani's -
- g 1;:_. =) A% M.anm ,.;:.'*""_'_"'_
( Rtk 2 & Created gy@mghwﬂavan Agh& P - ;;—Q:-ﬁ 3 A,,,,,

s
\'*#,]—L Winking Hl“.'?\

il

-1

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

33



68

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Kegworth cycling proposals

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Promotes PCT model | Kegworth
number ranking cycling
strategy
1 1 Southern link Providing a safe route west | East Midlands Gateway along Everyday journeys | 2 C-9/C-12
between across the M1 to link Castle | with the Airport provides many Safer routes to
Kegworth and Donington and several key employment opportunities for school
Castle employment areas. residents in Kegworth. Employment
Donington/East | This will link into the Airport | In addition, this will also link Leisure routes
Midlands Link upgrade (See Castle Kegworth with Castle Donington. '
Gateway Donington priorities).
2 6 Northern link Similar to above, however, See above. Everyday journeys | 3 C-3
between this provides a northern link | |t must be noted that an existing | Safer routes to
Kegworth and option from Kegworth to the Cyc|e route a|ready exists school
gasﬂe orEast Airport and EMEG. between the M1 and Kegworth. Employment
onington/eas The priority will be to review this ;
Midlands and also provide a safe link Lelsure routes.
Gateway across the motorway junction.
3 2a/2b Strategic link to | Providing a link between East Midlands Parkway is Everyday journeys | n/a C-8
East Midlands East Midlands Parkway and | recognised for its strategic Safer routes to
Parkway Kegworth. importance. It is also to be a school
station within the HS2 network. Employment
it is recommended that an Leisure routes.
improved cycle link is developed
to provide residents from
Kegworth direct and safe access
to the station. Two options are
identified for consideration.
4 3 Strategic link Linking Kegworth with There is a strong university Everyday journeys | 3 C-5
west/east Sutton Bonington (Notts Uni | population in Kegworth. This link Safer routes to
Campus). will provide a safe route for school
students residing in Kegworth. Employment
2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 34



06

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Promotes PCT model | Kegworth
number ranking cycling
strategy
5 5 Strategic link Upgrade of Long Lane A northern link will connect Everyday journeys | 1 C-8
northeast (beyond the A453) to Kegworth to several destinations, | Safer routes to
become a cycling route. including, the new development at | school
Consultation indicates that a | Ratcliffe Power Station and also Employment
cycle friendly bridge will be Nottingham. Leisure routes
required when crossing the | This will also dovetail with '
River Trent. Rushcliffe Council’s ambition to
upgrade the A453.
6 7 Strategic link Upgrade of Long Lane A north western link will connect Everyday journeys | 1 n/a
northwest (beyond the A453) and Kegworth to Sawley and beyond. | Safer routes to
Radcliffe Lane to become a | This will be of particular school
cycling route. importance to residents who work Employment
Consultation indicates that a | in the Aldi distribution centre. Leisure routes
cycle friendly bridge will be '
required when crossing the
River Trent
7 4 Link to Utilising the A6 Derby Road | To create a link from Everyday journeys | n/a C-2/Existing
Loughborough to create links from Loughborough (Charnwood) Employment cycle routes
Loughborough (and north, supporting links to Leisure routes. on the A6.
surrounds) to Kegworth, and | Kegworth and the
onto the airport/East Gateway/airport.
Midlands Gateway.
This would be a joint project
between Rushcliffe Council
and NWLDC, creating a link
between the two areas.
2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 35



T6

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY
Measham Propensity to Cycle map
%SQ o G g 1 B 3%:; | Measham
'\ %ﬁg; .3. “'-\.}:' - .Lﬂ;’.'[?lf;::!hg-';?}':v___: _:\.. F’,’/—-’I;:.-‘ l.. Rﬂ UTEE
: ,_J“E_'ﬂ‘f'-;., -f-'-F e | —Greatest potential for change
M i oo
o - ﬁf Other routes with potential for change

[l District boundary
| Urban area

“‘"‘;-"e:a_"" "IEE _1-_-‘-.-'

.W .:_ Paiics
- i __'I--.-II-\. _.-\..'

ey -
-Lj ,‘r...ﬁ % 4 -":-"IL | = "".-5' )
W A 3 o5 O : R J o -
- AT Sadhorough 3 o i1 = e
S e Sabonisfiorpeia S
e B RN S .

L.
o Park Fmel |
_;'j.“ > .-':“- f___:gf .' K _
¥ ¥t =70 ; ;
',‘.-l” = E\- II:’; -'I-ll:
i - Hiﬁnagh ] F'gje I:m I:Rj:.ga .JI | Eu'
R ) .&,ﬂ'ng,trh mserfen' M1oe n ‘J%ﬂﬁﬂﬁ C'__ o

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

36



c6

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Measham cycling proposals

o

Saralit N 1 et

—
oad‘\f/’f’\: g 2]

North West Leicestershire
Measham

e AN

L
’ M‘M‘V!"r:a e [

Local cycle network
®-8-8-® National Cycle Network (NCN)

H Cycling priority route

KEY destination sites by type

| Employment
] Housing growth
| Leisure

| Outer suburb
| Settlement area

Solar
Farm

zear . F

Y N

S b
EtHErsea@lPu ' H“i ./ i
P s

b ; * ‘.'I. AL
3 .&pu.-f:’-"fi-'-"t- 'Ef;i 4 ABFPE‘f’O}I:g /S ‘&\ ?f ' l‘“ﬁ ‘;,f‘ b ; Fal _ 949 Fm 7 J .
A7 Pl TP ”-‘PE;' | w7 7 : : o T Ve e '1 b~y Normanton . 3
7 gl EJ--' R : Ry T Lodge Fin”
' 59 ey [ f P B 7 \;\\SIJI'II'IQS os=—=|Solary| -4 -7 ﬂ;v: —
X o ¢ WFarm- I
"‘:_';; rg?t,f_'et:bi: E_J."'J ! . h}_ i';i'lgljsha;n% r,.\ |
bemn T MR 4 P . d ¢
A Yew) Tree . : ,a"-‘"' -ii e m .-
F e ——— L™ -4 \ > 7 :
" L s VS Stretton A P s |y
-1 i Iﬁm En le FlE'd T L.dr ' ‘J‘JJ H‘ﬁ?"ham "’a?L'I\
. Be@ ' j o Ha N T
" - P Ky . 1\{@ - 4 L S p
af .;'51' 87 .‘5‘9 Measham . e (:‘ o I Q'—ﬂ “1'!3:-’3’:*\ = i .,
_.‘}J ChIECl:ItE S v : 'fMar'or " .. ;Irﬁlds -.."n“ A 7 ﬁTemﬂE W Y e Cattuw;-: f;-,, -
- 5 157 X . il ] -lrﬂ ' Fi
] 5 3 # ; o
L" [_jl’.['_:.__-.' ";“‘I Hauge Q\." B ,--'- - \é I.-' ?’ < | Ljpnpr :.?'.'
N Fark Fm - T i j!:.-;) . . wFlelds ,-':'
"‘-"\\K ¥ - ?_ f
A T 4 - ! : T
\,{1 ”‘\.\H"-,_‘ !|I1|I . J” 3 : l},:i' |l.l Sw.epstme, o I % ,,C: — | F
El "l-«J‘"'/», W S o /L= Red s {« ' B J {M s ,;?Hanuu I __:;
B B !:u‘u G ,I .. © o lffs, | Gables 2 i3\ PSR SR AR V- ; i A s
. ?\;-,{ M'. - t LA : fmqai; \ B o | , iy . ! . Pt eanirad
: T 5 . ".. — "' . ~ s ) L T . o et LR 7 .__r-r’- ek S back e by Ay
" . '-'-_! L t““- -"TIH Barns .\-3'| .\,rLI'IIII'\ 5 rr o e I £ e - pring iy ANe-*
o N )| 'JJaguar Landmven ) 'I" R o ,{ﬁJ Heath Fm - Jil"f u{# /5' o L L E -:._t.;__.qim "RElcl
y H .\ . ,.;. :-I'E = - -1‘#.' T - - h } F . : - .-
"‘H 1 i |l SRR ’n W {!,FH Applehu f . & :;:?’ ’ : — o L N F S s
: , i EC W =3 I . ; S . oy .
J [ f":.'?':' ( {:::l'ﬂg. P Ly dgr‘l—d ‘I %‘15 \fﬁr EO ge |I:.. ) A ” 5 ; S L L
E—" ) “\_. = 1 I'-. &'JH ';1‘]_.-",!:':'; L -‘J‘ _.;__ —— _ f"‘:“'_. i Fm "l’.l "‘ e - ¥ ] ' :
Wk 5o k) | o o .:'*’;"?jﬁ "ﬁfﬁ?" T atF'P T N f"?: N Ti.ru‘x. = a 1-5—'// i — o :

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 37



€6

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Measham cycling proposals

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Promotes PCT model | Cycle
number ranking network
provision

1 2 Strategic link | East/west link Linking the two towns of Ibstock and Employment n/a
to Ibstock connecting Measham will provide safe access to a Leisure

Measham to number of key employment sites Everyday routes
Ibstock, using between the two areas, and also Safer Routes to
Swepstone Road. destinations such as Sense Valley.

School

2 3 Strategic Link | Northern link road to | Strategic route linking Ashby and Employment n/a

to Ashby Ashby, utilising Measham, will provide options for Leisure
M'easham Road,' accessing key employment areas, and Everyday routes
with a safe crossing | also destinations including the Ashby Safer Routes to
through the A41 Woulds Heritage Trail. School
junction.

3 1 Creating a Direct route using Creating a link will provide options for Employment n/a Provide links
link between Tamworth Road. It | employers working at the new site living Leisure with NCN 63.
the new will be important _to in Measham, Ibstiock and Ashby. Everyday routes
Jaguar I'_and ensure the crossing | It could also create a network which can
Rover site of the A42 is safe support links to Westman Industrial
and Measham | and direct. Estate and Ashby Woulds Heritage Trail.

This route could also support the
proposed dwellings as part of the
Measham Warf Development/Ashby
Canal restoration. It is anticipated that
the new development at Measham Warf
will be completed within the next three
years.
2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy




6

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Ibstock Propensity to Cycle map

| Ibstock
v : Houtes

a— (5reatest potential for change

Other routes with potential for change

/ ] District boundary
| Urban area

[
B — .-__.-\..
J— ;.

/4

@%%LEH j

i | &.._1_1_'&5.5“

e, o T — '-_'1"'" o=
e By Y -

-._-1-3'.: :I‘:-"'-

.: f .. -.'| C,J % F
¥ -‘-';. S
'f::- \Ficke

S = \ it

Y oy o= \

ge R S

lﬁ"ﬁ-‘ﬂ%\;; -7 _ & “\\ _~. _‘ Eulal Farm _.f:f-:‘:'_:

¥ L_ .' | -:\.1__ = = -'|~ . e B
L L] A . s ¢
K aeTml = o |
u “ g N
—'l_" 'E'\-':“.- i . r
\oZ 1 e AR )
\ “.;;Hm k-""r_.-ﬁl':;". B & by kright, Kagfe agh & B v kkp 6.k ] x|
d_h"\. l_'ﬂ"ﬂl =] . i ! '_q'h-i' [Urights resemed; \Lickne | O57F. |
o T R S WP Ll ol e\ g‘f anwmrir-?

bi'-ll_. = r -.-"-‘--.

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

39



S6

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Ibstock cycling proposals

1 09 /

¥ Ao
LY L]
;
Lm . ' ! v

North West Leicestershire
Ibstock

Local cycle network
8-8-8-8 National Cycle Network (NCN)

H Cycling priority route

KEY destination sites by type

[l Employment
["] Housing growth
| Leisure

|| Outer suburb

[ ] Settlement area

Nailstone

b
.]r
B

i

| T (Lo Queen‘{Ehzabetth} A A I(elham Bn ge i | Z ‘i‘f)‘? f‘—'ﬂ
7 ' N 13‘3,\ Diamond JUbI|Be'W{JOd L g ! Domrfgto \j G
AN, P Nrﬁr*-;_é A : ,.-’ ', "F' 6% ﬁi H th =t
’ I .' L v i / y
‘“-: l'D, - l/ L A ,‘" ‘F;‘(:_ ','. | -~ ,,:,".'n.._ 'I ‘E' ,_:' 1 T e
. ] i\-l // . [ _r ; P ~ 0 & Nt T x""li .J !”_ | *, W
: I P2 [
4 & fl [ |
! 1 q I s "F L = LL l‘lll -
/a%fj/ \ A N/ / Sance 3 mqp Bhf:l(berry
' (o oy,
ﬁ,ﬁfr, - '_\,}f--_ N
e Cattgws ;’J?J 1 38
' Fm /"~ \
' rr}’f | Th
_n.e: h: ‘Ir J.-’ '-.
(fr = ’;4: — ;
L & "Heathens
- :J
=
2, <'.>?‘,
}Sprmghack
~ r h {"-'-“—ELFm
Fi ETL!_
0y <A

Grange

e

-_

N

*

| e

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

40



96

Ibstock cycling proposals

Priority | Route Scheme Route details Objective Promotes PCT Cycle
number model network
ranking provision
1 3 Route through | A North /south link Creating a north/south route will create Employment 1
the town through town centre, links from the NCN to the town centre, Safer routes to
centre which can also link up Ibstock College and also Sense Valley. school
with the existing NCN63. Everyday Journeys
Route could use the Leisure Routes
A447.
2 1 Ibstock to Creating a link from Creating an east/west link from Bardon Employment 2,4
Ellistown and | Ibstock to Ellistown and Hill will create links for employment Safer routes to
Bardon Hill Bardon Hill Industrial (Amazon warehouse), plus students school
Industrial Estate- utilising Leicester/ | (from Ellistown) accessing Ibstock Everyday Journeys
Estate Beveridge Roads. Community College.
3 2 Strategic link | Utilising the former LMS Upgrading the former LMS line will Employment 56,7,9
to Coalville line north of Ellistown to create a strategic link, between Coalville | Safer routes to
Coalville. and Ibstock whilst also supporting all school
new residents as part of proposed Everyday Journeys
Coalville Urban extension. Leisure Routes
4 4 Strategic link | Strategic link to Ashby, Create a strategic link between Ibstock Employment n/a
to Ashby which will also link Sence | and Ashby, which will also create links Everyday Journeys
Valley up with the Queen | with Sence Valley Forest Park and also | Leisure Routes
Elizabeth Diamond the QE Diamond Jubilee Wood.
Jubilee Wood.
Option would be to
upgrade Heather Lane.
5 5 Strategic link | Strategic link to Measham | An east/west link providing access Employment n/a
to Measham using Swepstone Road. between lbstock and Measham. Safer routes to
With a major employer (Jaguar school
Landrover) factory being built in Everyday Journeys
Measham, this route will provide options | Leisure Routes
for commuters accessing the new site.
2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy




L6

Proposals overlayed with existing network (NCN Network only)

North West Leicestershire
Cycling priorities by settlement

— Ashby
Castle Donington
Coalville
Ibstock

— Kegworth
Measham
Existing network

Castle~..,
Donington

Population density per square mile

6,500 to 16,600
5,300 to 6,500
3,700 to 5,300
2,200to 3,700
1,400 to 2,200
1,300 to 1,400
1,000 to 1,300

900 to 1,000

400to 900

100to 400

N

oot
{ hby- e-la-Zouch’
N

7221
Coalville

Ibstock

2?
[

Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Page (www . kkp.co.uk) @ Crown Copyright 341l rights reserved, Licence number 100020577 V

Proposal | Description Settlement

1 West link to Swadlingcote Ashby

2 Cloud trail extension Ashby

3 Strategic link to Coalville Ashby

4 Town centre traffic calming zone Ashby

5 Town centre traffic calming zone Ashby

6 Link to Hicks Lodge Ashby

7 Link to proposed Ashby Station Ashby

8 Greenway around EMEG/East Midlands Castle Donington

Airport

9 Greenway around EMEG/East Midlands Castle Donington
Airport

10 Strategic link to Kegworth Castle Donington

11 West link to King's Mills Castle Donington

12 Future development at Ratcliffe Power Castle Donington
Station

13 Upgrade at Long Lane North Castle Donington

14 Northern link to Sawley Castle Donington

15 Diseworth/Long Whatton/Loughborough Castle Donington

16 East to West through town centre Coalville

17 North to South through town centre Coalville

18 Coalville to Hugglescote/Ellistown Coalville

19 Coalville to Ashby Coalville

20 Link to Sence Valley Coalville

21 Coalville to new leisure centre Coalville

22 Coalville Community Hospital Coalville

23 Stephenson College Coalville

24 Sence Valley Coalville

25 Eastern link route Ibstock

26 Strategic link to Coalville Ibstock

27 North / South link through town centre Ibstock

28 Stategic link to Ashby Ibstock

29 Strategic link to Measham Ibstock

30 Strategic link East Kegworth

31 Long Lane upgrade North Kegworth

32 Strategic link West Kegworth

33 Strategic link South Kegworth

34 Link to Power Station & EM Parkway Kegworth

35 Strategic link to Ibstock Measham

36 Link South from Measham Measham

37 Strategic link North to Ashby Measham

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

42




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 8: WALKING PRIORITIES
Introduction

The following section presents the heat maps for the respective six key urban areas. Heat maps
were developed by identifying the key walking destinations within each area, and then applying
a radial catchment of 800m from these destinations.

Where radials overlap, (indicated through darker colours) there is a greater emphasis to focus
on for potential walking infrastructure priorities and enhancement. The darker colours represent
locations where it is deemed that people are more likely to walk. The table below sets out the
colour code hierarchy.

Mapping key:

High priority

Medium priority

Low priority

Identifying the key destinations

Each area has a list of key destinations which
are accessible by foot, which have been
identified through consultation.

These include the following:
All educational sites, including primary schools.
Key leisure sites, including parks and the local leisure centre.

Main high street/shopping areas.

4
4
4
< Other key destinations, including major employers and tourist destinations.

Ensuring towns and major urban areas are accessible for all

It important to ensure when identifying priorities to support walking that infrastructure is inclusive
for all. These include crossings (including tactile paving) should remain free of obstacles and
barriers and all footways should aim to be step free.

—— r"_"~._ —— r"_"~._ — "1-._

- I' i : - I' i : - I' i :
L el S el S

' ) ' ) ' )

1 I .I 1 I .I 1 I .I

p— I S p— I S p— I S

2021 NW Leicestershire égycling & Walking Strategy 43



66

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Coalville walking heat map

Coalville

€ Walking destinations
B Schools

ID Walking destination

1 Bus and Coach Station (Family Centre)

2 Coalville Park

3 Hermitage fishing lake & recreation ground

4 High Street

5 Leisure Centre (new)

6 Morrisons/Whitwick Retail Park

7 Snibston Colliery Park

8 Urban Forest Park

9 Broom Leys Surgery

10 All Saints Church of England Primary School, Coalville

11 Belvoirdale Community Primary School

12 Broom Leys Primary School

13 Hugglescote Community Primary School

14 Newbridge High School

15 Saint Clare's Catholic Primary School, Coalville,
Leicestershire

16 Stephenson College (Part of the SMB Group)

17 Stephenson Studio School

e
Copyright @ 13;5? - 2020 HERE.

Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Rage (www.kkp.c .uk,)\

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 44




00T

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Ashby walking heat map

Ashby

€ Walking destinations
B Schools

Copyright © 1987 -

Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Page (www.kkp.co.uk)

ID Walking destination

1 Ashby de la Zouch Castle

2 Bath Grounds

3 High Street

4 Hood Park Leisure Centre + Hood Park

5 Ivanhoe Business Park

6 Ivanhoe College

7 Memorial Grounds, Ashby de la Zouch + Castle

8 Prestop Park

9 Ashby Hill Top Primary School

10 Ashby School

11 Ashby Willesley Primary School

12 Ashby-de-la-Zouch Church of England Primary
School

13 Ivanhoe College Ashby-De-La-Zouch

14 Lewis Charlton Learning Centre

15 Woodcote Primary School

16 Castle Medical Group

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

45




TOT

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Kegworth walking heat map

Kegworth

@ Walking destination
B School

Created by Knight] Kavanagh & Page (www.kkp.co.uk) Copyright © 1987 - 2020 HERE.

Walking destination

[EEN

Kegworth High Street/Market
Street

Kegworth play area

Kegworth village hall

Kegworth Primary School

Sutton Bonington Campus

N[O wiN

Orchard Surgery

2021

NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy

46




0T

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Measham walking heat map

Measham f/
@ Walking destination

o

Walking destination

B School <

Ashby Woulds Heritage Trail

Industrial estate to the south

Measham High Street

0N

Measham Leisure Centre

Measham Park

Proposed Jaguar Landover site

Wooded area to the north- with Cafe

Measham Church of England Primary School

OO NO|O | W|IN|F

St Charles Catholic Primary Voluntary Academy

[EY
o

Measham Medical Unit

i sopyright @ 1887 - 2020 HERE. Created by Knight-Kavanagh & Page (wwwkkp.co.uk)
!

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 47



€0T

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Ibstock walking heat map

Ibstock

€ Walking destination
B School

Walking destination

High Street

Leicester Road Play Park

Ibstock Leisure Complex/Ibstock Community College

Ibstock Junior School

St Denys Church of England Infant School, Ibstock

OO WIN|F

Ibstock & Barlestone Surgeries

Copyright © 1987 - 2020 HERE.

Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Page {www kkp.co.uk)

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 48




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Castle Donington walking heat map

Castle Donington ,.

€ Walking destination
I , e
I |

B School
[

y,

0T

yrig 1987 - 2020 HERE.
Created b ight, Kavanagh & Pagg (www.kkp.co.uk)

2021 NW Leicestershire - Cycling & Walking Strategy 49

Castle Donington College/Leisure Centre
Castle Donington High Street

East Midlands Gateway

Spital Park Pavilion

Orchard Community Primary School

St Edward's Church of England Primary
School

7 Castle Donington Surgery

OO | WIN|F




NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Initial walking priorities to consider as part of the LCWIP

As well as identifying the key areas of focus in the urban areas, the following priorities were
identified via the series of consultation sessions conducted. Consultation outcomes and
proposed priorities are listed for per each urban area:

Area Priorities

Ashby Improve links from Bath Grounds crossing South Street and accessing the
town centre.

Improve pedestrian crossing points at the roundabout crossing Bath
Street/Market Street/Kilwardby Street.

Improve pedestrian links crossing Brook Street/Market Street.

National Forest Trail — Ivanhoe Way is currently not well maintained- improve
surface quality.

Integrate the Cloud Trail with 089 footpath at Money Hill.

Coalville Review and improve all crossing points across main roads within town the
centre.

Install a new walking route across Scotland’s Playing Field linking in with the
upgrade of the former LMS line.

As part of the Coalville Urban Area Extension there are plans to upgrade the
disused LMS line (London, Midland and Scottish Railway Line) to support links
to Sence Valley/Ellistown/Bardon Industrial estate for both cycling and walking.

Measham Create walking links from the new development at Measham Wharf
development to the village centre and the canal.
Castle Donington Long Whatton — Diseworth: take the opportunity to create a multi-use route

accommodating both cycling and walking.

(General comment: many existing walking trails are not suitable for prams and
wheelchairs as they are often overgrown).

Kegworth Kegworth to Castle Donington — walking route is difficult to navigate the
bypass (A6).

Improved walking route to Sutton Bonington (Nottingham University).
Crossing required at the junction of Station Road/Sidelea/Long Lane.

2021 NW Leicestershire - fggling & Walking Strategy 50



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 9: MEASURING IMPACT

It is important to assess the impact that proposed cycling and walking projects will have in order
to demonstrate value and justify investment. However, this can be challenging, due to the lack
of available data. It is also potentially costly, due to the methods involved.

The following are examples which could be used to help measure the impacts at different
stages of project delivery. The indicators are not an extensive list, and it should be
acknowledged that other options may exist.

Travel plans

Travel Plans are a means of understanding demand for cycling and walking @
through the process of surveying people. It must be noted that active travel-
plan based surveying tends to be most appropriate and useful when there is

a destination point. For example, a place of employment, school, or a leisure O O
destination.

Using a survey, existing travel patterns and latent demand can be ascertained prior to any
infrastructure project commencing. Once a project has been delivered, a second survey can be
undertaken to calculate the impact of the infrastructure investment (i.e., change in travel modes,
satisfaction levels etc).

For example, the proposal linking Hicks Lodge to Ashby Town Centre could be
assessed by surveying a sample of visitors pre-project to gauge existing
demand and relevant travel patterns. Once the project has been implemented,
' a second survey with the same group could be undertaken to determine the
impacts. This could also be implemented at/with schools or other key
. destinations within proximity to a proposal.

Method of monitoring: cycle counters/video surveillance/bike usage

Similar to the travel plan evaluations noted above, installing bike monitoring counters along
certain routes is another method of gathering numeric user number measures as part of an
impact assessment of individual projects.

For example, once a project is chosen, a traffic counter could be installed prior to and
after completion to measure the change in user numbers. This is only applicable to
existing routes where cycling already occurs prior to project delivery. This method is
more numeric than travel plan surveys as it produces objective data rather than
subjective data.

Another way would be to work with schools to assess the number of pupils (and staff) who
cycle. This could take the form of a single annual question or termly survey (which might also
differentiate between summer and winter propensities) not dissimilar to a travel plan evaluation
(see above). Other simple processes include counting the number of bikes parked in school
bike racks at key times (or, for other groups at other destinations). Measurement at/via schools
could, for example, be undertaken prior to and following development of/improvement to a
specific route (which it is thought will have an impact on cycling levels) and when it has been
publicised (pre and post project). Alternatively, this could be undertaken as an initial baseline
audit (for all schools or key destination sites) which can be revisited annually or at set intervals
(preferably during spring/summer months).

2021 NW Leicestershirel(-)bCycIing & Walking Strategy ol



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit

The Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit® allows councils to calculate the economic impact of a
proposed cycling and walking route interventions. This is a more advanced (spreadsheet based)
model and is used as part of any funding bid as part of a LCWIP process. The toolkit can
calculate the following:

4 Health improvements from increased levels of physical activity in terms of reduced
mortality risk and lower work absenteeism;

< Improvements to journey quality as a result of providing the perception of a safer or
pleasant journey whilst using walking and cycling infrastructure;

4 Impacts associated with modal shift away from cars and taxis including improvements in
traffic congestion, greenhouse gas emissions, air quality, noise, accidents, infrastructure
maintenance, and changes to indirect tax revenues as a result of a reduction in distance
travelled by these modes.

It does not, however, calculate time savings, morbidity impacts or accident-related impacts from
a change to cycling and walking related trips.

Inputs User Interface

User Interface Costs

Intervention Details Cycling and Walking

= Intervention Name and Promoter= Number of trips before and after
* Intervention opening year intervention is implemented

= Lastyear of funding + Scheme length

« Appraisal Period « Infrastructure — existing and

= Intervention cost
« Funding profile
= Funding contribution

* Localareatype (using Area Type proposed ity

Lookup)

Assumptions

« DfT provided assumptions — can
be amended if justification /
evidence available

AMAT Calculations

= Change in active mode trip numbers « Average Metabolically Equivalent Tasks + Decongestion
« Average reduction in short term sick leave + Reduction in Years of Life Lost + Discounting
= Average time and distance on infrastructure ~ + Reduction in vehicle distances

!

Analysis of Costs and Benefits

Output

+ Congestion Benefit * Reduced risk of premature death
* Infrastructure maintenance « Absenteeism
= Accident + Journey ambience

* Local air quality * Indirect taxation
* Noise « Govermnment Costs
+ Greenhouse gases = Private Contribution

Although the process undertaken and the calculations produced are more advanced than the
previous two methods, the initial data required for this process includes the estimated total cost
of a project along with current modal data for the route in question. Therefore, the design
concept needs to be in a more advanced stage to use this measurement method.

3 Department for Transport

2021 NW Leicestershire - fg_?ling & Walking Strategy 52



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 10: ENCOURAGING BEHAVIOURAL CHANGE
Introduction

Although developing high quality, accessible walking and cycle infrastructure is important to
encourage more people to travel sustainably, this needs to be supported by schemes,
programmes and guidance designed to raise awareness about and drive adoption of active
travel related behavioural change.

Behaviour change relates primarily to (often gradually) changing people's attitudes, beliefs and
perceptions using a ‘nudge’ technique. This aims to support the progressive alteration of
people's behaviour and can be delivered via a range of different measures. The following
section lists the measures which should be considered:

Improving the confidence of all existing (and ‘intending’) users

Improving confidence and knowledge of riding in a range of environments is important to
encouraging modal shift. Currently, cycle training is only available for children at primary school.
This offer needs to be expanded to include children at secondary school, those in further
education and adults. Refresher and top up classes need to be available to all too.

Training needs to be expanded not just to include how to ride safely on the highway. Learning
about core elements of bike maintenance (e.g., how to change a tyre and tighten brake cables)
would also clearly be advantageous in respect of increasing individual confidence, perceptions
of safety and to help to both increase and maintain the number of people cycling.

Timing of courses (and other support) is also critical to ensure maximum increase in modal shift.
For example, offering cycle training during spring months will help increase regular cycling
during the summer where, arguably, propensity to cycle is greatest.

Provision of easy-to-use information, including interactive mapping

Ensuring all information, including promotional material and on-line journey planning, is
up to date and relevant. This includes the ability to access online maps and smart

devices with journey planners to make it easier for people to plan and track e
their journey. Examples include encouraging people to utilise new websites z.
such as Slow Ways, which has developed downloadable walking routes which 2/
people can access. 111 \d

Partnership work to encourage more use of cycling and walking

Partnership work between and across a range of organisations can be a great way to
encourage increased levels of cycling and walking whilst improving health at the same time. For
example, GP referral schemes now incorporate both cycling and walking in referral programme
using local volunteers or locally trained activators.

It can also provide opportunities engage with specific groups, which increases opportunities and

awareness. For example, engaging with certain charities such as Wheels for All, which
promotes cycling through the use of adaptive bikes for those with disabilities.

2021 NW Leicestershirelogycling & Walking Strategy 53



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Utilise smarter technology to set challenges and allow people to
achieve personal goals

The introduction of smart watches and activity apps has had an impact
and can encourage people who have not previously cycled or walked to
be more active via these forms of movement. Creating walking
challenges making use of apps such as mapmywalk. can motivate people
to walk more on an entirely informal basis, without facing the perceived
pressure of being in a group or competitive environment with others.

Another example is the initiative; Beat the Street. This is an interactive challenge which turns
towns into giant games. Interactive card readers are placed across urban areas, and individuals
accrue points every time they walk or cycle past these readers. The more points they gain in a
fixed time period the more opportunities they have to win prizes.

Encourage the use of E-bikes and E-scooters

E-bikes can be the catalyst to a fairer, better society, easing air pollution and can help older
people and the less fit switch from four wheels to two.

NWL needs to work with a variety of organisations to promote the use of E-bikes and ensure
that the infrastructure is suitable to support them. These include ensuring that its own bike to
work scheme (and those of other employers in the Authority) covers E-bikes and that key
destination points, such as town centres, are adapted to optimise the ease of their use.

Promoting e-scooters is also something the Authority could consider in the future to reduce the
need for car travel. It must be noted, however, that the use of e-scooters is currently illegal on
the highway, except where DfT have agreed a rental pilot schemes. Changes to legislation
regarding legality of e-scooter use is not expected to begin until 2022-2023.

Ensure that all potential users are aware of financial support

Work with a range of organisations to ensure that people (and in particular those from low
income families and disadvantaged areas) are fully aware of the range of funding opportunities
available, to support them with the purchase of a new bike. These schemes include:

4 Bike to work schemes through employers, where staff have the opportunity to purchase a
bike making progressive payments linked to their salary.

< Organisations such as Grants for Individuals and Turn to Us provide financial support for
those who do not work (or would rather not pay for their cycle), to purchase a bike.

4 Several charities associated with specific impairments or long term health conditions offer
grants to assist people to purchase bikes (including the Family Fund and Disability Grants).

Developing personalised journey planning specific to individual needs

Personalised journey planning is a great way of encouraging people to cycle and walk.
Leicestershire County Council is in the process of developing a tailored online travel pack
providing details of a wide range of local travel options for residents. This will be known as
‘Choose how you move’. Personalised travel planning appointments with a trained advisor will
also be available to residents as part of the offer to encourage more people to consider ‘active’
travel.

2021 NW Leicestershire - fggling & Walking Strategy o4



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

As part of the plan, e-bikes and pedal bikes are available to loan as a mechanism to encourage
modal shift. The scheme is initially being undertaken with Leicester City Council and then rolled
out across the remaining county authorities.

Review best practice examples from other British and European cities

Above is a list of popular behavioural change measures. Successful new initiatives will be
created in different cities throughout the continent. Through partnership work and research,
NWL needs to monitor and review new initiatives on a regular basis and consider their
applicability within the Authority.

. 4o " T = There are an array of best practice
?@ ol . s H | examples to learn from. One is the Beat the
z AN d09 . 9 Street initiative (mentioned earlier) and has
: - @ <0g ¢ 990 been developed across several British and
2 2R Q89 ¢ :»‘ @ European towns and cities. The initiative
@%%; $ %“'g § 9 o provides a series of Beat Boxes placed
®§ ®®$‘g5 . gggg % | around a town with incentives to tag as
) e ®$ Sds £:0d ® | many as possible over a period of time. The
¢ .%“‘ PR more tags an individual gets, the greater
chance they have of winning a prize. Prizes
A are provided by the Local Authority.
= >

Public Health England* highlights the case studies of Bristol and Cambridgeshire where
increasing active travel has been successful. Both identify measures such as improvements to
the active travel network, reduction of perceived barriers (e.g. reducing speed limits for
motorised transport) and changing behaviours and attitudes towards cycling and walking.

Bristol

A number of public health specialist posts were appointed to address aspects of built
environment including transport, planning and physical activity. It was recognised by the local
director of public health that to improve health it was important to address the range of wider
health determinants. A specialist in transport planning has been in post for over seven years.
This promoted greater understanding to develop and relationships to form. Key data includes;

Cycle commuting up 94% between 2001 and 2011, and commuting on foot up 40%
Rolling out of 20mph on roads where people live.

Commuting by car is no longer the norm for those aged under 40

Successful use of public health evidence to support the bidding of major funds.

More people commuting to work on foot or by bicycle than in any other local authority.
Proportion of people who walk to work does not vary greatly between ethnicities nor those
with no qualifications and those with a degree or higher.

4 44,000 people who travel less than 5km to work yet still go by car; impacting on air quality,
road safety, congestion and health.

A A A A A A

4 Working Together to Promote Active Travel - A briefing for local authorities (2016)

2021 NW Leicestershireligycling & Walking Strategy 95



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Cambridgeshire

The County Council public health directorate recognised the importance of working
collaboratively to best address major drivers of population health such as transport and active
travel. The public health team works closely with other core teams such as economy, transport
and environment. It provides advisory and technical input and advice ensuring health
perspectives and recommendations dovetail with strategies and projects.

An example to some of the works to ensure initiatives are aligned and drive recommendations
to increase levels of physical activity (and the many benefits it provides) are:

4 Local walk/buggy/school projects
< Council wide obesity strategy
<« Living sport and exercise initiatives

A number of new housing and infrastructure developments are planned for Cambridgeshire.
These plans are reviewed by public health team. Recommendations to date include:

< Ensuring health impact assessments are a mandatory requirement for all planning
applications

4 Securing the facilitation of active travel as part of planning design and layout for each new
development

4 Ensuring access to services and that public transport is accessible and in a place at new
developments

4 Advocating provision of safe pedestrian paths and cycleways across the county, particularly
near schools, care facilities and town centres.

2021 NW Leicestershire - %\_/fling & Walking Strategy 56



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

SECTION 11: NEXT STEPS

As stated earlier, the next phase of the process is to develop a LCWIP from the evidence base
which has been generated through this Strategy.

Producing a LCWIP

NWL’s LCWIP needs to be created in conjunction with a specialist transport planning team and
Council officers drawn from a variety of departments with various expertise including highway
engineering, transport planning and public health. Once produced, this process and the
resulting outputs will represent an evidence-based approach to focus future investment over the
next 10 years where the most benefits can be realised.

The government has published guidance on the preparation of LCWIPs, setting out the following
six-stage process. A number of these stages have been completed (or in part) within this
strategy:

4 Stage 1: Determine the scope — establish the geographical context and arrangements for
governing and preparing the plan.

4 Stage 2: Gathering information — identify existing walking and cycling patterns and potential
new journeys. Review existing conditions and identify barriers to walking and cycling.
Review related transport and land use policies and programmes.

<« Stage 3: Network planning for cycling — identify origin and destination points and cycle
flows. Convert flows into a network of routes and determine the improvements required.

4 Stage 4; Network planning for walking — identify key trip generators, core walking zones
and routes, audit existing provisions and determine the improvements required.

4 Stage 5: Prioritising improvements — prioritise improvements to develop a phased
programme for future investment.

4 Stage 6: Integration and application — integrate outputs into local planning and transport

What happens next?

Adopting the new LCWIP is a key step towards a better active travel network and reducing
carbon emissions in NWL. Following the completion, the focus and attention will then turn
towards converting the schemes into reality, which means working up elements of the LCWIP in
greater detail through detailed design, costs, securing further funding for schemes and
subsequently their delivery. This will require working with a range of NWL departments including
planning to ensure schemes align with housing growth development as set out in the Local
Plan, and to ensure opportunities/funding can be maximised.

To fortify funding opportunities and to ensure schemes are integrated across authority boundary
lines, it is expected that all of Leicestershire’s authorities produce individual LCWIPs, which will
fall under the County Council’s Cycling and Walking Strategy.

The County Council will be expected to take the lead to ensure that this is the case, which will

result in a coordinated approach to cycling and walking across the County, ensuring a future
healthy lifestyle for all residents and also continued reductions in carbon emissions.

2021 NW Leicestershireligycling & Walking Strategy o7



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Cycling and Walking links to the Local Plan

The North West Leicestershire Local Plan will provide the planning framework and policies for
the district. It will identify areas where future growth will occur. The cycling and walking priorities
highlighted through this strategy (and to be explored further in the LCWIP) have the potential to
be funded or benefit from future planning contributions.

This evidence base can help to be the catalyst to seek contributions as and when developments
are approved. It should be noted that contributions for any cycling/walking schemes must be
linked to local developments and the LCWIP will need to clearly justify the need for contributions
to assist in this process (i.e. land ownership issues, estimated costs of delivery etc). This can
inform the Local Plan process and help contribute to key documents such as the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan and Viability study.

In areas where there may be little or no planned development, contributions will be difficult to be
sought. This is particularly relevant in rural areas which may affect potential leisure routes.

Identifying how to mitigate potential barriers/issues once a scheme is identified

In common with any strategy implementation, there will be barriers to navigate to ensure
schemes and programmes are delivered. Some of those commonly encountered are listed
below along with ideas about how they can look to be mitigated:

4 Securing funding

Funding for schemes is a common challenge. Any potential route options are likely to be
balanced against the demand being made in respect of other local authority infrastructure
requirements. As identified above, for certain priority schemes contributions may be able to be
sought through developer contributions.

To maximise this potential, NWL needs to know the estimated costs of priority schemes in
advance of any planned development, so this can look to be sought from developments (and
subject to viability). The earlier this can be identified and factored into considerations the better.
Calculating estimated costs of any scheme is to be part of the LCWIP.

Other funding may be available to support cycling and walking schemes, and can be linked in
with a larger project, such as the Major Road Network (MRN) investment programme.

< Land ownership

For any priority highlighted it is crucial to understand the land ownership issues which may
impact the likelihood of a scheme. This could potentially increase costs or affect delivery.

The Local Plan process and supporting documents such as the Infrastructure Delivery Plan
need to consider the land ownership issues. Potential solutions around land ownership could
include working collaboratively with owners or compulsory purchase orders. It is therefore
important for the LCWIP to explore and consider the land ownership details for priority routes.

2021 NW Leicestershire - ﬂ/gling & Walking Strategy 58



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

<« Balancing plans to promote cycling and walking with the demand of other road users.

Any new scheme, particularly within an urban environment will necessitate adoption of a
balanced approach. In-depth consultation and taking every opportunity to learn from and apply
best practice guidance is required to ensure that schemes are approved. It is important that,
whilst encouraging more sustainable travel, the economy of urban areas is not affected, and
that those who cannot use sustainable travel and face access issues are minimally affected or
completely unaffected.

<« Ensuring full consultation

This must be undertaken prior to scheme design and/or delivery. It should involve all relevant
local community groups and other interested parties. Regular community consultation is
required as part of any scheme to ensure that all groups are happy with any potential scheme.
For example, reducing highway capacity within a town centre may cause issues with local shop
managers, however, use of best practice examples and regular consultation can help to mitigate
potential issues.

< Demonstrating scheme benefits.

Most schemes require an evidence base prior to development. Utilising the best appropriate
examples listed earlier in this strategy will ensure that there is a good evidence base to support
any potential scheme.

< Efficient work with and between council and government departments.

To ensure the successful delivery of any scheme, effective communication is needed between
all delivery partners. This will be necessary when considering highway design, active travel,

health awareness and when, how and by whom local interest groups are consulted. Not working
effectively together may jeopardise any potential scheme’s prospects.

2021 NW Leicestershireli&;ycling & Walking Strategy 59



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

APPENDIX A: PROJECT CONSULTATION LIST

NWL officers

A A A A A A A A A A

Senior Planning Officer (Planning Policy): North West Leicestershire
Planning Policy Team Manager: North West Leicestershire

Climate Change Programme Manager: North West Leicestershire
Cultural Services Team Manager: North West Leicestershire
Business Focus Team Manager: North West Leicestershire
Economic Development Officer: North West Leicestershire

Head of Community Services: North West Leicestershire

Chief Executive: North West Leicestershire

Community Focus Team Leader North West Leicestershire
Community Safety Team Leader: North West Leicestershire

Acting Property Services Manager, Estates and Facilities: North West Leicestershire
Council

Local parish and town councils (including Coalville Special Expenses areas)

A A A A A A A A AAAAAANANAAANAN

Ashby Castle

Ashby Willesley

Ashby Holywell
Worthington and Breedon
Castle Donington Park
Castle Donington Central
Castle Donington Castle
Snibston South

Coalville West
Hugglescote St Mary's
Snibston North

Ellistown and Battleflat
Ibstock East

Measham North
Measham South

Long Whatton and Diseworth
Daleacre Hill

Kegworth

Local and regional stakeholders

A A A A A A A AAAAA

NWLDC members

Network Development Manager: Sustrans

Active Communities & Health Partnership Manager- South Derbyshire District Council
Principal Planning Officer- Charnwood Borough Council

Sport & Physical Activity Co-ordinator: Erewash Borough Council

Physical Activity Coordinator- Hinckley and Bosworth District Council

Senior Development Officer: Rushcliffe Borough Council

Environmental Management: Tamworth Borough Council

Historic Parks manager: Litchfield District Council

Leisure and Culture Client Manager Melton Borough Council

Community and Wellbeing Manager  Oadby and Wigston Borough Council
Health, Leisure & Tourism Services Manager: Blaby District Council

2021 NW Leicestershire - ﬂ/gling & Walking Strategy 60



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

Physical Activity Development Officer: Harborough District Council
Treasurer: Coalville Community Action Group

Core Team member: Ashby Cloud Trail

Chair: Coalville Tri Club

Chair: Coalville Wheelers

Area Footpath Secretary: Leicestershire and Rutland Ramblers
Site manager: Hicks Lodge (Forestry England)

Head of Country Parks and Estates (LCC - Snibston Country Park)
Local Campaigner: Diseworth to Long Whatton Trail (DLW)

Travel Plan manager: SEGRO Sustainable Working Group

A A A A A A A A A A

2021 NW LeicestershirelibCycIing & Walking Strategy

Senior Social Prescribing Link Worker: Public Health: Leicestershire County Council

61



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY

APPENDIX B: PARISH COUNCIL CONSULTATION QUESTIONS

< What are the key locations within your ward, across the District, and in neighbouring
authorities that you would like to see linked as part of the cycling and walking network?

4 What other initiatives would increase the level of cycling and walking in your locality
and across NWL?

<« Interms of cycling and walking, if you could identify one priority that should be included
within the strategy, what would it be?

2021 NW Leicestershire - ﬂ/yling & Walking Strategy 62



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

North West Leicestershire
Local Cycling and Walking

N

Infrastructure Plan

s 2
< Secsdynge
TN ]

‘Efgé

L,

.'g.:l Cl’
Northwest sustrans

District Council JOIN THE MOVEMENT




Contents

l. Contents
Contents

About Sustrans

1. Introduction

1.1 LCWIP Structure

2. Determining Scope

3. Gathering Information

4.1 Trip Generators

4.3 Route Selection

4.4 Community Engagement

5.1 Overview

5.2 Trip Generators

6. Prioritising Improvements

6.1 Overview

6.2 Prioritising improvements

6.3 Scheme Scores

4.  Glossary of Terms

1
2
3
4
7
2.1 Establishing the Geographical Extent 7
9
3.1 National Walking and Cycling Levels 9
3.2 Local Walking and Cycling Levels 12
4. Network Planning for Cycling 14
20
4.2 Analysing Walking and Cycling Collision Statistics 24
29
31
4.5 Route Selection Tool and Route Audits 32
4.6 Establishing Cycling Infrastructure Improvements 33
5. Network Planning for Walking 44
44
44
5.6 Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 45
5.7 Establishing Walking Infrastructure Improvements 46
49
49
49
52
6.4 Conclusion and Recommendations 54
55
Appendix 1 Design Principles 56
Appendix 2 Potential Funding Sources 60
Appendix 3 Cycle route maps 61
68

Appendix 4 Walking route maps

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

120

sustrans



About Sustrans

Sustrans is the charity making it easier for people to walk and cycle. We connect people and places,
create liveable neighbourhoods, transform the school run and deliver a happier, healthier commute.
Join us on our journey. www.sustrans.org.uk.

Registered Charity No. 326550 (England and Wales) SC039263 (Scotland).

Our vision
A society where the way we travel creates healthier places and happier lives for everyone.

Our mission
We make it easier for people to walk and cycle.

What we do
\ 00
@ age

. . . We’'re grounded in
We make the case for walking We provide solutions. We communities, involving local

and cycling by using robust capture imaginations with bold people in the design, delivery
evidence and showing what can ideas that we can help make 514 maintenance of solutions
be done. happen

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S U St ra n S

121


http://www.sustrans.org.uk/

1. Introduction

In 2017, the first Cycling and Walking Investment
Strategy (CWIS) was published by the Department for
Transport. This was replaced in July 2022 by CWIS2,
which sets out the Government’s ambition to make
walking and cycling the natural choices for shorter
journeys, or as part of longer journeys by 2040. The
CWIS supports the transformation of local areas: which
will tackle congestion, extend opportunity to improve
physical and mental health, and support local economies.

The CWIS2 built on the previous iteration and set out four revised objectives to ambitions 2025, which
raised the level of ambition:

1. Increase the % of short journeys in towns and cities that are walked or cycled from 41%
in 2018/19 to 46% in 2025

2. double cycling, where cycling activity is measured as the estimated total number of cycle
stages made each year, from 0.8 billion stages in 2013 to 1.6 billion stages in 2025.

3. increase walking activity, where walking activity is measured as the total number of walking
stages per person per year, to 365 stages per person per year in 2025.

4. increase the percentage of children aged 5 to 10 that usually walk to school from 49%
in 2014 to 55% in 2025.

The Government’s ambition by 2040 is to make cycling and walking the natural choices for short
journeys, or as part of a longer journey, and deliver:

e Better safety - a safe and reliable way to travel for short journeys
e Better mobility — more people cycling and walking, making it normal, easy and enjoyable

e Better streets — places that have cycling and walking at their heart and enable active travel

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra n S

122



Government guidance recommended that local authorities should develop Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPSs) for their area. While the preparation of an LCWIP is non-mandatory,
the Department for Transport (DfT) has advised that Local Authorities who have plans will be well
placed to make the case for future investment.

LCWIPs provide a new strategic approach to identifying cycling and walking improvements at the
local level. They aim to enable a long-term approach to forming local cycling and walking networks,
ideally over a 10-year period, and form a fundamental part of the Government’s strategy to increase
the number of trips made on foot or by bicycle.

The key outputs of LCWIPs are:

e anetwork plan for walking and cycling which identifies preferred routes and core zones for
further development

e a prioritised programme of infrastructure improvements for future investment

e areport which sets out the underlying analysis carried out and provides a narrative which
supports the identified improvements and network

1.1 LCWIP Structure

Government LCWIP guidance sets out the LCWIP process which includes six stages, as identified

below

1 Determining Scope Establish the geographical scope of the LCWIP and
identification of the existing walking and cycling network.

2 Gathering Information Identify existing patterns for cycling and walking and
potential new journeys. Review existing conditions and
identify barriers. Review related transport and land use
policies.

3 Network Planning for Cycling Identify origin and destination points and cycle flows.
Convert flows into a network of routes and determine the
type of improvements required.

4 Network Planning for Walking Identify key trip generators, core walking zones and routes,
audit existing provision and determine the type of
improvements required.

5 Prioritising Improvements Prioritise improvements to develop a phased programme for
future investment.

6 Integration and Application Integrate outputs into local planning and transport policies,

strategies, and delivery plan

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra n S

123



1.2 North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure
Plan

Sustrans has been commissioned by North West Leicestershire District Council (NWLDC) to produce
their first Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) for towns within their district, to build
on the Cycling and Walking Strategy?* produced by NWLDC in 2021. This Strategy sets out the
approach that the District Council and partners intend to take at a local level to deliver on the
Government’s ambitions to make England a great walking and cycling nation. The Strategy provided
the evidence base for Sustrans to develop this LCWIP.

The creation of a LCWIP will enable NWLDC to:

Identify short, medium- and long-term investment priorities for cycling and walking
infrastructure improvements

Ensure that consideration is given to cycling and walking within both local planning and
transport policies and strategies

Make the case for future funding for cycling and walking infrastructure

The study will help identify cycling infrastructure which links jobs and communities together, with the
aim of increasing mobility by means of sustainable transport methods helping to improve air quality,
modal shift from motorised forms of transport and seek to reduce delays in the highway network.

One of the main ways of delivering these objectives is to create a high quality and well-integrated
walking and cycling network which maximises sustainable transport movements to services and
facilities, employment, shops, education and leisure opportunities.

This is the first iteration of NWLDC’s LCWIP and covers the urban areas of Ashby-de-la-Zouch,
Ibstock, Coalville, Measham, Kegworth and Castle Donington. The report aims to provide the context
and network planning to prioritise a list of walking and cycling routes that should be targeted for
improvement in the future. The routes identified within this report offer the greatest opportunity to
increase the numbers of walking and cycling trips in the above towns and have been prioritised using
a range of factors.

The prioritised schemes are based on analysis that identifies the most important corridors requiring
improved walking and cycling facilities. To develop the schemes further, design feasibility and
concepts are required which assess scheme cost and deliverability, in turn leading to funding
opportunities.

Local user knowledge is key to successful delivery of schemes and NWLDC welcomed input in
developing the strategic network of schemes. Delivery of the plan will be evidence led, based on a

1 https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local cycling and walking stateqy

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

124


https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local_cycling_and_walking_stategy

range of data sources, and informed by the views and aspirations of residents, visitors, and local
groups across the areas this report focusses on.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

125



2. Determining Scope

Following discussion with NWLDC and the launch of the
Cycling and Walking Strategy the scope of this LCWIP
was set out to cover the urban areas of Ashby-de-la-
Zouch, Ibstock, Coalville, Measham, Kegworth and
Castle Donington.

2.1 Establishing the Geographical Extent

The geographical extent of this LCWIP has been informed by NWLDC’s Cycling and Walking Strategy
and will cover the urban areas of of Ashby-de-la-Zouch, Ibstock, Coalville, Measham, Kegworth and
Castle Donington. These areas represent the key urban locations within North West Leicestershire in
terms of destinations and also residential areas.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra n S

126



Py S

A R A
Digital Elevation Model | Slope Gradient / %
Value B <1 6-10
2| W 270 : 1-3 [ 10-25
- -40 {
i Sl Yy 3-6 Il >25
National Cycle Network [ 3
] 4 Eomes. e IH ] NwL Boundary
Traffic Free P \ A )
*| = On Road A = —
& Ferry -

~ Coalville
i

b

Ibstock

nStreellian cerinbors, Mierzal Facsback, Inc ity Wape, e oy Fen, Conlas: chala fom Propensiy o Cyele Tael Hips

Nz diata © Opy

Topography Survey I

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Figure 1 Topographical overview of North West Leicestershire with the existing National Cycle Network
(NCN).

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

127



3. Gathering
Information

The six urban areas within North West Leicestershire are compact towns where cycling and walking
distances are relatively modest and often cover the whole the urban area, as such it is felt that the
urban areas are particularly suitable for walking and cycling, which was observed at the time of audit.

LCWIPs are evidence led and based on data that evaluates several existing and potential trips that
could feasibly be made by walking or cycling if current conditions were improved. A range of tools and
information sources were used to examine this data to inform the LCWIP. Sources and methodology
are detailed in the following section, and include:

Transport network — including the existing walking and cycling network, along with synergies with
other NWL planned and proposed transport and land use schemes that could potentially have an
impact on walking and cycling

Travel patterns — data about existing walking and cycling trips, and journeys that people currently
make using other modes of transport. This information informs where walking and cycling may be
able to contribute to all or part of a journey

Location of significant trip generators — location and size of existing and planned trip generators,
such as key employment sites, transport interchanges, education facilities and housing developments

3.1 National Walking and Cycling Levels

To inform North West Leicestershire’s current walking and cycling levels, the Department for
Transport’s National Travel Survey for England gives a good understanding of the current picture for
walking and cycling. Below are some key relevant statistics from the survey’s 2019 iteration:

Travel Mode in England 2019
61% of all trips were made by car, either as driver or passenger. 26% of trips were made by foot, 5%
by bus, 3% by train, 2% by cycling and 2% by other modes.

68% of trips were under 5 miles and 24% of trips were under 1 mile. This varies by mode of travel:
nearly all walks are under 5 miles (99%), compared to 56% of car driver trips and 8% of surface rail
trips.

Active modes of travel (walking and cycling) account for 28% of all trips and 4% of all distance

travelled, as active trips tend to be shorter distance trips. From 2002 to 2019, the number of trips by

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

128



walking has declined by 5% and total number of miles travelled per year has changed slightly,
decreasing by 1%. For cycling, annual distance travelled has increased by 41% although the number
of trips by cycling has declined by 10% between 2002 and 2019.This change is shown in the graph
below:

Walking and cycling number of annual trips per person
(DfT National Travel Survey, 2019)

40

e \\ alking

8

Walking Trips
N
8
w
o
Cycling Trips

220

Cycling
200 10
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Figure 2 - Change in the annual number of trips made by active modes

There were 249 walking trips per person per year on average in 2019, which decreased from 262 per
walking trips per person in 2018. 80% of all trips under 1 mile were made by walking.

There has been a decline in the number of trips and the distance of trips by car between 2002 and
2019, by both drivers and passengers. Number of trips has declined by 13% for the car driver and

17% for passengers, and the distance of trips taken by car has declined by 13% for car drivers and
14% for passengers.

Journeys less than 1 miles were most frequently made by walking (80%), although all distance bands
above 1 mile, travelling by car was the most frequent mode of travel. Buses were mainly used for
medium-length trips, between 2 and 25 miles.

Bus trips were highest amongst the 17-20 year old age range accounting for 12% of their total trips
24% of trips were under 1 mile and 68% of trips were under 5 miles.

The average bicycle trip length increased from 2002 to 2019, with an average 3.3 miles (2.1 miles in
2002), Walking trip lengths remained largely unchanged between 2002 and 2019, which a slight
increase of average walking trip distance being 0.68 miles in 2019, compared to 0.69 miles in 2002.
Time spent on bicycle trips also increased to 23 minutes per trip in 2019 from 18 minutes per trip in
2002.

On average each person walks 205 miles per year, spending an average of 17 minutes walking per
trip.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

129



School Travel
National Travel Survey data from 2019 showed for 5-10 year olds the average trip length to school is
1.6 miles, and for 11-16 year olds the average trip length is 3.5 miles.

Primary school journeys in 2019 (children aged 5-10) 46% walk to school, 47% are driven, 1% cycle,
5% take a private or local bus to school.

Secondary school journeys in 2019 (children aged 11-16) 39% walk to school, 26% are driven, 3%
cycle and 29% take a private or local bus to school.

Average number of trips by distance and main mode
(DfT National Travel Survey, 2019)

Under 1 mile  Under 2 miles Under 5 miles Under 10 miles Under 25 miles Under 50 miles Under 100 miles

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

Percentage of all modes by distance

0%

EWalk ®mCycle WBus ®Train ECar HOther

Figure 3 trips by distance and mode 2019

Travel to work

2019 commuting data by modes shows that on average 12% of people walked to work and 4%
cycled. 8% of people travel by bus and 12% by train. Travelling by car as a passenger or driver was
the most frequent mode at 61%.

On average people travelled 1,276 miles per year for commuting purposes, an decrease in mileage
compared to 2002 of 124 miles. The average length of a commute in 2019 was 9.1 miles, compared
to 8.5 miles in 2002.

Reasons for Travel
The reasons trips were made were also recorded, and on average:

- 26% for other leisure - 18% for personal business and other

escort
- 19% for shopping

- 15% for commuting

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

130



- 13% for education and escorting to - 6% for other reasons

education .
- 3% for business

3.2 Local Walking and Cycling Levels

At baseline (2011 Census), théproportion of tcommuters who cycled to work in Leicestershire was
3.3%, compared to the national average of 3.1% in England and Wales as a whole. The percentage
of cycling expected was 3.3%, based on the distance and hilliness of commutes in the region using
the baseline model for England and Wales.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

131



Existing No. of Car Users 3 { Existing No. of Pedestrian d N
<400  |M650 - 800 Beesy <20 [EM50-80 + Beesy

1777 400 - 500 [l 800 - 1000 \ [1120-30 W80 -120 Y A

1 500 - 650 M 1000 - 1200 = N30 -50 120 - 180 =

I
¢ ’7 Castle

Burton upon
[rent *

England

AsAT Aaa7

Existing No. of Cyclist e . Existing No. of Motorbike riders A5096) ;

<5 Mm15-25 Derby Beesy <2 EH6-10 Beesy
5-10 WM25-40 p \ 2-4 EM10-15 \
BN10-15 EEA40 - 60 = B4 HE15-20 =

reat

X

Burton upon
[rent *

0 5 4 ) I L J

' Kilometers Motor Bike

Map data © OpenStreethap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its affiliates, Esri Community Maps contributors, Kap layer by Esri, Contains data from Propensity to Cycle Tool: https://ww.pct bike
a

Al

ol

Figure 4 Census 2011 travel to work data visualised by transport mode

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str a ns

132



4. Network Planning
for Cycling

This section describes the methodology adopted for the
Network Planning for Cycling stage of North West
Leicestershire LCWIP.

During this stage an analysis of data and local knowledge was completed so that key routes could be
mapped.

Once identified, physical route audits were undertaken to determine what high level infrastructure
improvements could be made to improve route quality and make cycling more likely to be adopted for
journeys in the future.

The National Cycle Network (NCN) within North West Leicestershire and existing “LTN Street
Statistics” are shown below for each urban area. A low traffic neighbourhood (LTN) is a scheme
where motor vehicle traffic in residential streets is greatly reduced. This is done by minimising the
amount of traffic that comes from vehicles using the streets to get to another destination. This is often
referred to as ‘through-traffic’ or ‘rat-running’. Private motorised vehicles still have easy access to all
homes and businesses without driving directly through the neighbourhood.

This data was used to inform audits and potential alternative alignments to those proposed in the
Cycling and Walking Strategy. The routes identified in the Cycling and Walking Strategy were
identified through a process that drew on multiple sources summarised below. Further detail can be
found in the full version of the Cycling and Walking Strategy.

The Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT), to identify potential cycling routes based on where
cycling is currently common and where it has the greatest potential to grow

- Literature review of all relevant local documentation, including NWL'’s Local Plan and the
current cycling strategies for Ashby, Kegworth and Coalville

- Participation in a range of consultation sessions with various stakeholders, to ascertain key
destinations for cycling and walking both within and beyond the Authority.

- Online survey to allow people from the wider community in NWL to express their views

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

133


https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local_cycling_and_walking_stategy

- Consultation with neighbouring local authorities to gain insight into current schemes and
future proposals in the areas.

The LTN Statistics maps indicate where roads are either:

- ALTN/ have no through traffic
- Athrough-route where rat running potentially occurs
- Athrough-route with traffic calming

Data was sourced from CycleStreets and is a result of automated analysis of OpenStreetMap data
which means it is high level and indicative and may not be accurately reflect road conditions. The
maps have been used in this LCWIP to indicate potential quiet-way re-alignments for routes.

Ashby de la Zouch| N

National Cycle Network National Cycle Network
o — Traffic Free ~ Traffic Free

—— On Road O —— On Road

LTN streets statistics LTN streets statistics

— Main road — Main road

—— TN — LN

— Rat-runs 0 0.5 1 AR — Rat-runs

= S| T

i ey Mo, Wi P o end i P G s s L, o bn Uy o, O i o Pogast b Co o Wiy s bl o

LTN Statistics :

O S e

Figure 5 LTN Statistics maps

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU St r a ns

134



National Cycle Network
— Traffic Free

— On Road

LTN streets statistics
— Main road

~ | — Main road

National Cycle Network
— Traffic Free

— On Road

LTN streets statistics

— LN
— Rat-runs

. Ibstock

Redholme Bungalow:
Farm

Kegworth |7

K ==
AR ﬂ*
L e

LTN Statistics

Figure 6 LTN Statistics maps

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

135

&road Hill
National Cycle Network National Cycle Network
— Traffic Free — Traffic Free
— On Road & — On Road
LTN streets statistics LTN streets statistics
— Main road ~— Main road
Butlgrwick
—=LN: === — LTN
0 0.35 0.7 —_— £ 0 .35 0. —— Rat-i
Kilometers \ Hais # ilometers Rattng
b T
P o b il Coti i b Oy T Wl i e

sustrans



4.1 Cycle route prioritisation tools

Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT)

The 2011 census data has been incorporated into the Propensity to Cycle Tool (https://www.pct.bike),
which is a nationwide (England and Wales) web-based tool for estimating cycling potential down to
the street level. The PCT covers travel behaviour data for commuting and travel to school. Cycle
commuting data is based on the 2011 Census and cycle to school based on the 2011 School cycling
Census. Other trip purposes and more recent data are not currently available nationwide at the
geographic resolution required for the PCT. At the time of writing the 2021 census had taken place
but no data was available.

The PCT is focused on the fastest and most direct route alignments. Whilst several cycle users may
opt for the quieter route options the bigger increases in capacity and modal shift may necessitate
significant improvements in the faster more direct options.

The PCT tool does not identify what type of infrastructure to implement on each road, however it
identifies the most plausible route options where investment is likely to have greatest impact based on
the data. The PCT was used in the Cycling and Walking Strategy, almogside other sources of data,
toidentify and prioritise the cycle route options incorporated into the LCWIP.

= it SN 7 I s S B
Network Density km/500m2 [or. .~~~ / ( WiN Network Bike Users el 7y | ‘\
<05 - t12-18f iy, L <5 — 3060 | iy 1% s
05-08 WE16-2 i = LongEll 4 | 5 15 emmm 60- 100 i S, o LongExion
08-12 HMl>2 / 4 Q —— 15-30 == 100 7 / g
™ ( Eo~™

7T
]

-
.,4'3;; R |
- .

T

e‘ L : \_:“I“‘
\,? \ N 5 0

.

siicp b s ezt Sasasack,

Network Routes Utility

Figure 7 Network density and user numbers, Census 2011

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

136



SN 1Y N LW 'Q(elston 7 7
Bike Users  NCN Bike Users  NCN = N {No
2 ~—— TrafficFree |¢ - ~ TrafficFree - A
S—0 -2 —— OnRoad pl}efo 7
..... 55 Beeston
-3 o . >
. €95
£/ |
I A
—ey \ u{ 4
. | Castie Donington

7

o a
nTrent 8
&

Mgrket Bosworth

[
Trip Originated from North West Leicestershire
! I}

‘\\
sustrans

,‘3..'.‘port74 —

d

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

N Gata © OpenSteethlz ceriniblors, IErowel, Lacebock, ING. and 1z 1 sles, Lon Cormunity Waps contiibutors, Map laysr by Len, Contas data lom Propensiy to Cyce Tucl higs i pel bixe

= =
Trip Pattern - Bike Users
~ L& | 7 = N \
Pedestrian ~ NCN Pedestrian  NCN
<10 ~— TrafficFree — <10 ~— TrafficFree
~——— 10-25 —— OnRoad : ;g - gg —— OnRoad
-5 ... Ferry

w25 - 50

&

Trip Originated from North West Leicestershire
1 |

onlnutors, Wap lays by o, Conlans dala 1o Propeney (6 Ggeie Taal Filgs £ pel biee

Mgrket Bosv&pnh

sustrans

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Wiz cala © OpenSlreellan cerinbulors, Irozall, Facsback. Ine. and i 21 | ales, For Communily

Trip Pattern -

Figure 8 Trip patterns

Pedestrian

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

sustrans



It also enables several different scenarios to be investigated to understand how user numbers may
increase given different levels of intervention. This analysis is useful when developing business cases
for identified routes. The baseline for this analysis is the 2011 census data, as seen previously, and
the PCT can relate the point-to-point travel to work data based on the Lower Super Output areas to
the existing highway network. It uses the Cycle Streets routing algorithm to apportion the travel to
work points to the available routes.

Further, the PCT tool can be used to appraise potential uplift in cycling levels given a number of
different scenarios.

THE GO DUTCH SCENARIO
The Go Dutch scenario in the PCT tool is an ambitious vision for what cycling could look like.

People in the Netherlands make 28.4% of trips by bicycle, fifteen times higher than the figure of 1.6%
in England and Wales. In addition, cycling in England and Wales is skewed towards younger, male
cyclists by contrast in the Netherlands cycling remains common into older age, and women are in fact
slightly more likely to cycle than men This means that the difference between England and the
Netherlands is particularly large for women and older people.

E-BIKES SCENARIO

The E-Bikes scenario in the PCT tool is a model of the additional increase in cycling that would be
achieved through the widespread uptake of electric cycles (‘ebikes"). This scenario is designed as an
extension of the Go Dutch scenario, making the further assumption that all cyclists in the Go Dutch
scenario own an ebike.

It builds on the Go Dutch scenario by applying three additional ebikes scaling factors to account for
the increased willingness of ebike users to cycle long distance, hilly and simultaneously long distance
and hilly routes.

Whilst this part of the UK is not excessively hilly the rise of E-bike usage is increasing the distances
that people feel capable of undertaking, and when coupled with high quality segregated infrastructure
can offer commuters choice.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

138



4.1 Trip Generators

To identify the demand for a new network, the main destination points were plotted within the NWLDC
area using a Geographic information systems (GIS). Various trip generators were identified, including:

- Accommodation, eating and drinking
- Attractions

- Commercial services

- Education and health

- Manufacturing and production

- Public infrastructure

- Retalil

- Sport and entertainment

- Transport

The proposed cycle route maps for each town included in the Cycling and Walking Strategy show how
the priority routes identified relate to key destinations (trip generators) such as employment and
leisure as well as residential areas within and surrounding the towns, including areas of housing
growth, from where most cycling trips will originate.

The identified origins and destinations are plotted on the following maps. These are illustrative of how
points of interest are clustered, with the density of points of interest reflecting hotspots of potential
travel destinations.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

139



=
al )|
Packlngl.on

Points of Interest o Manutacturing and
Accommodation, Production

* Eating and Drinking  « Public Infrastructure

« Attractions. * Retail

« Commercial Services » Sport and Entertainment

 Education and Health « Transport

wmnlnrop-a:-xmucmw Wirame, Tacetiock, Inc, and s 31 | ales. le-wbrr-v

Paiiteof Interest Distribution  cctrard

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Figure 9 Ashby points of interest

n I
iFw/a&g‘gng fon

ASvf/%nirg(on
. d/‘ .

A
> {¢

|| Points of Interest o Manufacturing and
Accommodation, Production
POI Density 3 “ Eating and Drinking  + Public Infrastructure
, Sparse 4 « Allractions * Retail
- fi | » Commercial Services o Sport and Entertainment |-
Dense [===— » Education and Health « Transport

I cala © OpenSteellian carinbolors, Wirosell Faceback, n and s sl ales, Can Gommuniy Waps . Miap laysr by e, Contauns dla f-om Propensily (6 Cyoe Tuel hilfs i ol bike:

Points of Interest Distribution  <tanf

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

140



‘West Apron

."
1l AL

Points of Interest = Manuractunng and

8 Accommodation, Produc
I POI Density | © Fating and Drinking  « Public In{raslruclure
ki Sparse 4  Allractions * Retail
4 « Commercial Services « Sporl and Enlerlainment
Dense ® Education and Health « Transport
Pap cala r‘Dn:nS(reellll.\u crinbulors, Microsell Facsbock, Ine. and ibs =11l ales, Miap layes by Fan, Con ’

Points of Interest Dlstrlbutlon sustrans

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Figure 11 Coalville and Castle Donington points of interest

__.~Donington Le Heath|

6 '\*?‘“

.
«__~Donington ﬂeat)h
.

' - .

Sence Valle)
Country Pail

Points of Interest _ Manutacturing and
Accommodation, * Production
POI Density “ Fating and Drinking  » Public Infrastructure

Sparse « Allractions * Retail
» Commercial Services » Sport and Enlerlainment

Dense @ Education and Health « Transport

2%
Vo ot © OpenheeiNan carirbors, Warasal Facsimck, I and s ol ales, Wiap by by o 710 Cyme Taal Mg

Points 6f INerest DiSWbEbon sl

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Figure 10 Ibstock Points of Interest

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

141



Points ol‘ Interest Manufal:tunng and

Accommodation, * Production
POI Density ) “ Eating and Drinking  « Public Infrastructure
Sparse | . « Attractions * Retail
(A . kS ] « Commercial Services « Sport and Entertainment
| Dense

Kilometers

» Education and Health » Transport
Map data © OpenStreellzn cerinbutors, Misrose!!, Facsbock. Inc.

and s 2l s, el Gormmuniy Waps Gor

ey Wiap s by Fen, Conlars dla fom Propensi'y (o Cyee Toel Nilfs e el bike

Pomts of Interest Dlstrlbutlon

Figure 12 Measham Points of Interest

SEGRO East
[ Micte

_ Points of Interest o Menutacturing and
" = , Accommodation, ® Product e
POI Density 1 y “ Eating and Drinking ~ « Public Inlraslruc(ure 2
8 Sparse |, G Attractions * Retail of : i
. « Gommercial Services « Sport and Entertainment \ :
Dense @ Education and Health « Transport
Wi dala © OpenStreatkian oo : T T ——— Map la y«uyrm

o
sustrans

=
e Toal Rilps e el bire:

Pomts of Interest Dlstrlbutlon

Figure 13 Kegwoth Points of Interest

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

142

sustrans

sustrans




4.2 Analysing Walking and Cycling Collision Statistics

Using the Cycle Streets Collision Data reports form 2011 heat maps have been produced identifying
locations where collisions involving pedestrians are more prevalent. This analysis represented
graphically can be used alongside the other tools detailed above to inform route selection based on
current patterns of usage and locations that require improvements for pedestrian and cycling safety.
Maps are detailed below.

severity

fatal
serious
slight

Smisby |

Shellbrook
Wood

thlesley

fillesley. ,““/‘f Paclfipg(on

0 10 é///
I Kilometers
: ke

Wap data & OpenSireethésa contoutors, Microsoft, Feosoock, In. snd 1s aflistes, Esri Community Faps contriburcrs. kap lays by Esr, Contains dat i net!

Collisions Mapping -

Figure 14 Ashby collision map

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

143 sustrans



‘ severity
® fatal

. serious
h * slight /

/

/& ‘Willow Farm

Hap dats & OpenSirsethisa controuters, Microsoft. Feosoock Ine. and 1s aftlistes, Esii Community Maps contribuicrs. kap lays by Esr, Contans

Collisions Mapping -zt

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Figure 15 Castle Donington collision map

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

144



: \ . }soc.
\/,

Z P 1 V. ,
" : \ ; '
ol Y G,
65 '} vl
mKiIngtl Cyclist < < el

data © Opsnireethizo controuters, Misrosaf:, Facsoock, Inc. and s aftlistse,

Collisions Mapping .ot

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

Figure 16 Ibstock collision map

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

145



I

Hap dats & OpenSirsethisa controuters, Microsoft. Feosoock Ine. and 1s aftlistes, Esii Community Maps contribuicrs. kap lays by Esr, Contans

Collisions Mapping -zt

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Figure 17 Kegworth collision map

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

146



| ® fatal
“  serious
* slight

o S
I e | /
goneopore 0 :
I Kilometers ot \
S | f 1
Map data . Wicrosaft, Faosbook, I by

-

' [Coisions Density |- 7%

s i = \
.:\..'" & \'_Jf el

i B Syt 7 T

A
,/
:lNWLBounda,yJ D &

Collisions Mapplng

Figure 18 Measham collision map

Ifap layee by Esti, Contars

sustrans

JOIN THE MOVEMENT

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

147

sustrans



4.3 Route Selection

The active travel priorities of the areas covered by the LCWIP (as well as surrounding boroughs) were
gathered through consultation and engagement and this informed the selection and prioritisation of
routes included in the NWLDC Cycling and Walking Strategy and used in this LCWIP. Further detail
on the consultation and engagement process and a selection of key messages emerging from it can
be found in the NWLDC Cycling and Walking Strateqy.

In summary the objectives of the Strategy and LCWIP are to:

e Create a highway infrastructure to support and encourage cycling and walking for all

e Work with partners to create a greener infrastructure

¢ Ringfence funding to support cycling and walking infrastructure

e Develop and support behavioural change processes and opportunities

Routes were prioritised based on need and the impact the route can have on increasing modal shift
informed by data analysis described in previous sections. This was agreed through consultation with
NWLDC Officers, with Ward Councillors engaged, during the process of developing the Cycling and
Walking Strategy. There were no set timescales with priorities being identified to help be ready if/
when funding becomes available. The priority walking routes are listed in the table below and the
cycling routes can be seen graphically in section 4.6 and in the table in section 4.6. They are also
shown in more detail in Appendix 3.

Priority walking routes

Reference | Description Destinations

Ashby

A-W01 Market Street from Derby Road roundabout to | High Street
North Street junction

A-W02 North Street from Brook Street roundaboutto | Leisure Centre, Ivanhoe College,
Wood Street Learning Centre

A-WO03 South Street from Bath Street to Market Castle, Bath grounds, Memorial
Street grounds

A-W04 Burton Road Ashby primary school, Castle

Medical group

A-W05 Kilwardby Street Ashby Hill Top primary school

Castle Donington

CD-Wo1 The Spittal Pavilion, Playground/Park

CD-Wo02 The Green Orchard Community Primary School

CD-W03 Bondgate Library, Bus Station, Parish Council

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU St rans

148


https://sustrans.sharepoint.com/sites/INT-PUB-13868NorthWestLeicestershireLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Working%20draft%20dec%2022/Final%20version/2023%20changes/Final%20sub/Cycling%20and%20Walking%20Strategy

CD-wo04

Delven Lane to Clapgun Street

Care Home, St Edward's School,
Pre-School, College, Wellbeing
Centre

CD-WO05

Borough Street

Surgery, Church, Retail, Post Office

Ibstock

Memorial Tower to A511 roundabout

Coalville

C-Wwo1 Ashby Road from Memorial Tower to Snibston Colliery Park, Urban
Snibston Colliery Park Forest Park, All Saints Primary

School

C-Wo02 High Street from Memorial Tower to Whitwick | High Street, Bus and Coach Station
Road

C-Wo03 London Road from Whitwick Road to Broom Coalville Park
Leys Road

C-Wo04 Belvoir Road from Memorial Tower to Avenue
Road junction

C-Wo05 Broom Leys Road from junction with London Broom Leys Road Surgery, Broom
Road to Surgery Leys primary school

C-Wo06 Ashburton Road from Manor Road to Central | Hugglescote primary school
Road

C-wo7 Thornborough Road and Mantle Lane from

I-\W01 Leicester Road Skate park

I-W02 Chapel Street

I-WO03 High Street High street, Ibstock & Barlestone
surgeries, Leisure centre

I-W04 Reform Road Between Melbourne Road and High
Street

I-W05 Melbourne Road

I-WO06 Central Avenue Schools

K-wo01 Derby Road from Nottingham Road to High High Street
Street
K-W02 High Street Kegworth primary school
K-W03 Dragwell Orchard Surgery
K-Wwo04 Nottingham Road
K-WO05 Side Ley Play area
K-WO06 Mill Lane Kegworth village hall, Mill Lodge

M-WO01 High Street south Ashby Woulds heritage tralil,
proposed Landrover site, leisure
centre

M-W02 High Street north High street

M-W03 Bosworth Road Primary schools, park, medical unit

Table 1 Details of walking route by location and reference

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

149

sustrans




4.4 Community Engagement

A range of individuals and organisations have been engaged in the development of NWLDC'’s Cycling
and Walking Strategy, which informs this LCWIP. The engagement consisted of four phases of
consultation:

e Public consultation: An online survey was established to allow an opportunity for the public
to have its say on where priorities should be directed towards to supporting cycling and
walking.

e Stakeholder engagement: All interested parties, including, local cycling clubs, rambling
organisations and strategic bodies were invited to take part in virtual face to face consultation

e Town and parish councils; A specific session was undertaken to identify the key cycling and
walking destinations within all town and parish councils

e Neighbouring authority engagement: These were consulted with to understand the current
and future ambitions they have for cycling and walking.

e NWLDC Elected Members were engaged.

A summary of the consultation findings is included in NWLDC’s Cycling and Walking Strategy. Key
outcomes of the online survey conducted in summer 2021 are summarised below.

Results showed that overall, most people surveyed cycled for leisure (94% of respondents) and
walked for general exercise purposes (92%). Over half of respondents reported walking to
undertake everyday activities (55%). With less than one quarter cycling to do everyday activities
(24%). A lower proportion of respondents’ cycle (17.5%) or walk (20%) to/from work and/or
/school.

To encourage increased levels of cycling, respondents were keen to see better cycling provision
both on highway and for off road journeys (85%). Respondents were also keen to see better cycle
parking infrastructure, including safe cycle parking at destination points (53%).

To encourage people to walk more, respondents wished to see safer routes including better
lighting and safer public realm (72.5%) and better surfaced and wider paths (72.5%). In addition,
they wanted better pedestrian links between public transport nodes to encourage multi modal
journeys and to discourage people from using cars (41%).

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

150



4.5 Route Selection Tool and Route Audits

The routes identified in the North West Leicestershire Cycling and Walking Strategy were physically
audited. The routes were assessed on site to identify what measures could be implemented to
provide improvements to achieve the targeted uplift in cycle levels.

The audit involved completing physical site surveys, cycling each route in both directions, and
assessing feasibility. If it was considered that a route cannot be improved to an acceptable level, the
next most direct route or an alternative was assessed. The audit focused on the five core design
outcomes:

e A coherent network with a consistent route quality and easy to navigate
e Adirect and fast route between origins and destinations

e A network that is through an environment that feels safe and removes conflicts with motor
vehicles

e A network that is smooth and comfortable to ride

e An attractive network that makes cycling a pleasurable activity

The map on the following page (figure 21) shows the routes that were audited as part of the LCWIP.
Appendix 3 also includes a map for each settlement, which shows these routes in more detalil.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

151



North West Leicestershire
Cycling priorities by settlement

Ashby

Castle Donington
Coalville

Ibstock
Kegworth
Measham
Existing network

Population density per square mile
[ 6,500 to 16,600

5,300 to
3,700 to
2,200 to
1,400 to
1,300 to
1,000 to
900 to
400 to
100 to

6,500
5,300
3,700
2,200
1,400
1,300
1,000

900

400

ot
W i gl
/’

A 3
B AN

he 37

Measham

L

36

221
] Gaame

22

35
|bstock

S

Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Page (www kkp.co.uk) @ Crown Copyright =l rights reserved. Licence number 100030577

Figure 19 Cycle priority routes as identified in NWLDC'’s Cycling and Walking Strategy

4.6 Establishing Cycling Infrastructure Improvements

To increase levels of cycling in the urban areas, the quantity and quality of provision in certain
locations requires significant improvement in terms of:

- Direct and joined up routes that improve access to trip generators and destinations,
especially to areas of new development

- Provision of proportional space
- Best practice design for route widths and junctions
- Safe and direct crossing points

- Higher standards of safety and visibility including signage / wayfinding, surveillance and
lighting

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

es sustrans



- On-road sections with segregation from traffic
- Quiet way measures to reduce traffic speed and volume to allow on-highway cycling

The proposals suggested are intended to appeal to new cyclists and to encourage less confident
cyclists to make more journeys by bicycle. Where possible, the proposed facilities are separated from
traffic, especially where traffic volumes are high or average vehicle speeds are greater than 30 mph. If
it can be achieved, a minimum of 300mm buffer between the cycle way and vehicles will be applied to
provide additional protection from passing vehicles and doors opening from parked cars. The buffer
will also assist pedestrians crossing the cycleway.

Quiet way measures are proposed where motor traffic flows are light and speeds are low, cyclists are
likely to be able to cycle on-carriageway in mixed traffic with traffic flows of less than 2,500 vehicles
per day and speeds of less than 20 mph. Some of the more rural roads surrounding the urban areas
in this LCWIP have conditions likely to support quiet ways, although robust data collection would be
required at design stage. Traffic calming and traffic management techniques can be used to reduce
motor vehicle speed and volume to make cycling in mixed traffic less hazardous and more
comfortable. These routes can also involve removal of non-local through-traffic.

Detailed cycling audits are appended. It is important to note that solutions identified in LCWIP audits
are high level concepts and feasibility studies for each route would be required to progress these
further. This would involve defining the exact alignment of the route (e.g., which side of the road
provision in on, whether it is on or off the highway, etc.) and identifying the most appropriate
interventions (e.g., crossing location and type, cycle lane design, etc.) at a high level of detail. This
allows accurate costings to be determined to be used in funding bids and proposals. Studies would
typically also incorporate engagement with communities to consult and in some cases co-create and
design spaces and routes that serve the people living and working in the localities. This process also
allows for competing local priorities to be considered, safety audits to be undertaken, and ensures
standards are complied with.

Table 2 List of high level improvements noted at route audit stage

Route Route Name High level description of infrastructure
Reference improvements noted during the audit stage

Ashby

A-CO1 Cloud Trail Extension New traffic free route creation (6.175km), new
crossings toucan (x2)), new multi-user bridge
bridge (x1), new ramp accesses (x1)

A-C02 Link to Hicks Lodge New traffic free route creation (0.5km), new
toucan crossing (x1) quiet way treatment (0.4km)
A-C03 Link to Coalville Please refer to C-C04 Route 4 — Coalville to
Ashby
A-C04 Link to proposed station New traffic free route creation (0.5km), existing
and towards Packington route resurfacing (1.1km), new parallel crossing

(x2), low level quiet way treatment (0.35km),
junction improvements (x1)

A-C05 Link to Swadlincote New traffic free route creation (1.5km), new
crossings toucan (x1) parallel (x1)

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra n S

153



A-C06 North south through the New traffic free route creation (0.25km), new
town centre, from crossings toucan (x2) parallel (x3), wayfinding and
roundabout to bypass signage, lighting improvement

A-CO7 Link to Boundary from New traffic free route creation (1.8km), new

bypass roundabout through
the town centre

Castle Donington

crossings toucan (x4) parallel (x6), junction
remodelling (x2)

CD-Co01 Green way New traffic free route creation (1km), widen
around the existing traffic free route (3km), new crossings
Airport/EMEG toucan (x4), low level quietway treatment (2.4km),

high level quietway treatment (1km).

CD-C02 New traffic free route creation (1.9km), resurfacing

existing traffic free route (1.1km), lighting.

CD-C04 Linking Kings Mills New parallel crossing (x4), low level quietway

treatment (1.6km), high level quietway treatment
(0.85km).

CD-CO05 Linking to Ratcliffe on New traffic free route creation (0.9km), widen
Soar traffic free route (2.1km)

CD-C07 Link north to Sawley and Widen existing traffic free route (2.85km),
beyond resurface existing traffic free route (0.9km), New

parallel crossing (x4), new crossings toucan (x4).

CD-CO08 Strategic link to New traffic free route creation (2.45km),
Loughborough resurfacing existing traffic free route (1.3km), low

level quietway treatment (1.1km), high level
quietway treatment (0.6km).

Coalville

C-Co1 East to west through the Widen existing traffic free route (1.75km) new
town centre crossings toucan (x7) parallel (x10), low level

quiet way treatment (1km), junction remodelling
(x1)

C-C02 North to south through town | High level quiet Way treatment (1.65km), new
centre crossings toucan (x1) parallel (x1), signage and

wayfinding

C-C03 Coalville to Hugglescote/ Widen existing traffic free route (4.9km) toucan
Ellistown crossing (x2)

C-co4 Coalville to Ashby New traffic free route creation (4.5km)

C-C05 Link to Sence Valley Please refer to I-C05 Route 5 — Strategic link to

Measham.

C-C06 North to south through town | New traffic free route creation (0.5km), new
centre crossings toucan (x6) parallel (x3), signage and

wayfinding, junction remodelling

C-co7 Link to town centre to Widen existing traffic free route (0.8km) toucan
hospital crossing (x4) high level quiet way treatment

(0.5km)

C-C09 Connection to Cloud Trail New traffic free route creation (2.7km), toucan

crossing (x1)

Ibstock

I-C01 Ibstock to Ellistown and New traffic free route creation (1.9km), resurface

Bardon Hill

existing route (0.5km) low level quiet way
treatment (0.25km), wayfinding and signage

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

e sustrans




I-C02 Strategic link to Coalville Please refer to C-C03 Route 3 — Coalville to
Hugglescote/Ellistown.

I-C03 Route through the town New traffic free route creation (1.4km), new

centre crossings toucan (x1) parallel (x4), junction

remodelling (x1), junction improvements (x1)

I-C04 Strategic link to Ashby Please refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to
Ibstock.

I-C05 Strategic link to Measham New traffic free route creation (0.3km), resurface

existing route (1.25km), wayfinding and signage
and lighting improvements

K-C01 Link to Castle Donington New traffic free route creation and quiet way

employment areas treatment (1.25km)

K-C02 Link north using Long Lane | Low level quiet way treatment (5.6 km), areas of

towards Long Eaton higher-level quiet way treatment, signage and
wayfinding

K-CO03 Route to Sutton Bonnington | New traffic free route creation (1km), new
crossings toucan (x2) parallel (x1), junction
improvements (x1)

K-C04 Route to A6 existing shared | New traffic free route creation (0.25km), toucan

use provision crossing (x1) low level quiet way treatment
(0.25km)
K-C06 Link Kegworth to Castle Widen existing traffic free route (0.5km), junction
. . improvements x1.
Donington / East Midlands
Gateway
K-C07 Link Sawley Marina with the Leicestershire County Council to audit route and
: identify interventions.
K-CO02 route at Lockington
Quarry via Warren Lane
and Public
Bridleway/Footpath
Measham
M-C01 Creating a link between the | New traffic free route creation (2.75km), widen
new Jaguar Land Rover site | existing traffic free route (0.3km) new crossings
and Measham toucan (x1) parallel (x5)

M-CO02 Strategic link to Ibstock Low level quiet way treatment (4km), widen
existing traffic free route (0.05km) parallel
crossings (x2) sighage and wayfinding

M-C03 Strategic Link to Ashby Widen existing traffic free route (2.3km) parallel

crossing (x5) parallel, low level quiet way
treatment (1km) with areas of higher level quiet
way treatment, junction remodelling (x1)

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

e sustrans




4.7 Economic Appraisal of Cycling Schemes

The cost for implementing new infrastructure has been estimated from recently built schemes across
the Midlands, with costs subject to change a low and high estimate has been used to give an
indicative high-level estimate for each route. The range of costs are shown in the below table along
with a narrative of high-level solutions. A Sustrans wide cost calculator tool was employed to generate
the indicative costs estimate.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

156



LGT

Reference

Description

High level improvements description

High level cost estimate

A-CO1 "Cloud Trail Extending the existing Cloud Trail to connect to Ashby Town Centre. Full feasibility study is [£9.161-£10.65 million.
Extension" required due to number of road crossings and landowners.
High level cost estimate used.
A-C02 Link to Hicks Lodge Quietway treatment along Willersley Lane and improved crossing facilities to link to Hicks £512-601,000
Lodge. Creation of new traffic free path.
A-C03 Link to Coalville Please refer to C-C04 Route to Ashby
A-C04 Link to proposed station and towards | The potential re-introduction of the lvanhoe Line could see the number of cycling journeys |£615-£777,000
Packington to Ashby station ride as part of multi-modal journeys. To enable these journeys it is
recommended that a traffic-free cycle route is installed along Tamworth Road, and quiet way
treatment and resurfacing of the existing bridleway is considered.
A-C05 Link to Swadlincote The existing shared use route along the bypass is adequate, but a signalised crossing at  [E781-£958,000
the junction with Ashby Road is recommended.
A traffic free path adjacent to the A511 from the Ashby Road roundabout to link to the
existing route onwards from Hepworth Road.
A-C06 North south through the town centre, [The existing shared use provision from the A511 roundabout to the north needs extending [E781-£985,000
from roundabout to bypass and improving to ensure pavement parking is not constraining width and function.
The existing traffic free path that links to the Leisure centre has recommended
improvements but offers a direct route on the north south corridor.
Side road junctions and additional crossing points are recommended.
A-CO7 Link to Boundary from bypass A safe route east to west through the town centre is required and would be well used by £2.32 - £2.92 million

roundabout through the town centre

school and work commuters, as well as those accessing the town centre.
Like the walking recommendations, a re-design of the main section of Market Street is
recommended to give more space to pedestrians and cyclists and improve safety for all.

This includes continuous surfacing and a 20mph speed limit.




8GT

Castle Donington ‘

CD-C01 |Green way around the Airport/EMEG  |New off-road connection alongside the A453 I£3.9-£5.3 million
(a) Upgrading existing shared-use routes, widening to meet national standards
Adding signalised crossing points on the route

Quiet way treatment on Hill Top/High Street to improve safety

CD-C02 |Green way around the Airport/EMEG |Creating new off-road lit airport greenway link I£800-965,000
(b) Quiet way treatments to roads through EM Airport site to bypass A453 and on Hill Top/High
Street (continuation of CD-C1)

Upgrading existing shared-use routes, widening to meet national standards

CD-C04 [Linking Kings Mills Quiet way treatment and adjustments to junctions on Park Lane to increase safety [£2.6-3.75 million
Crossings added to roundabout

Quiet way treatment along the rest of Park Lane

CD-C05 Linking to Ratcliffe on Upgrading existing Dark Lane traffic free route. New off-road route alongside Remembrance E660-£795,000

Soar Way alongside upgrades to existing shared use
CD-C07 |Northern link to Sawley Upgrading of existing shared use routes predominantly along Tamworth Road £1.9-2.4 million
Adopt new off-road link via London Road and upgrade of Donington Lane
Footway widening to create off-road provision in Castle Donington
CD-C08 |Strategic link to Loughborough Quiet way treatments through Diseworth and Long Whatton villages [£2.2-3.0 million

New traffic free route created between the villages.

Coalville ‘

C-Co1 East to west through the town centre  [There is existing shared use provision along Ashby Road which needs extending to provide [£2.89 - £3.64 million
extended provision, and enforcement to stop pavement parking.

A number of additional Toucan crossings and junction remodelling are presented.
This route makes use of the high quality traffic free path through Snibston Colliery Park.

sustrans



6GT

Quiet way treatment in main shopping area alongside pedestrian scheme, alternative quiet

multi-user Greenway. The steep gradient would make it unfavourable for commuting and
inaccessible for some users.
Section between A511 and Spring Lane pursued first due to connection to College and

evident use.

Route makes use of existing traffic free path and requires construction of a new traffic free

C-C02 North to south through town centre . I£468-£621,000
way alignment south.

c-co3 Coalville to Hugglescote/ Ellistown Construction of a new Greenway using disused railway. Full feasibility study and design £1.43 - £1.75 million
recommended.

c-Co4 Coalville to Ashby Ro_ute considered unl_lkely to be feasible — dual carriageway with safety concerns around l£2 57-£3.68 million
adjacent segregated infrastructure. See cycle audit appendices for details. High level cost
assumed on basis of creating new traffic free route in adjacent fields, landowner consent
and ecological barriers pose risks to the project.

C-CO5 Link to Sence Valley Please refer to 1-CO5 Route 5 — Strategic link to Measham

C-C06 North to south through town centre Extend and improve existing shared use provision, to meet Memorial Square, with cycle £2.21 - £2.83 million

(Memorial Square to A511) route through the square, with widening required in some locations.

Review signalised crossing to provide safe access to the College across the A511.

C-Co7 Link to town centre to hospital Some existing shared use offer adequate provision but requires widening in places. £1.07-£1.406 million.
Redesign of the A511 junction recommend toimprove provision for cyclists and pedestrians.

C-C09 Connection to Cloud Trail Investigate feasibility of converting the disused Leicester and Swannington Railway into a  [£1.09 million - £1.33 million.

[-CO1 Ibstock to Ellistown and Bardon Hill path adjacent to Leicester Road and Ibstock Road. £658- £799,000
1-C02 Strategic link to Coalville Please refer to C-C03 Route 3 — Coalville to Hugglescote/Ellistown
1-C04 Strategic link to Ashby Please refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to Ibstock

sustrans




09T

I-C05 Strategic link to Measham Resurfacing of bridleway through Sence Park and consideration to lighting of the route. £353-£434,000 (and cost in
Traffic free link to Heather on Pisca Lane. M-CO02).
Please also refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to lbstock
K-C01 Link to Castle Donington employment Create new off-road route alongside Ashby Road £842-£1,211,500
areas Implement quiet way measures along Ashby Road in Kegworth. The gradient of the route
may not be suitable for all users.
K-C02 Link north using Long Lane towards Survey of existing traffic speed and volume, with quiet way treatment recommended £150-£190,000
Long Eaton throughout.
K-C03 Route to Sutton Bonnington Review tactile paving provision, limited scope to widen footway due to land constraints. £992,000-£1.26 million.
Consider resurfacing of footways.
K-C04 Route to A6 existing shared use Consider improving or removing HGV access to Derby Road. £308-£390,000
provision Check and rectify re-instatement faults.
Seek to formalise parking arrangements.
Seek alternative access arrangements for HGV away from residential areas.
Consider a controlled crossing at a location to benefit most users (new developments and
park).
Reduce traffic speed through calming measures.
Review tactile paving provision.
K-C06 Northern link between Kegworth and  |Use existing off-road provision travelling from Castle Donington under the Kegworth Bypass £202-£273,000
Castle Donington / East Midlands to meet Derby Road.
Gateway

sustrans



T9T

Upgrade the existing share use along Derby Road, widening by taking space from the
existing verge/carriageway and removing parking where the off-road path meets Derby
Road.

Crossing improvements at the junction with Side Ley/Derby Road on the edge of Kegworth.

K-C07

Link Sawley Marina with the K-C02
route at Lockington Quarry via Warren

Lane and Public Bridleway/Footpath

Leicestershire County Council plan to audit and cost the route.

N/A

M-CO01 Creating a link between the new Upgrade and extend existing infrastructure to improve the experience for cyclists I£1.5-£1.9 million
Jaguar Land Rover site and Measham [Focus on improving junctions and roundabouts including new crossings.
M-CO02 Strategic link to Ibstock Adopt a new route through the village of Heather and add new parallel crossings at either  [E263-£328,000
end of the village
Quiet way interventions along Swepstone Road/Main Street between Heather and
Measham.
M-C03 Strategic Link to Ashby Extend footways to create new shared use off-road cycling route [£1.5-2.0 million

Install crossings on the A42 roundabout to enable safe passage for cyclists.

I-CO1 Ibstock to Ellistown and Bardon Hill Route makes use of existing traffic free path and requires construction of a new traffic free |£658- £799,000
Industrial Estate path adjacent to Leicester Road and Ibstock Road.
[-C02 Strategic link to Coalville Please refer to C-C03 Route 3 — Coalville to Hugglescote/Ellistown.

sustrans



29T

I-C03 Route through the town centre No existing provision and a road unsuitable for cycling, recommend construction of a new  [E1.25-£1.58 million.
traffic free route along Melbourne Road including additional signalised crossings.
1-C04 Strategic link to Ashby Please refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to Ibstock.
1-C05 Strategic link to Measham Resurfacing of bridleway through Sence Park and consideration to lighting of the route. £353-£434,000 (and cost in

Traffic free link to Heather on Pisca Lane.

Please also refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to Ibstock.

M-C02).

sustrans




5. Network Planning
for Walking

This section describes the methodology used for the
Network Planning for Walking stage of NWLDC'’s LCWIP.

5.1 Overview

During this stage an analysis of data and local knowledge was completed so that key routes within the
core walking zone of the urban areas could be identified. NWLDC’s Cycling and Walking strategy
identified the main destinations in each of the urban locations, as well as the high, medium and low
priority for walking destinations (Section 8 of Cycling and Walking Strategy). Physical route audits
were undertaken to determine what high level infrastructure improvements could be implemented to
make the routes more attractive and safer for pedestrians in the future.

Many of the benefits of walking and cycling are shared, and most often improvements for one will
affect the other as large parts of the two networks overlap. Pedestrians and cyclists are often in
proximity and may share routes and crossings. However, walking trips are generally shorter than
cycling trips, with longer trips being facilitated through multi modal journeys.

5.2 Trip Generators

The walking network used for the urban areas of this LCWIP were taken from NWLDC’s Cycling and
Walking Strategy which identified key walking destinations in each town and associated walking
zones radiating out from them ranked into low, medium, and high priority walking zones. Roads and
footpaths within the high priority zone connecting to identified destinations were audited as part of this
LCWIP. Maps showing the walking zones for each town and the key destinations, which the LCWIP
walking audits are focused on are contained in the Cycling and Walking Strategy.

The destinations highlighted in the Cycling and Walking Strategy are common destinations such as
the town center core, educational establishments, public transport interchanges, retail, healthcare,
workplaces and leisure facilities.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

163 sustrans



5.6 Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT)

As part of the Welsh Active Travel Design Guidance, a Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) was
developed to assist Local Authorities with the auditing of walking routes, forming part of the DfT’s
LCWIP guidance toolkit. The WRAT was used to audit walking routes identified.

The audit methodology targets the five core design outcomes for pedestrian infrastructure, which are
like those for cycling. These are:

- Attractiveness
- Comfort

- Directness

- Safety

- Coherence

It was important to consider the different needs of all users, including vulnerable pedestrians who may
be older, less mobile, hearing impaired, visually impaired, be using a wheelchair or push chair. The
physical audits were undertaken in a way to consider this variety of users.

The summary information below is derived from more detailed audits of individual routes within each

town.

Urban Area Performance scores (out of 100)

Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence Overall

Ashby 58 55 49 42 13 49
Castle Donington 51 36 37 a7 33 34
Coalville 54 56 51 52 43 58
Ibstock 52 43 42 57 44 47
Kegworth 56 35 41 44 33 42
Measham 44 38 42 53 52 43

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Strans

164



5.7 Establishing Walking Infrastructure Improvements

The WRAT was used to summarise high level infrastructure improvements for each identified route. A

brief summary of these is shown in the table below.

Reference

Description

\High level improvements

A-WO01 Market Street from Derby Road |Consider a complete re-design of this popular high
roundabout to North Street street to create a more attractive and safe
junction environment for pedestrians, including continuous
footways to slow traffic and reduce the dominance of
vehicles. Include additional seating facilities. Some
advertising board clutter reducing available width,
work to minimise disruption from these.
A-W02 North Street from Brook Street |Install missing side road tactile paving. Widen
roundabout to Wood Street footway. Consider additional zebra crossing for
school. Lighting improvements along Mill Lane Mews
as direct cut through to high street.
A-WO03 South Street from Bath Street to |Install missing tactile paving and dropped kerb
Market Street throughout route. Consider pedestrian priority across
all car park entrances. Signage around castle
entrance should be improved to avoid collisions.
A-WO04 Derby Road from Station Street |Install missing tactile paving. and consider re-
roundabout and Burton Road modelling of double roundabout to provide safe
crossing facility.
A-WO05 Kilwardby Street Review crossing provision closer to town centre

across Co-op car park and roundabout, consider

repainting existing zebra near Beaumont Avenue.
Castle Donington

Tower to Avenue Road junction

CD-Wo01 The Spittal Additional signage and path widening. Identify
alternative walking routes to remove pedestrians
from the roadway on The Spittal

CD-W02 The Green Addition of tactile paving at crossing points and
crossing provision by the school

CD-WO03 Bondgate Add crossing adjacent to the library and improve side
road crossings along Bondgate.

CD-W04 Delvin Lane to Clapgun Street  [The area around the Spar/Nursing Home and
College/Wellbeing Centre is a priority for
improvements.

CD-WO05 Borough Street Install missing tactile paving and consider changes
to traffic movements and on-street parking.

C-wo1 Ashby Road from Memorial Additional crossings, priority over side roads.

Tower to Snibston Colliery Park |Signage for town centre journeys along Snibston
route.

C-wo02 High Street from Memorial Tower| Install missing tactile paving. Consider additional

to Whitwick Road zebra crossing replacing central refuge. Improve
safety for pedestrians over rail crossing.

C-wo03 London Road from Whitwick Install missing side road tactile paving.

Road to Broom Leys Road
C-wo4 Belvoir Road from Memorial Installing missing tactile paving and dropped kerbs at

side road junctions. Improve crossings over

Marlborough Square. Consider public realm scheme.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

no5 sustrans




C-W05

Broom Leys Road from junction
with London Road to Surgery

Consider additional crossing for local shops, and
traffic calming close to surgery. Review side road
tactile paving.

C-WO06 Ashburton Road from Manor Consider additional crossing to serve co-op, review
Road to Central Road tactile paving provision, could consider widening
pavement outside school.
CWwW-07 Thornborough Road and Mantle |Address provision around roundabout on south

Lane from Memorial Tower to

A511 roundabout additional siinalised crossinis.

approach. Review tactile paving and need for

K-Ww01

-W01 Leicester Road Prioritise improving crossing of Ashby road
roundabout. Install tactile paving at side road
junctions. Widen footway in places. Consider
crossing facility for park. Prevent pavement parking.

I-W02 Chapel Street Review side road tactile paving. Provide crossing to
High Street.

I-W03 High Street Widen footway to provide improved pedestrian
provision. Review side road tactile paving.

I-W04 Reform Road between High Improve lighting and consider resurfacing.

Street and Melbourne Road

I-W05 Melbourne Road Could consider additional zebra crossing near
Ibstock Junior School and signalised crossing on
Ashby Road roundabout south approach.

I-W06 Central Avenue Footway width insufficient for peak school hour.

Kegworth

Derby Road from Nottingham
Road to High Street

Install missing tactile paving. Redesign and
reallocate road space and improve public realm.

Consider working with Google or others to ensure
Kegworth Derby Road not used as cut through for
A6. Hard to cross road to use Co-op or bus stop,
consider signalised crossing.

K-W02

High Street

Review scores at school drop-off and pick-up.
Consider if crossing required at school location to
serve school and bus stops.

Assess locations that require additional tactile
paving.

K-W03

Nottingham Road

Install missing tactile paving, limited scope to widen
footway due to land constraints. Consider resurfacing
of footways.

K-W04

Side Ley

Consider improving or removing HGV access to
Derby Road.

Check and rectify re-instatement faults.

Seek to formalise parking arrangements.

Seek alternative access arrangements for HGV away
from residential areas.

Consider a controlled crossing at a location to benefit
most users (new developments and park).

Reduce traffic speed through calming measures.
Install missing tactile paving provision.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Tae sustrans



K-W05 Mill Lane Check and rectify re-instatement faults. Install
missing tactile paving provision. Improve lighting and
maintenance along footpath adjacent to village hall
as well used, could resurface.

M-WO01 High Street south Consider widening footway on one side of
carriageway to provide better quality provision. Install
missing side road tactile paving.

Priority improvement would be toucan crossing to
leisure centre and library site.

M-W02 High Street north Review side road tactile paving. Widen footway.
Unpleasant experience when traffic volume high.
M-WO03 Bosworth Road Control pavement parking. Install tactile paving

around school entrances and consider surfacing
treatment to slow traffic and provide crossing facility.

Table 3 Summary of Walking Route Schemes

A feasibility study for each route or wider scheme would be required to determine the precise
interventions needed throughout the corridor. This would involve highway engineers, designers and
other professionals assessing the conditions on the ground and potential options in detail and
determining the best solutions. This would be informed by engagement with local officers and the
community to reflect local knowledge and priorities. By doing this it is possible to produce accurate
costings that allow funding to be sought for delivery.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra n S

167



6. Prioritising
Improvements

The auditing of the priority cycling routes and core
walking zones has identified a long list of potential cycle
infrastructure improvements and walking infrastructure
improvements.

6.1 Overview

This section details the steps taken to priortise the cycling and walking schemes for future
development. Each of the schemes were assessed over a range of 4 factors:

Economic - value for money

Effectiveness — increased number of pedestrians and people on bikes, network development
contribution and integration

Policy — improved transport connections for multi modal journeys, public and political acceptable and
environmental constraints

The prioritisation exercise was completed by performing an analysis of the high level measures that
would be required to bring the entire route up to a standard considered to deliver a significant benefit
to the users.

6.2 Prioritising improvements

For each urban area’s routes, a score was given over 12 indicators for cycling schemes, with a
maximum possible score of 31, and 10 indicators for walking schemes, with a maximum possible
score of 27.

The following table shows the indicators and criteria which identified improvements have been
assessed against. The score for each urban area was compared directly against the cost of delivering

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

168



the improvement to produce a high level cost-benefit ranking. The full prioritisation of schemes is
included in the appendices, with a summary by each urban area below.

All cycling schemes were assessed using the DfT Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit (AMAT) to quantify
the key impacts of a proposed intervention, providing a measure of the value for money of each
scheme, in the form of a benefit-cost ratio (BCR).

The projects were distributed into short (>3 years), medium (3-5 years) and long (5+ years) term
projects based on suggested completion.

Forecast cycle and pedestrian demand 3 >500 pedestrians/ cyclists alking and
2 200- 500 pedestrians/ cyclists cycling
Data sourced from Propensity to Cycle Toolkit [1 100- 200 pedestrians/ cyclists
Go Dutch Scenario data for cycling and . .
yeling (0] <100 pedestrians/ cyclists
estimated for walking
Contribution of the scheme to widen network 3 Links with 3+ existing routes Cycling
development 2 Links with 2 existing routes
1 Link to 1 existing route
(o] Isolation - outside of network
'Town centre location with high pedestrian and |3 Urban centre \Walking and
cyclist demand 2 Inter urban connection cycling
1 Links small number of residential areas
0 rural location limited connections
\Walk to work demand 2 Highly residential or industrial area alking
1 Links to small number of potential workplaces
(0] No employment locations
Improved transport connections 3 Links directly to transport interchange (bus station, alking and
train station) cycling
2 Covers majority of journey to transport interchange
(including bus stops)
1 Provides part of a journey to transport interchange
(including bus stops)
(0] No improvements
Proximity to jobs and schools 1 Links to school or employment site \Walking and
0 No link cycling
North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Strans

169



Improves safety 3 Significant improvement to road safety and DDA \Walking and
compliant where existing issues exist. cycling
2 /Actions to improve road safety e.g. crossing points,
segregation or makes Equalities Act compliant
1 Smaller scale improvements e.g. signage, lighting
(0] No improvement
Improves cycle network density 3 Scheme to fill missing link in network Cycling
2 Scheme to fill the majority of missing link in existing
network
1 Scheme partially fills missing link in existing cycle
network
(0] No contribution
alue for money (AMAT) (BCR) 3 BCR > 4.0 Cycling
2 BCR =2.0-4.0
1 BCR=15-20
0 BCR=10to 1.5
Proximity to a major development site 3 Committed Section106 or other source of private Walking and
funding cycling
2 Route serves a large proposed residential or
employment site
1 Possible future development
(0] No private sources of funding

Scheme feasibility 3 No issues Walking and

2 Dependent on scheme or land issue that s likely to [©Y€iNg

be overcome

1 Dependent on another scheme / land ownership

hich will cause

(0] Land ownership or issue unlikely to be overcome

Political / local acceptability (subjective 3 No impact expected \Walking and

assessment based on possible public relation to . cyclin

P P 2 Low impact expected yeling

schemes that may lead to delays, loss of

barking etc.) 1 Medium impact expected
(0] High impact expected

Environmental constraints 3 No issues \Walking and
2 Dependent on approval from environmental cycling

agencies which is likely to be overcome
North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU St rans

170



1 Dependent on approval from environmental
lagencies which is likely to cause delay. Potential

significant ecological constraints

(0] Environmental and ecological constraints unlikely to

be overcome

6.3 Scheme Scores

The prioritisation exercise enabled each of the schemes to be scored. A maximum score of 31 for
cycling schemes with a maximum possible score of 27 for walking schemes.

The following table shows the scores for each urban area in priority order.

Cycling Route Reference | Cycling Route Score | Walking Route Reference Walking Route Score

Ashby

A-CO7 20 | A-wW01 17

A-C04 19 | A-W02 16

A-C02 17 | A-W04 15

A-C01 17 | A-WO03 14

A-C05 17 | A-W05 11

A-C06 17

A-C03 See C-C04 Route 4

CD-C02 22 | CD-Wo04 20

CD-C01 21 | CD-W02 19

CD-C05 21 | CD-W03 19
CD-WO01 16

CD-C07 16 | CD-WO05 16

CD-C04 15

CD-C08 11

C-C02 27 | C-W04 19

C-C06 22 | C-Wo01 17

C-C01 20 | C-wo06 16

C-C03 19 | C-WO07 16
C-W03 15

C-Co07 13 | C- W02 14

C-C09 13 | C-W05 11

C-C04 11

C-CO05 See |-C05 Route 5

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan suU Stl’ ans

171



1-C03

I-W03

19
1-C05 17 | 1-\W02 17
I-C01 16 | I-W05 16
I-C02 See C-C03 Route 3 | I-W06 16
1-C04 See M-C02 Route 2 -Wwo01 11
I-W04 8
K-C01 20 | K-wo01 17
K-C04 18 | K-W04 16
K-C06 16 K-W02 14
K-C02 15 | K-W05 12
K-CO03 11 | K-W03 8
K-C07
M-CO02 18 | M-W02 22
M-C01 12 | M-WO01 19
M-CO03 12 | M-W03 17

The scores for each route have been sorted by urban area so prioritisation can be considered in each
area individually. The prioritisation method with full scoring for each indicator, including each routes
BCR is appended.

The highest scoring three schemes overall for both cycling and walking are listed below. These
priorities are intended to inform local consideration and agreement on priority routes to take forward.
This dialogue about local prioritisation will be informed by emerging local policy, opportunities, and
developments, as well as the views of local leaders, partners, and residents, underpinned by the
priorities set out in the Cycling and Walking Strategy. The analysis above and in appended provides
some analytical input to inform the local prioritisation and decision-making process.

Cycling

1. Coalville C-C02 Route 2 - North to south through town centre. Short term time frame, BCR
of 10.15.

2. Castle Donington CD-C02 Route 2 - Green way around the Airport/EMEG (b). Medium
tern time frame, BCR of 2.18.

3. Coalville C-C06 Route 6 - North to south through town centre. Medium term time frame,
BCR of 1.82

Walking

1. Measham M-WO02 Route 2 — High Street north. Long term time frame.

2. Castle Donington CD-W04 — Delven Lane to Clapgun Street.

3. Ibstock I-W03 Route 3 — High Street

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Strans

172



6.4 Conclusion and Recommendations

The six urban areas studied as part of this LCWIP offer great opportunities for local journeys to be
made by walking and cycling, given their compact nature and in most part favorable terrain. To reduce
the number of short journeys made by motorised vehicles, significant investment in active travel
infrastructure is required.

A detailed table listing the recommended schemes is included in the appendices where analysis has
identified a list of walking and cycling priorities that deliver upon national, regional, and local policies.

To future proof infrastructure it will be built for resilience to the impacts of climate change,
including ensuring potential flood risk is considered. All scheme designs will also refer to the
principles contained within Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20.

Road safety is a key consideration throughout this report and will remain a focus in the development
of walking and cycling schemes in NWL. Safety audits in the design process should be undertaken
and will be key to ensuring the safety of people on cycles and on foot.

As described in chapter 12 of Local Transport Note 1/20, at all new development sites it is
recommended consideration be given to including full permeability and connection to surrounding
networks for pedestrians and cyclists and that these should be promoted through the planning and
highways agreement processes.

As the recommendations of the LCWIP are taken forward emerging guidance from Active Travel
England on a planning assessment framework will be considered.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

173



4. Glossary of Terms

AMAT

Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit. Spreadsheet-based tool published by the
Department for Transport (DfT) for assessing the overall benefits and costs
of proposed walking and cycling interventions, ranging from capital
investments to behaviour change programmes.

BCR

Benefit cost ratio, indicating the value for money of a proposed intervention.
Output of the AMAT.

DfT

Department for Transport. The UK ministerial department which inter alia
provides policy and guidance to English local authorities for local transport,
including on cycling and walking. Published the LCWIP technical guidance.

LCWIP

LCWIP Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan, a new, strategic, long-
term approach to identify the improvements to cycling and walking networks
which are required in each local area.

LTN

Low Traffic Neighbourhood. Scheme where motor vehicle traffic in
residential streets is greatly reduced.

MSOA

Mid-layer super output area.

ONS

Office for National Statistics, the body charged with the collection and
publication of statistics related to the economy, population and society of
the UK.

PCT

Propensity to Cycle Tool. A website analysis tool which forecasts the
potential future growth of cycle trips under different scenarios for travel to
work and travel to school.

RST

Route Selection Tool. An Excel spreadsheet which assesses and compares
the suitability of different routes for inclusion in a cycle network.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

o sustrans




Appendix 1 Design
Principles

NCN Principles

The National Cycle Network design principles set out key elements that make the Network distinctive
and need to be considered during design of new and improved routes forming part of the Network.

Where the Network is not traffic-free it should either be on a quiet-way section of road or be fully
separated from the carriageway.

For a National Cycle Network route on a quiet-way section of road traffic speed and flows should be
sufficiently low with good visibility to comply with design guidance for comfortable sharing of the
carriageway.

Signs and markings should highlight the Network.

National Cycle Network routes shall:
e Be designed in accordance with current best practice design guidance;
e Be designed in collaboration with the local community;
e Provide convenient links to key destinations, connecting cities, towns and countryside;

e Meet the following nine design Principles

Principle 1:
Traffic-free or quiet way

Where the Network is not “traffic-free” it should either be on a quiet-way section of road or be fully
separated from the adjacent carriageway.

For a National Cycle Network route on a quiet-way section of road the traffic speed and flows should
be sufficiently low enough to encourage cycling for all ages and abilities.

It should have good visibility to comply with design guidance to allow for comfortable sharing of the
carriageway.

Signs and road markings should highlight the Network.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S U Stra n S

175



Principle 2:
Wide enough to accommodate all users

Width of a route should be based on the level of anticipated usage, allowing
for growth. A minimum width of 3m should be delivered.

Where it is not possible to deliver this, all other avenues should be fully explored before path widths
are reduced.

Physical separation between users should be considered where there is sufficient width and a higher
potential for conflict
between different users.

Structures should be designed to maximise movement space. A minimum path width between
parapets of 4m is to be maintained.

Principle 3:

Designed to minimise maintenance

A maintenance plan should be put in place during the development process.

Construction quality should be maximised to minimise future maintenance needs.

New planting should be kept well clear of the path.

Sufficient tree work should be undertaken as part of construction to minimise future issues.

Routes should be managed in a way that enhances biodiversity.

Principle 4:

Signed clearly and consistently

Signage should be a mix of signs, surface markings and wayfinding measures.

Every junction or decision point should be signed.

Signage should be part of a network-wide signing strategy directing users to and from the route.

Network to trip generators such as places of interest, hospitals, universities,
colleges.

Signage should be used to increase route legibility and branding of routes.

Signage should help to reinforce responsible behaviour by all users.

Principle 5:
Smooth surface that is well drained.

Path surfaces should be suitable for all users, irrespective of age, ability or mobility needs

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u Stra n S

176



Path surfaces should be maintained in a condition that is free of undulations, rutting
and potholes.

Path surfaces should be free draining and verges finished to avoid water ponding at the edges of the
path.

In, or close to, built-up areas a Network route should have a sealed surface to maximise the number
of path users.

Principle 6:

Fully accessible to all legitimate users.

All routes should accommodate a cycle design vehicle 2.8 metres long x 1.2metres wide.
Any barriers should have a clear width of 1.5 metres.

Gradients should be minimised and as gentle as possible.

The surface should be maintained in a condition that makes it passable by all users.

Principle 7:

Feel like a safe place to be

Route alignments should avoid creating places that are enclosed or not overlooked.
Consideration should be given as to whether lighting should be provided.

Design routes to be spacious and if necessary slow the speed of cyclists down.

Principle 8:
Enable all users to cross roads safely.
Road crossings should be in accordance with current best practice guidance.

Approaches to road crossings should be designed to facilitate a slow approach speed to a crossing,
have enough space for several users to wait safely.

Signalised road crossings should be designed to minimise the wait time for NCN users. Where
possible advanced notification systems should be used.

All grade separated crossings should provide step-free access.

Keep the straight line where possible and create key crossing points.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u Stra n S

177



Current Best Practice Design Guidance References

Department for Transport - Cycle infrastructure design (LTN 1/20):
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-Itn-120
Sustrans’ Traffic Free Routes and Greenways Design Guidance:

https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/infrastructure/sustrans-traffic-free-routes-and-
greenways-design-guide/

A collection of other design guidance and information can also be found here:

https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/infrastructure/walking-and-cycling-infrastructure-design-
guidance/

Current Best Practice Design Guidance References

Local Transport Note 1/20, Chapter 11:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/90
6344/cycle-infrastructure-design-Itn-1-20.pdf

London Cycle Design Standards:

http://content.tfl.gov.uk/Icds-chapter8-cycleparking.pdf

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU St r a ns

178


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/infrastructure/sustrans-traffic-free-routes-and-greenways-design-guide/
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/infrastructure/sustrans-traffic-free-routes-and-greenways-design-guide/
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/infrastructure/walking-and-cycling-infrastructure-design-guidance/
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/infrastructure/walking-and-cycling-infrastructure-design-guidance/
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2fgovernment%2fuploads%2fsystem%2fuploads%2fattachment_data%2ffile%2f906344%2fcycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-1-20.pdf&c=E,1,D1kGljQnZa9lpJL0uAR8UVeVL8KArQTP7_HAEyi3E3rsxFAGh3F8WBBBRqRdRha7gK9jM-go0_g37xNSLi03rpMQJXHcTUfMvSmQZGubT2M,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2fgovernment%2fuploads%2fsystem%2fuploads%2fattachment_data%2ffile%2f906344%2fcycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-1-20.pdf&c=E,1,D1kGljQnZa9lpJL0uAR8UVeVL8KArQTP7_HAEyi3E3rsxFAGh3F8WBBBRqRdRha7gK9jM-go0_g37xNSLi03rpMQJXHcTUfMvSmQZGubT2M,&typo=1
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lcds-chapter8-cycleparking.pdf

Appendix 2 Potential
Funding Sources

Active Travel Fund

Department for Transport: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/emergency-active-travel-fund-
local-transport-authority-allocations

Levelling Up Fund

Department for Transport: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-fund-prospectus

Future High Streets Fund

Department for Transport: https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/future-high-streets-fund

Capability Fund

Department for Transport

Paths for Everyone

Sustrans: https://www.sustrans.org.uk/about-us/paths-for-everyone/

Cycle Rail Fund

Cycle Rail Working Group: https://www.cyclerail.co.uk/

Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy

Local Planning Authority: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

179


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/emergency-active-travel-fund-local-transport-authority-allocations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/emergency-active-travel-fund-local-transport-authority-allocations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-fund-prospectus
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/future-high-streets-fund
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/about-us/paths-for-everyone/
https://www.cyclerail.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations

Appendix 3 Cycle route maps



18T

Ashby-de-la-Zouch

Upper MidWay S

—Swad Ffmoote -

—
N

Y,

/e
/]

" 4
sley { PNV
5 N\ P N {
Ibert Village' . :
i

J
s

Hartshorne

Blackfordby

Norris Hill

B5006/
/
/
/
Jl
J Lount/ /
Smisby /’ Newbold
P
-
o
— Griffydam
y o SR> _
X Q
% } Peggs Green

Coleorton

S As 1=

)\"\\ X;’%A% %ook

Wood

Ashby-de-la

a| \ Moira
North West
Leicestershire

Willesley

-Zouch

Traffic-Free \ National Cycle
—— On-Road Network ,
7
e Cycling Priority Route

Swannington

Map data © OpensStreetMap.contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc_and its affiliates, Esri CommunrsfyyMaps
Ravensione 1

_conggbutors, Map layer by Esri

12 Packington

sustrans



28T

Castle Donington

) ~ ) ] o 7
\o# Thrumpton 4
6| B5010 Kl ? \ \ P 4
T Great Wilne o~ \ A
. \ g
< Shardlow A
N \
Aston-on-Trent >
AP
Il
# atcliffe—ola—Soar
East p
Midiands %)
|-~ Weston-on-Trent Distribution 59
Centre
Kingston on Soar
CD-Coa nington
SEGRO East
sngﬁe Midlands
Ty Gateway Kegworth
TD-C02
Donington 2 =
Park East
| =S Midlands
R . Airp - e —
D+ T —
Sutton Bonington
P Isley Walton
/.\Qli?son
North West
Leicestershire
Castle Donington
Traffic-Free \ National Cycle —
J Network its -afﬁmi’(’sommunity Ma
On-Road Vcomributori\lm\apa Qﬂbnyfri)Jaf
=== (ycling Priority Route

sustrans



€8T

Coalville

TYOTITIFgTOTT \.«/
z ’ /

B587 ( —
4 Osgath / She;
Lount ( Garendon
4 Newbold ) Park
/ |
Griffydam ‘ | “',
AF12 3 . ) A512
) - A512 = ]
| 13 Coleorton P€99s Green _ ,.—/\
[ ~“7 g A5122 4 - Thringstone Nanpantan
Ashby de la Zouch A42
Shellbrook ) Lk, |2 Witwick L
Wood >
- /
psley 12 Packington \ < ¢ A
i AZ11
12 (‘,—C07 Agar Nook S
/ Ravenstone I Greenhill
- A
|42
Normanton le Heath
B4116
m
Bardon 22
Industrial R
Ellistown Estate |~~~
North West Cliiffe. Hill 1 y
- - Quarry {A50
Leicestershire -
Stanton under Bardon | |
o Ibstock *,‘ i' 2
Coalville ' L anceiohy
v | | 3 o
Traffic-Free \\ National Cycle) M | 9
- (On-Road Network o ap»d\ata © OpenstieetMap contributors, Microscft, Facebook, Inc. and:i‘is affiliates, Esri Community Maps
J .‘,u"__, \\:) \\\ contributors, Map layer by, Esri
. . . 5 - \ \
=== (Cycling Priority Route ¢ - A\

sustrans



8T

]

— ' T e———— Wood
o 3 P =
§ &7 y [
Willesley Measham Road/interchange  Packington
” | 12 W ‘
Measham Road Interchange I
\ i 12
5 N T =
/ Springfield s Ravenstone ;
Wood | Greenhill
A42 3 oy : lAga7 ASI1E N\
; 8 g & |
o Normanton le Heath, E?ue:r;h ) /‘ Hugglescote D
B4116 ; DulaZ;oend ( : e ,é‘l =i
Packington Jubilee:Wood | g Donington Le Heath ™~ %
Solar.Farm 7 LAY / g e/
b / J v
~ ® " / Ludlam’s¥ 4 i
[/ g Wood! | ‘
o o g
SenceValley .||
_B4116 4 y - Country Park 1-C01 -
/f Z: £ q. 1-CO5'
¢ i \Coy &
r / } Hegther : ]’ |
e
Swepstone Q
~ ) }
N bstock :
5 o A
A, =
B4116 { Joo 8 [
- vy
- 4 Y . ; \
g \ |
North West ) \ A
& L NewtomByrgoland ol \\\ - :'% Grange Wood )
Leicestershire ’ -
/ i R
; ® b
Ibstock : SO
3\ =
> N > B582
Traffic-Free "\ National Cycle[' -, § -
- On-Road Network 2% 7 Map data @ OpenStreetMap contn'?:ﬁﬁ?)rs Microsoft, Facebook; Inc. and its affiliates, Esri Community Maps
N // % contributors, Map layer by Esri
. PP ) -
=== (Cycling Priority Route = S Odsténe A f




G8T

Kegworth

Grea\t‘ Wilne

Wlllow/Fa?\

/ Business | / ,‘
/ Rark ] = |
I J

=~ ‘\\\ 7
‘/l Trent Lane / S5 W’
2 Industrial / / i “

Estate 1| e
,J/ ) i Hemmgton L Lockington
7y
L
S —
i
S

—Castle Donington

==

~— Traffic-Free \\ National Cyclem
—— On-Road Network

== Cycling Priority Route

North West S
Leicestershire '
Kegworth - : -

grcontriiutors, Mi

__\ Nottingham

‘.«

\

™)

:Ejniversi(y of

c‘?@'mres Esri Community Maps
\\amwéﬂtnbutqrs Map layer by Esri

\

sustrans



98T

Measham

B v A i P 30 ~ " "I'North West
' ' ¥ > - | Leicestershire

Measham

| — Traffic-Free \ National Cycle
— On-Road Network

/ Stretton en le Field

L

= ,'.

hilcot
Chilcote Son oejValley
Country Park

e NS
i /

| w;//’ oV

» ,! ‘y.

—= iﬁpleby Magna Map data © OpenStree¥ap contributors,-Microsoft, F%Inc. and its difiliates; Esri Community Maps
~ N 7 < <

Y ‘ 6 3 ntubutors layer by Esri
e s \
\ ﬁm/ i : ‘Snarestone

sustrans




Appendix 4 Walking route maps



88T

Ashby-de-la-Zouch

=== \Nalking Priority Route

'
1
'

QﬁéhSﬁe?tMap cqnfribu@g}rs, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its
/ W

%
%
%

%

0

5

affil\gés, Esri Community Maps

cogftributors, Map layer by Esri
&

Q |
' & | 4160
g [ %
1 5 [ | Z
" W’”c/, 9 ‘; - 2
. SStey & @ - i
r Y ‘Q
! @
| | \
X = | _'Hood Park | =
\ i ‘ - Leisure Centre =]
[ | g Ashby School
Ashby Church| \NO?— R :
iy Wb
3 of England | | P‘ T : d
I Primary School | | - Range RO%
ol Urtopy: B . \
& S — <« \ \
: ; \ P t N e
Westfields*, S P
¢ =g i G
A Recreation : e = Mag(:h:i;use
o — N Ground § Congregational %
T Church
Holy, Trinity || \
‘ (. Church \ |
L ] \ ¥ )57 2 \
Farm : Ashby Hill Top. (& > g 2
Ny /e i it P M8 o
e, Primary School 1l ¥ 1w ‘«“,; %,
0@’ | L %— ’%
o ( >,
i~ & | )
2 é&“ | . A
= o | @
T = 1o Bath Grounds ", _ prior Park 2" | ]
2 o :‘%' ¥ P
z i { i
o Wi . e, | T \
/\SP [ |
o '
T 5 N “‘ i
: E I P P A [ |
it = ¥ S
}.,gv@‘?‘ : | & 45?
North West O | 8 ~.
G & 4 Stings Way
Leicestershi / ' / !
x o
eicestersnire & Avenuo Rogy 1 | w
£ 2 S - of®
\Q*Y‘ " e s/ Winder™
ASh by o Map data ©

=/
5
&

sustrans



68T

Castle Donington

o Bulk Freight o Limited

Bentley Road
Park

v

Darswa

Fox Road

North West
Leicestershire

Castle Donington
== \Nalking Priority Route

o
Limited :
(Midlands) Ltd {/

Spittal Park:

The Millhouse
Business
| Centre

Campion Hill
| The Orchard ~ - | | Catholic
'} Community 7 |\ Church of i
J/ Primary School the Risen o garroon
Crange pyrive =
y Castle \.é%’
- e Donington o
- Castle Doningtomnietiodist S
——— V / Church =
C.
v gestway
2 School [
& Castle
/ 4 Donington ,*
Town Bowls
Club,’ Castle
Donington
College

y
“? ) /

‘g? Map daga © OpensStregtMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its’:

D/ T & ./ contributors, Map layer by Esri

o &y % f
S 8
< Y, £

_Moira Dalé

[TGround_ 1

| Castle;
Donington
Cemetery

Recreation

affiliates, Esri Community Maps

sustrans



06T

Coalville

- Oaks Industrial
Estate

Church of
England
Primary School

Owen Street,r"

£
35
-

s R
'Qs,e, RS
Streey
Oy,
@/]&é
%
Coalville

£ Wy,

%,

4
4 Cloge

Roag~ |

; Whitwick
£ Business Park

A
Coalyille Town /6917%
Bowling'Club By

5éavlville‘ Park

J Sports Groundgsiness Park
N Broom
% > X Sch
The Golf James SYe® o N\ Balmorg roa®
Ccentlre_”m : 0;,: Belvoirdale X
S i E oughanSUF 3 Community,
S & 3 2 Primary School
- g . 5 £ &
) 4 z 5
. & R
’1 S § g}’
h O > ;
5 5 s Scotland:,
& 2 “Playing Fields
: 5 o N 0 Bseqy
; R amug%ns /. x < />%
Con 2 0o Sy | i Toes »%9
| y : > go‘o“"a" 1| Newbridge High
/ 3 6 Lo o School 4 >
& s’e/, ‘ * o
& \ s, W g ‘ , ©
5 <Ky~ T ' N | &
1< | i . - "o 69“¢° =y ’b"q‘
\ T & X
N A o v §
‘ &’:9/7;1 5 g Sl Qg \
ry 4 '?/27/”)/‘ 3 . - N - A
\ 4 3 LResY A511
prm- . i 3 W LIy
TR ALEY A N Bardon:
| I oY -y Substation
. . ¥ K
| ol u " Rt
o ' § z N
9 ' : g
T
North West %
- - d £x
Leicestershire 2
L T ——Grange g 0
. ?‘1 hn's— Qoab' g 4 :::
CoaIV" |e 3 X / Map data © OpénStreetMap-contributors, Microsoft, Facebook: Inc: and its affiliates, ESri:Community Maps
po&ngtonl::e-Heath k | | .- " Emmerson Aveng scontriblters, Map layer by Esri
. L anor House Hugglescote 1
=== \Nalking Priority Route Mothodist ey e

sustrans



T6T

Ibstock

.....

StDenys
Church of
England Infant..
School, Ibstgck‘v

= N
North West 5 \><%\\\
Leicestershire ¥ q"?{ \\{/\B ;
IbStOCk % . Map data © OpenSt}ﬁ \a@@u@m Microsoft,‘?a:c‘ebop_k, Inc. and its afﬁliates'.
220 - « “._ 4 D ¥ ‘," W, contrib
e \Nalking Priority Route 0 o\ \\ .\ 6 //// o7

sustrans



26T

Kegworth

Kegworth

=== \Walking Priority Route

Mapd‘afé © OpenStreetMap contributors, Mier@sofi

) \\\.\T“\ Kegworth l a
N (STW) ’ ‘ |
AV Y e ‘ T
5 - 2 ||
0 ,“31 Bridge Farm & 8
= 5 & [ . }
= Q “‘
. e I—— |
- sttonRoad g ' /
» | _Sideley Kegworth = o
TS | Recr‘eatxon\ \Qlub : 2 N
; eround ol Kegworth S K ‘
Tennis SJlub o % |
. v S
& % 1y &
B 2 Ak ’
8 O «
3
Windmill Way 2 ;l LJJ
Ny e A
Kegworth § / AY
Baptist I [ N
Al Church 2 J |
¥ i | B
' kw LN S / [
o ' N 2 / [
8 Kegworth .OJ 3, [ ‘
£ Primary School ) =
g ‘ g 8
& Whatton Road [
Reécreation | e | |
\ 1Ground / OF /
o / @\ I
e ,‘,(\9‘\?:0' ] | . ‘J‘
: 2 A\ 1 2 o/ [
2 : B = [
North West : 3 g
- - “gl“‘ “
Leicestershire : 1

Facebook, Inc. and its affi!i‘z“ates, Esri Community Maps
} contributors, Map layer by Esri

8

sustrans



€6T

Measham

N
oy, Sty

Westminster
Industrial Estate

——Loicesiar Rozy-

St Charles
_ . Meash Catholic
N S Primary G, D>
e - J e 2
; e $° Voluntary ©nfield X
Repts 7 4 Academy
e o Son
O’?S C/ose
fi
8, . Y
"0 R Measham &‘”o,,3
~4 Y, Skate Park fro ]
25 = 2
3
‘/7,,/.] —‘7,_%
% %
by
%, \&b&\,
e
\so >
O
<2
L
> &
= DS
&
oS

North West ' N\F 7
Leicestershire
Measham

2y
dswm\h\"
N

peod BuolSOUY

e \Nalking Priority Route

Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its affiliates, Esri Community, a/ps
+ contributots, Map Iaye%r Esri

~ . B4116

sustrans



Appendix 5 North West
Leicestershire LCWIP
Regular Review

Contents

75 Introduction

76 Ashby Railway Station

76 Moira — Shortheath Road Crossing

78 Ashby A511 — B587 (Nottingham Road) Roundabout

79 Ashby Walking and Cycling Strategy

81 Update January 2024: Ashby Footpath, Ivanhoe Line and HS2

Introduction

This document was developed by Sustrans May 2023 as the result of feedback receieved during
consultation on the North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP).

This document aims to capture detail, data and intelligence to support the delivery of the LCWIP
where other improvements are identified and are of local importance but may not fall under the main
priorities of the LCWIP.

This document also aims to capture on going developments and changes within the district of North
West Leicestershire as well as neighbouring districts and counties that may impact, or influence
routes identified as a priority.

This document will be updated regularly from the date of formal approval by North West
Leicestershire District Council (NWLDC), in consultation with key partners and stakeholders. It will sit
as an appendix to the North West Leicestershire LCWIP.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

194 sustrans



Ashby Railway Station

Network Rail are undertaking a study into the lvanhoe Railway Line, which would recreate the rail link
between Leicester and Burton on Trent; connecting towns such as Ashby along the route. The study
is looking to confirm the line’s viability and if successful will enable Network Rail to progress to a
design stage including detailed specifications and locations of railway stations.

If the Ivanhoe Line is re-opened it seems likely that a station will be constructed in Ashby, bringing
about new transport options for people working and living in the area. The location of a station in
Ashby is still to be determined and it has been suggested that it will not use the previous site off
Station Road.

It is crucial that the North West Leicestershire LCWIP is updated on a regular basis or when a
substantial new development such as a new railway station is planned. High quality walking and
cycling routes and provision to a new station will enable multi modal transport journeys to be taken for
education, work and leisure which could reduce car trips taken. It would be advisable to keep a
watching brief on the development of the lvanhoe Line, in relation to a new station.

Referenced in LCWIP report — A-C04 high level improvements in Ashby.

Moira — Shortheath Road Crossing

Shortheath Road and Ashby Road are the main roads through Moira and provide access into Ashby
de la Zouch to the east and connections to the A444 to the west.

National Cycle Network link route 63 travels along the canal towpath over Shortheath Road. The
crossing is non signalised and would benefit from improvement. The section of towpath that crosses
Shortheath Road links the Conkers Waterside Centre to Moira Furnace, two popular visitor locations.

Shortheath Road has a 30 mile per hour speed limit in the vicinity of the crossing and there are speed
cameras in operation. Improvements to the crossing would need to address visibility issues
particularly when approaching from the Conkers Waterside Centre, increase safe waiting space and
further reduce the speed on approach to the crossing.

Image: Shortheath Road Crossing, NCN 63

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

195



Connection to Moira Furnace Museum

The section of towpath from the Shortheath Road crossing to the Moira Furnace Museum and on into
Donisthorpe would benefit from surface improvements to create a walking and cycling facility that is fit
for purpose all year round. The Moira Furnace Museum Trust are actively seeking funds to improve
the condition of the well-used towpath. The section of towpath which requires investment is
approximately 900 meters in length.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

196 sustrans



Image: Towpath from Shortheath Road Crossing to Moira Furnace Museam
) 90 B2 ¢ S - i U

Ashby A511 — B587 (Nottingham Road) Roundabout

The Ashby A511 — B587 (Nottingham Road) roundabout is located 1.5km to the east of Ashby de la
Zouch town centre. It is a key link roundabout for later access onto the A42 — M42 and the M1.

Near to the roundabout are 3 large food shops and several other large retailers. It is a key retall
location and will employ a significant amount of people locally.

Walking and cycling provision is present along the west side of the A511 on approach to the
roundabout. At the roundabout the continuation of the walking and cycling route on the A511 involves
a non-signalised crossing over 5 traffic lanes with a central island between the two traffic flows.
Improvement to this arm of the roundabout will support with ongoing travel and access to the retail
units for shopping and employment.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan SU Str ans

197



Ashby Walking and Cycling Strategy

Ashby Walking and Cycling Strategy 2022

Locations identified in the
Walking and Cycling
Strategy 2022

Referenced in the North
West Leicestershire
District Council LCWIP

Comments

Hicks Lodge Connectivity,
Creation of a safe cycle
route from Ashby Town
Centre to Hicks Lodge
Cycle Centre on Willesley
Woodside. Including access
to Hicks Lodge from the
north via a new permissive
path facilitating access from
the north side of Ashby and
Ashby Heights.

A-C02 — Links to Hicks
Lodge

Including new traffic free route
creation, a new toucan
crossing and quiet way
treatments.

Nottingham Road and to
the East, Creation of a
cycle route along
Nottingham Road
connecting eastern side of
Ashby towards Lound and
the Cloud Trall

A-CO07 — Link to boundary
from bypass roundabout —
providing an east west
route.

A safe route from east to west
required and would be well
used.

Safe Cycle Route to the
Cloud Trail Connecting the
Cloud Trail from Melbourne
Road by following the
disused railway line from
Smoile Farm to Worthington

A-CO01 — Cloud Trail
Extension

Full feasibility study required
due to number of road
crossings and landowners.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

198

sustrans




Walking improvements
between Abbotsford Road
Estate and Tesco Provide
a walkway from the estate
to the Tesco to enable
residents to walk to the
shops

Smisby Road and Hood
Park Improve existing
provision and complete the
connection.

A-C06 — North South
through the town centre

The existing shared use
provision from the A511
roundabout to the north needs
extending and improving to
ensure pavement parking is
not constraining width and
function. Side road junction
and additional crossing points
are recommended.

Town Centre
Improvements A new
crossing facility at the
bottom of Kilwardby Street.
Improvements to Market
Street, speed reduction with
appropriate traffic calming.
Improved cycle parking
provision. Increase signage.
Improvement to Brook
Street / Market Street
junction. Consideration to
moving crossings on Derby
Road and Bath Street.

A-CO7 - Link to Boundary
from bypass roundabout
through the town centre.

A-WO05 — Kilwardby Street

A-WO02 — North Street from
Brook Street roundabout to
Wood Street

A-WO03 — South Street from
Bath Street to Market
Street.

A re-design of Market Street is
recommended to give more
space to pedestrians and
cyclists and improve safety for
all. This includes continuous
surfacing and a 20mph speed
limit.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

199

sustrans




Bath Grounds and Castle
A new cycle route from
Ashby Castle to Station
Road via the Castle Field
and Bath Grounds.

Update January 2024, Ashby Footpath, Ivanhoe Line
and HS2

Ashby Footpath 089

Section 106 moneys have been secured to upgrade a Public Right of Way through Ashby De La
Zouch along part of the Ivanhoe Way as identified in Ashby Town Council’'s Cycling and Walking

Strateqy 2022.

See below exert from the strategy, if cycle routes A-C01 and C-C04, from the North West
Leicestershire LCWIP, are able to be developed in the future, consideration during detailed design
should give consideration as to how best to link with the new route along O89 once developed.

3.2 Nottingham Road and to the East. Nottingham Road. A safe cycle route is required along the line
of Nottingham Road to connect the eastern side of Ashby to the town centre and towards Lount and
the Cloud Trail (National Cycle Network route 6) in the opposite direction. This is the eastern arm of
proposed route priority 1 in the SPD. The current Nottingham Road pathways are narrow and would
not support mixed use by pedestrians and cyclists, though in some places, the grass verge is wide
and could be modified. The current situation, with faded painted cycle signs on the road itself at
sections where the road narrows due to central reservations, is considered unsafe.

The Money Hill housing development is expected to provide a good quality walking and cycle track
along footpath 089 parallel with Nottingham Road. It would seem sensible for priority route 1 to be
diverted to use this cycle track, feeding onto the Tesco retail/industrial park and/or continuing along
Featherbed Lane (O91) to the bypass (section 35a of the current SPD proposed route priority 2). This
would resolve the dangers of cycling along Nottingham Road.

However, careful consideration will be needed on feeding two-way cycle traffic onto and off the O89
route at its junction with North Street, which is a one-way road, particularly for school children using
the route to cycle to lvanhoe school, currently in the wrong direction along North Street. This problem
could be reduced by provided a direct cycle and walking entrance into the school at this point.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

200


https://www.ashbytowncouncil.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/150/2022/04/Ashby-de-la-Zouch-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-.pdf
https://www.ashbytowncouncil.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/150/2022/04/Ashby-de-la-Zouch-Cycling-and-Walking-Strategy-.pdf

Also, a designated cycle route into the rear of the school grounds directly from the Money Hill estate
is required. Currently only a pedestrian route is included in the plans.

Safe Cycle Route to Cloud Trail. If, as proposed above, footpaths O89 and 091/092 become a
proper cycle way to the A511 Ashby Bypass, then it would not require much additional work to ensure
a safe route along the bypass through to public footpath M30 on the south eastern side of the A42,
some of which is already designated as a traffic free cycle way and some as a permissive bridle way.
However, a potential problem with this section is interference from HS2 construction.

Alternatively, according to the first draft of the NWL Walking and Cycling Strategy produced by Knight,
Kavanagh & Page Ltd in 2021, a route is being “explored by a local interest group” following a
currently undesignated track along the north western side of the A42, past Lount tip. This could join
up with the SPD’s Route 35 (a and b) to avoid Nottingham Road and would have the advantage of not
being affected by HS2.

Either of the above routes could connect to the Cloud Trail from Melbourne Road by following the
disused railway line from Smoile Farm to Worthington.

Ivanhoe Line

Network Rail released an update on the Ivanhoe Line Sept 2023. They plan to create an Outline
Business Case to reopen the line between Coalville and Burton with stops at both Coalville and Ashby
De La Zouch. Where the stations will be located is not yet clear.

HS2

In October 2023 the Government announced that phase two of the planned HS2 from Birmingham to
the East Midlands and the north of England would not go ahead.

North West Leicestershire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan S u St ra ns

201



This page is intentionally left blank



€0¢

Priority

Description

High Level Improvements descriptions

High level cost
estimate

Reference

[Document title]

Cycle Route
Score

Ashby
Link to Boundary from A safe route east to west through the town centre is required and £2.32 - £2.92 million A-CO7 20
bypass roundabout would be well used by school and work commuters, as well as those
through the town centre accessing the town centre.
Like the walking recommendations, a re-design of the main section of
Market Street is recommended to give more space to pedestrians and
cyclists and improve safety for all. This includes continuous surfacing
and a 20mph speed limit.
Link to proposed station The potential re-introduction of the Ivanhoe Line could see the £615-£777,000 A-C04 19
and towards Packington number of cycling journeys to Ashby station ride as part of multi-modal
journeys. To enable these journeys it is recommended that a traffic-
free cycle route is installed along Tamworth Road, and quiet way
treatment and resurfacing of the existing bridleway is considered.
Link to Hicks Lodge Quietway treatment along Willersley Lane and improved crossing £512-601,000 A-C02 17
facilities to link to Hicks Lodge. Creation of new traffic free path.
"Cloud Trail Extending the existing Cloud Trail to connect to Ashby Town Centre. £9.161-£10.65 million. A-Co1 1
Extension® Full feasibility study is required due to number of road crossings and
landowners.
High level cost estimate used.
Link to Swadlincote The existing shared use route along the bypass is adequate, but a £781-£358,000 A-C05 1
signalised crossing at the junction with Ashby Road is recommended.
A traffic free path adjacent to the A511 from the Ashby Road
roundabout to link to the existing route onwards from Hepworth Road.
!c\lo?/\:;hcseonljctz,tfhrro();gh the The existing shared use provision from the A511 roundabout to the £781-£985,000 A-C06 1
roundabout to bypass north needs extending and improving to ensure pavement parking is
not constraining width and function.




¥0¢Z

[Document title]

The existing traffic free path that links to the Leisure centre has
recommended improvements but offers a direct route on the north
south corridor.
Side road junctions and additional crossing points are recommended.
L|st.ed as Coalville | Link to Coalville Please refer to C-C04 Route to Ashby £2.57-£3.68 million A-C03 11
priority (C-C04)
Castle Donington
1 Green way around the Creating new off-road lit airport greenway link £800-965,000 CD-C02 22
Airport/EMEG (b) Quiet way treatments to roads through EM Airport site to bypass A453
and on Hill Top/High Street (continuation of CD-C1)
Upgrading existing shared-use routes, widening to meet national
standards
2 Green way around the New off-road connection alongside the A453 £3.9-£5.3 million CD-Co1 21
Airport/EMEG (a)
Upgrading existing shared-use routes, widening to meet national
standards
Adding signalised crossing points on the route
Quiet way treatment on Hill Top/High Street to improve safety
3 Linking to Ratcliffe on Upgrading existing Dark Lane traffic free route. New off-road route £660-£795,000 CD-C05 21
Soar alongside Remembrance Way alongside upgrades to existing shared use
4 Northern link to Sawley Upgrading of existing shared use routes predominantly along £1.9-2.4 million CD-co7 16
Tamworth Road
Adopt new off-road link via London Road and upgrade of Donington
Lane
Footway widening to create off-road provision in Castle Donington
5 Linking Kings Mills Quiet way treatment and adjustments to junctions on Park Lane to £2.6-3.75 million CD-Co4 15
increase safety
Crossings added to roundabout
Quiet way treatment along the rest of Park Lane




[Document title]

S0¢

6 Strategic link to Quiet way treatments through Diseworth and Long Whatton villages £2.2-3.0 million CD-Co8 1
Loughborough
New traffic free route created between the villages.
Coalville
1 North to south through Quiet way treatment in main shopping area alongside pedestrian £468-£621,000 C-C02 27
town centre scheme, alternative quiet way alignment south.
2 North to south thr°“$h Extend and improve existing shared use provision, to meet Memorial £2.21 - £2.83 million Cc-Coe 22
town centre (Memorial
Square to A511) Square, with cycle route through the square, with widening required in
some locations.
Review signalised crossing to provide safe access to the College across
the A511.
3 East to west through the There is existing shared use provision along Ashby Road which needs £2.89 - £3.64 million c-col 20
town centre
extending to provide extended provision, and enforcement to stop
pavement parking.
A number of additional Toucan crossings and junction remodelling are
presented.
This route makes use of the high quality traffic free path through
Snibston Colliery Park.
4 Coalville to Hugglescote/ Construction of a new Greenway using disused railway. Full feasibility £1.43 - £1.75 million C-C03 19
Ellistown study and design recommended.
5 I:nk t? Town centre to Some existing shared use offer adequate provision but requires £1.07-£1.406 million. c-co7 13
ospita
widening in places.
Redesign of the A511 junction recommend toimprove provision for
cyclists and pedestrians.
6 Connection to Cloud Trail Investigate feasibility of converting the disused Leicester and £1“09 million - £1.33 ¢-C09 13
million.
Swannington Railway into a multi-user Greenway. The steep gradient
would make it unfavourable for commuting and inaccessible for some
users.




90¢

[Document title]

Section between A511 and Spring Lane pursued first due to connection

to College and evident use.

Coalville to Ashby

Route considered unlikely to be feasible — dual carriageway with safety
concerns around adjacent segregated infrastructure. See cycle audit
appendices for details. High level cost assumed on basis of creating new
traffic free route in adjacent fields, landowner consent and ecological
barriers pose risks to the project.

£2.57-£3.68 million

C-Co4

Listed as Ibstock
priority (I-CO5)

Link to Sence Valley

Please refer to |-CO5 Route 5 — Strategic link to Measham

£353-£434,000 (and cost
in M-C02).

C-C05

employment areas

Implement quiet way measures along Ashby Road in Kegworth. The
gradient of the route may not be suitable for all users.

1 Route through the town No existing provision and a road unsuitable for cycling, recommend £1.25-£1.58 million. 1-C03 20
centre construction of a new traffic free route along Melbourne Road including
additional signalised crossings.
2 Strategic link to Measham Resurfacing of bridleway through Sence Park and consideration to _£3'3|3;)§4'000 (and cost -C05 17
in M- .
lighting of the route. Traffic free link to Heather on Pisca Lane.
Please also refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to Ibstock
3 Ibstock to Ellistown and Route makes use of existing traffic free path and requires construction £658- £799,000 1-C01 16
Bardon Hill of a new traffic free path adjacent to Leicester Road and Ibstock Road.
Listed as Coalville Strategic link to Coalville Please refer to C-C03 Route 3 — Coalville to Hugglescote/Ellistown £1.43 - £1.75 million 1-C02 19
priority (C-C03)
Listed as Measham | Strategic link to Ashby Please refer to M-C02 Route 2 — Strategic route to Ibstock £263-£328,000 1-C04 18
priority (M-C02)
Kegworth
1 Link to Castle Donington Create new off-road route alongside Ashby Road £842-£1,211,500 K-C01 20




L0¢C

[Document title]

Route to A6 existing Consider improving or removing HGV access to Derby Road. £308-£390,000 K-Co4 18
shared use provision Check and rectify re-instatement faults.
Seek to formalise parking arrangements.
Seek alternative access arrangements for HGV away from residential
areas.
Consider a controlled crossing at a location to benefit most users (new
developments and park).
Reduce traffic speed through calming measures.
Review tactile paving provision.
Northern link between Use existing off-road provision travelling from Castle Donington under £202-£273,000 K-C06 16
Kegworth and Castle the Kegworth Bypass to meet Derby Road.
Donington / East Midlands | Upgrade the existing share use along Derby Road, widening by taking
Gateway space from the existing verge/carriageway and removing parking where
the off-road path meets Derby Road.
Crossing improvements at the junction with Side Ley/Derby Road on
the edge of Kegworth.
Link north using Long Lane | Survey of existing traffic speed and volume, with quiet way treatment £150-£130,000 K-C02 15
towards Long Eaton recommended throughout.
;2:‘]:5:;2:&0” Review tactile paving provision, limited scope to widen footway due to £992,000-£1.26 million. K-Co3 1
land constraints. Consider resurfacing of footways.
Link Sawley Marina with Leicestershire County Council plan to audit and cost the route. N/A K-C07 N/A
the K-CO2 route at
Lockington Quarry via
Warren Lane and Public
Bridleway/Footpath




80¢

[Document title]

1 Strategic link to Ibstock Adopt a new route through the village of Heather and add new parallel £263-£328,000 M-C02 18
crossings at either end of the village
Quiet way interventions along Swepstone Road/Main Street between
Heather and Measham.
2 Creating a link between Upgrade and extend existing infrastructure to improve the experience £1.5-£1.9 million M-C01 12
the new Jaguar Land Rover
site and Measham for cyclists
Focus on improving junctions and roundabouts including new crossings.
3 Strategic Link to Ashby Extend footways to create new shared use off-road cycling route £1.5-2.0 million M-C03 12
Install crossings on the A42 roundabout to enable safe passage for
cyclists.




60¢

Description

High level improvements

Reference

[Document title]

Walking
Route Score

1 Market Street from Derby |Consider a complete re-design of this popular high street to create a more attractive and safe A-W01 17
Road roundabout to North [environment for pedestrians, including continuous footways to slow traffic and reduce the
Street junction dominance of vehicles. Include additional seating facilities. Some advertising board clutter
reducing available width, work to minimise disruption from these.
2 North Street from Brook |Install missing side road tactile paving. Widen footway. Consider additional zebra crossing for A-W02 16
Street roundabout to school. Lighting improvements along Mill Lane Mews as direct cut through to high street.
Wood Street
3 Derby Road from Station |Install missing tactile paving. and consider re-modelling of double roundabout to provide safe A-W04 15
Street roundabout and crossing facility.
Burton Road
4 South Street from Bath Install missing tactile paving and dropped kerb throughout route. Consider pedestrian priority A-WO03 14
Street to Market Street across all car park entrances. Signage around castle entrance should be improved to avoid
collisions.
5 Kilwardby Street Review crossing provision closer to town centre across Co-op car park and roundabout, A-W05 11
consider repainting existing zebra near Beaumont Avenue.
Castle Donington ‘
1 Delvin Lane to Clapgun The area around the Spar/Nursing Home and College/Wellbeing Centre is a priority for CD-W04 20
Street improvements.
2 The Green Addition of tactile paving at crossing points and crossing provision by the school CD-W02 19
3 Bondgate Add crossing adjacent to the library and improve side road crossings along Bondgate. CD-W03 19
4 The Spittal Additional signage and path widening. Identify alternative walking routes to remove CD-wo01 16
pedestrians from the roadway on The Spittal
5 Borough Street Install missing tactile paving and consider changes to traffic movements and on-street parking. CD-WO05 16
Coalville ‘
1 Belvoir Road from Installing missing tactile paving and dropped kerbs at side road junctions. Improve crossings C-wo4 19

Memorial Tower to Avenue

Road junction

over Marlborough Square. Consider public realm scheme.




0T¢

[Document title]

junction with London Road
to Surgery

road tactile paving.

Ashby Road from Memorial| Additional crossings, priority over side roads. Signage for town centre journeys along Snibston C-wo1 17
Tower to Snibston Colliery |route.

Park

Ashburton Road from Consider additional crossing to serve co-op, review tactile paving provision, could consider C-Wo06 16
Manor Road to Central widening pavement outside school.

Road

Thornborough Road and  |Address provision around roundabout on south approach. Review tactile paving and need for Cw-07 16
Mantle Lane from additional signalised crossings.

Memorial Tower to A511

roundabout

London Road from Install missing side road tactile paving. C-wo3 15
Whitwick Road to Broom

Leys Road

High Street from Memorial | Install missing tactile paving. Consider additional zebra crossing replacing central refuge. C-w02 14
Tower to Whitwick Road  |Improve safety for pedestrians over rail crossing.

Broom Leys Road from Consider additional crossing for local shops, and traffic calming close to surgery. Review side C-Wo05 11

reallocate road space and improve public realm.

High Street Widen footway to provide improved pedestrian provision. Review side road tactile paving. I-Wo03 19

Chapel Street Review side road tactile paving. Provide crossing to High Street. 1-W02 17

Melbourne Road Could consider additional zebra crossing near Ibstock Junior School and signalised crossing on I-W05 16
Ashby Road roundabout south approach.

Central Avenue Footway width insufficient for peak school hour. Install missing tactile paving. Redesign and I-W06 16




T1¢

[Document title]

5 Leicester Road Prioritise improving crossing of Ashby road roundabout. Install tactile paving at side road I-Ww01 11
junctions. Widen footway in places. Consider crossing facility for park. Prevent pavement
parking.
6 Reform Road between Improve lighting and consider resurfacing. I-Wo04 8
High Street and Melbourne
Road
Kegworth J
1 Derby Road from Consider working with Google or others to ensure Kegworth Derby Road not used as cut K-wo1 17
Nottingham Road to High [through for A6. Hard to cross road to use Co-op or bus stop, consider signalised crossing.
Street
2 Side Ley Consider improving or removing HGV access to Derby Road. K-wo04 16
Check and rectify re-instatement faults.
Seek to formalise parking arrangements.
Seek alternative access arrangements for HGV away from residential areas.
Consider a controlled crossing at a location to benefit most users (new developments and
park).
Reduce traffic speed through calming measures.
Install missing tactile paving provision.
3 High Street Review scores at school drop-off and pick-up. K-W02 14
Consider if crossing required at school location to serve school and bus stops.
Assess locations that require additional tactile paving.
4 Mill Lane Check and rectify re-instatement faults. Install missing tactile paving provision. Improve K-WO05 12
lighting and maintenance along footpath adjacent to village hall as well used, could resurface.
5 Nottingham Road Install missing tactile paving, limited scope to widen footway due to land constraints. Consider K-Wo03 8
resurfacing of footways.
1 High Street north Review side road tactile paving. Widen footway. Unpleasant experience when traffic volume M-W02 22
high.
2 High Street south Consider widening footway on one side of carriageway to provide better quality provision. M-W01 19
Install missing side road tactile paving.




(AN

Priority improvement would be toucan crossing to leisure centre and library site.

[Document title]

Bosworth Road

Control pavement parking. Install tactile paving around school entrances and consider surfacing
treatment to slow traffic and provide crossing facility.

M-W03

17




Agenda Item 7.
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

i o,
CABINET — TUESDAY 27 FEBRUARY 2024 :’00

o|e°
North West
Leicestershire

Title of Report COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN — PERFORMANCE REPORT -
QUARTER 3 2023/24

Presented by Councillor Keith Merrie MBE

Background Papers Council Delivery Plan Public Report: Yes
Council meeting held on 14
November 2023 Key Decision: Yes

Financial Implications No direct financial implications arising from this report.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications None arising from the report.

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate The Council Delivery plan sets out the priorities for the
Implications Council for a five-year period so has significant corporate
and staffing implications.

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Purpose of Report To report the performance of the Council during the first
measurable quarter of the new Council Delivery Plan as
agreed by full Council in November 2023

Reason for Decision To make members aware of the early progress of the plan.

Recommendations THAT CABINET CONSIDERS THE MONITORING REPORT
AND HIGHLIGHTS THE ELEMENTS MAKING POSITIVE
PROGRESS AND THOSE WHERE THERE IS A NEED FOR
EARLY INTERVENTION.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council prepared a new Council Delivery Plan during late 2023, and the Plan is scheduled
to cover the lifetime of the Council administration for the period 2023/24 until a year beyond the next
election in May 2027 (to ensure continuity in the aftermath of that election and to allow time for a
new Plan to be developed). The Plan was developed with inputs from the Corporate Scrutiny
Committee and the opposition groups and was agreed by Council at its meeting on the 14 November
2023.

1.2 The Plan will be monitored in relation to the targets and a suite of performance indicators on a
quarterly basis in line with the performance management framework. Quarterly reports will be
submitted to Cabinet, and the outcomes of theg&reports will subsequently be considered with


https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s42321/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%20Council%20Report.pdf
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s42321/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%20Council%20Report.pdf
https://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s42321/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%20Council%20Report.pdf

Corporate Scrutiny Committee. They will also be used to brief portfolio holders and opposition
member briefings on progress towards delivery of the CDP. Further information on the progress of
the set of plans that sit below the Council Delivery Plan, the directorate plans, are monitored at
officer level by the Council’s Corporate Leadership Team.

1.3 This monitoring report is the first of the reports to Members in respect of the new Plan, The
Council is at the first stage of the Plan monitoring process, and while the Plan was in development
during the quarter, it was not adopted by Council until part way into the quarter. Accordingly, the
reporting progress is inevitably going to be limited at this point in time. The reporting period for this
report runs from 1 October 2023 to 31 December 2023.

2.0 PERFORMANCE REPORT

2.1 Executive Summary — the Council Delivery Plan contains four key priority areas — notably “A
Well-Run Council, Clean and Green, Housing and Communities and Planning and Regeneration.”

The table below shows the performance in quarter 3 overall against each of the four priority areas.
The table shows the priorities that have been completed, those that were within a 5% variance of
being completed, those that were not completed at all and those that were not applicable (usually
due to no data being available, because they are scheduled for completion at a later stage of the
plan.)

Qur Priorities

50.00% 0 25.00%

A well run council

Clean and Green

Housing and Communities 16.67% O 33.33%

Planning and Regeneration 83.30%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

B Complete 5% Variance B Not Complete N/A

The table shows that a third of the “Well run Council” priorities were achieved during the quarter
with a further third within the 5% variance and a final third not completed. In the other priorities,
significant proportions are Not applicable at this stage of the plan, but despite the early position in
the plan’s lifecycle, significant percentages were either completed or within the 5% variance.

2.2 The following four tables show the more detailed breakdown of the indicators as they relate to
each of the priority areas using the same assessment scale in relation to percentage completed
etc. For each of the priority areas more information is provided in the later stages of the report
together with detailed commentary on the progress.

214



Planning and regeneration

We will support towns, villages and communities
across the district to improve for people and...

We will create the right environment in Coalville for
people and businesses to thrive.

We will effectively manage unauthorised
development.

We will secure high quality design in new
developments.

We will provide an effective planning service to our
communities.

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

H Complete ™ 5% Variance M Not Complete mN/A

Housing and Communities

Our two major leisure centres in Ashby and Whitwick
and Coalville provide good services to our...

Our food businesses meet food safety standards

Our private rental tenants across the district are able
to live safely in their homes

We will deliver an excellent repairs’ service

We will provide a high quality housing service to our
tenants

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

B Complete m5% Variance B NotComplete mN/A

215



Clean and Green

We will have produced a Tree Management Strategy

0,
to better manage our tree stock LS

o

We will increase the biodiversity of our District

We will aim to be carbon neutral as a Council by
2030, and as a district by 2050

We will have reviewed our waste service so that it is
easy for the public to use and our recycling 0 100%
performance will be improved

o

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

H Complete 5% Variance ® Not Complete mN/A

A well-run Council

We will live within our financial means

We will provide value for money services

Our customers are at the heart of
everything we do

m Complete 5% Variance H Not Complete mN/A
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

2.3  The areas of key progress in the quarter (drawn from the detailed information in the tables
below) are detailed in this section.

2.3.1 There has been significant improvement in the provision of a timely response to Customer
Complaints from 58% in Quarter 2 to 85% in Quarter 3. This has been largely due to an
ongoing focus from Senior Management, the feedback officer, and Team Managers to
ensure that complaints are treated as a priority.

2.3.2 Inrelation to ensuring the safety of private tenants, 100% of landlords were contacted
within the specified time-period within the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standard (MEES)
policy for non-compliance. Given that this is a new measure, this is a significant
achievement.

216



2.3.3 80.8% (653 of 808) of food establishments have very good (hygiene rating 5) hygiene
standards.

2.3.4 Quest undertook an assessment in June 2023 of Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre and
the Centre received a classification of ‘Excellent’.

2.3.5 The Statutory guidance in respect of determining planning applications was exceeded in
guarter three as illustrated by the following statistics: -

100% of Major applications were determined within 13 weeks
71.4 % of Minor Applications were determined within 8 weeks
85.3% of Other applications were determined within 8 weeks

2.4 The areas where targets have not been met at this stage of the Plan and the remedial actions
being taking to address this are: -

2.4.1 The only KPI with a RAG rating of red is that pertaining to the provision of value for money-
the external audit sign off of the 2021-22 Statement of Accounts is yet to be completed.
Action being taken to address this is that this will be completed for consideration/approval
by Audit and Governance Committee on 13 March 2024. Details of the Government’s
decision regarding the statutory deadlines are awaited at which point auditors will provide
as much assurance as possible for those outstanding years. These deadlines may lead to
gualifications and disclaimers. It is also worth noting that of 467 audited bodies, only 12% of
audited bodies had completed the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts by the publishing date.
This illustrates how this remains a national problem not unique to this Council, but
everything is being done in order to progress.

2.4.2 There is acknowledgement that the Housing Repairs service is in need of improvement. A
service improvement plan has been developed which has been considered by both a
Corporate Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet, contractors are being procured to assist the
Council and there has been a focus on recruitment to key vacant posts within the service to
address this.

2.4.3 An initial draft of the Tree Management Strategy is in place detailing tree/hedgerow
management considerations including Council/partnership tree planting approaches, as well
as targets to help support the Council’s Zero Carbon targets. However, due to resource and
procurement pressures, work to catalogue and risk assess the trees within the Housing
Portfolio is yet to commence. Work has been completed on safety works to trees in other
areas of the Council’s tree portfolio. The work on the Housing portfolio is due to commence
in the next financial year, when more resources are on board.

217



3.0
3.1

information on progress. (Click on links for more background information).

Set out below is a summary of the headline progress against each Council Delivery Plan
target. Links are provided to more detailed information on each indicator to explain
progress being made.

218



Priority | KPI Key Aim Q3 Target Commentary Head of | RAG
reference Progress Service rating

1 We will adopt | Draft Undertake local | Site allocations to | Chris
a local plan Policies plan consultation | be considered in Elston
by 2026 agreed by | (Reg 18) (Q4 | January 2024 with

Local Plan | 23/24) aview to
Committee consultation
in October | 2024/5 February/March
2023. Pre-submission 2024
consultation (Reg
19)
Submission  of
local plan and
examination.

2 We will deal Majors: Major- At least The team is Dylan
with your 100% 60% of exceeding the set | Jones
planning applications performance
applications determined targets. This is due
for major, within 13 to effective
minor and weeks. management
other Minors: methods that are in
developments | 71.4% Minor- At least place to ensure
by 65% of that the majority of
consistently applications cases are
meeting and determined determined by the
exceeding the within 8 weeks. Team with the

e 1 government’s | Others: statutory time
'?* targets of 85.3% Other- At least frame or to one
' 60%, 65% 80% of agreed with the
and 80% applications applicant.
respectively. determined
within 8 weeks.
3 We will have 2023-4 Work continues on | Chris

c developed a Develop a new | the preparation of | Elston
.g new local Design Guide for | the Good Design
o design guide North West | Guide for North
e and new Leicestershire West
s developments adopting current | Leicestershire with
g will comply best practice in | consultation on the
2 with it. accordance with | document
; the Governments | expected in Q4
£ National design | 2023/24.
o

guide.

Undertake public
consultation on
the new Design
Guide for North
West
Leicestershire.

219


https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYBYwNrrF9xLv4yF5JFjg3oBSbtSGycvpAfw_tZF_rXrJQ?e=7XaOM4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYBYwNrrF9xLv4yF5JFjg3oBSbtSGycvpAfw_tZF_rXrJQ?e=7XaOM4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYBYwNrrF9xLv4yF5JFjg3oBSbtSGycvpAfw_tZF_rXrJQ?e=7XaOM4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWsTweE6rnRAv7ttKA6fjSsBpOn97rd02xkByuZe9-fJAw?e=EPBxNz
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZEre--6631Ov1Bc77mrsUcBRldbRhJyTobXdOVAr0Rumg?e=nmi2do

2024/5

Adopt the new
design guide for
North West
Leicestershire.

New
development
complies with the
requirements of
the adopted
design guide.

We will N/A Work begins in The Dylan
effectively 2024/5. commencement Jones
manage Adopt a new period for this
unauthorised local measure has not
development. enforcement started yet,

plan by the end therefore there is

of Q2 24/25. nothing to report at

Monitor and present.

measure

response times

against the

targets set out in

the adopted

Local

Enforcement

Plan and report

biannually to

Planning

Committee in Q3

and 4 24/25.
We will have Quarterly A Progress Paul
delivered our progress Statement has Wheatley
ambitious statement plus been produced for
Coalville an additional all projects
Regeneration Annual Identified in the
Framework. Framework Coalville

review in Q4. Regeneration

Framework

(including the 6
projects being led
by NWLDC).

A Review and
Refresh of the
Coalville
Regeneration
Framework
document has
commenced.

220



https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYsr6LWxhvFBrBlRxhM6RtsBki202Cnc6PkKivw9VJ7rwg?e=5up8fb
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYsr6LWxhvFBrBlRxhM6RtsBki202Cnc6PkKivw9VJ7rwg?e=5up8fb
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYsr6LWxhvFBrBlRxhM6RtsBki202Cnc6PkKivw9VJ7rwg?e=5up8fb
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYsr6LWxhvFBrBlRxhM6RtsBki202Cnc6PkKivw9VJ7rwg?e=5up8fb
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYsr6LWxhvFBrBlRxhM6RtsBki202Cnc6PkKivw9VJ7rwg?e=5up8fb
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EciunCjueaNJgJPkd8WjHlsB0YSjWmNLAh8Vgm-ME5f0kQ?e=uW7bz4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EciunCjueaNJgJPkd8WjHlsB0YSjWmNLAh8Vgm-ME5f0kQ?e=uW7bz4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EciunCjueaNJgJPkd8WjHlsB0YSjWmNLAh8Vgm-ME5f0kQ?e=uW7bz4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EciunCjueaNJgJPkd8WjHlsB0YSjWmNLAh8Vgm-ME5f0kQ?e=uW7bz4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EciunCjueaNJgJPkd8WjHlsB0YSjWmNLAh8Vgm-ME5f0kQ?e=uW7bz4
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EciunCjueaNJgJPkd8WjHlsB0YSjWmNLAh8Vgm-ME5f0kQ?e=uW7bz4

We will have | N/A Work begins in We have Paul
developed a Q4 with the established a Wheatley
regeneration production of the | project team to
framework NWL develop the
and will be on Regeneration Districtwide
the way to Framework. Regeneration
supporting Framework during
thriving Q4 of 2023/24.
towns,
villages and
communities
across the
district.
We will 2023/4 First data | Indicative Jane
provide a publication. perception scores | Rochelle
high-quality are available via
housing Housemark but
service to our Regulator has
tenants. indicated it will be
late summer early
autumn 2024
before
benchmarking data
from across the
c sector will be
available and
published.
We will 2023/4 First data | As above. In Jane
deliver an publication. advance of having | Rochelle
excellent the data, it is
repairs’ acknowledged that
service. the service is in
@ need of
= improvement and
S have a service
£ improvement plan
§ and recruitment
o drive in place.
E Our Private | 100% 100% of 100% landlords in | Paul
g tenants Landlords Q3 were contacted | Sanders
£ across the contacted within | within the target
a district are the specified time period.
L able to live time-period

safely in their
homes.

within the MEES
policy for non-
compliance.

Creation of a
Private Sector
Housing Charter.

This is a target that
will be reported
annually in quarter
four.

221



https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EY6IJiL0qPlFmrNM_bbwOdoBHkVNh6I-_eWCbuvqbHkRfQ?e=TjQqSI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZhNcQ7EpGZJguh2MXBm5CcBRSuXBl1E18MPSNvYFCSdmA?e=KIVgaj
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZhNcQ7EpGZJguh2MXBm5CcBRSuXBl1E18MPSNvYFCSdmA?e=KIVgaj
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZhNcQ7EpGZJguh2MXBm5CcBRSuXBl1E18MPSNvYFCSdmA?e=KIVgaj
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZhNcQ7EpGZJguh2MXBm5CcBRSuXBl1E18MPSNvYFCSdmA?e=KIVgaj
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZhNcQ7EpGZJguh2MXBm5CcBRSuXBl1E18MPSNvYFCSdmA?e=KIVgaj
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZhNcQ7EpGZJguh2MXBm5CcBRSuXBl1E18MPSNvYFCSdmA?e=KIVgaj
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EQpom5su9FpGqkdBjzMSrTUB2ShQJdQp77oUhWP-2DZYMQ?e=R4f7pS
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EQpom5su9FpGqkdBjzMSrTUB2ShQJdQp77oUhWP-2DZYMQ?e=R4f7pS
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EQpom5su9FpGqkdBjzMSrTUB2ShQJdQp77oUhWP-2DZYMQ?e=R4f7pS
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EQpom5su9FpGqkdBjzMSrTUB2ShQJdQp77oUhWP-2DZYMQ?e=R4f7pS
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EQpom5su9FpGqkdBjzMSrTUB2ShQJdQp77oUhWP-2DZYMQ?e=R4f7pS
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EZLXIzwDXSZNoa3AxiokJDgB06ug4p3WUGvHMtJ8bxIoKg?e=seChfn

10 Our food 80.8% 2023/24 80% of | 80.8% (653 of 808) | Paul
businesses food businesses | of food Sanders
meet food having a hygiene | establishments
safety rating of 5 (very | have very good
standards. good). (hygiene rating 5)

hygiene standards.

11 Our two Excellent/ | The leisure Quest is the Paul
major leisure | Very Good | centres will be national Sport Sanders
centres in assessed England
Ashby and independently recommended
Whitwick and against a independent
Coalville national standard | assessment to
provide good and achieve a assess levels of
services to ‘good’ or higher | customer service in
our rating. (This will leisure centres. In
communities. be provided June 2023

annually in Q3). | Whitwick and

Coalville Leisure
Centre had a full
assessment and
was classed as
‘Excellent’.
Ashby Leisure
Centre and Lido
had a full
assessment in May
2022 when it was
classed as ‘Very
Good'.
Consequently, a
Direction of Travel
Review was
undertaken in May
2023 where the
assessment of
‘Very Good’ was
upheld.

We will have June 2023 external | Paul

reviewed our consultants Sanders

waste
service so
that it is
easy for the
public to
use, and our
recycling
performance
will be
improved.

Eunomia were
appointed to
complete an
assessment of the
Council’s waste
services. Work has
continued
throughout the
year in progressing
the review. Date for
submission to
Scrutiny is April

222



https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ea3ozrpC7TdBg3aOeWgoJLgB15Jl2ui-292i8Z1SiGjnOQ?e=Kq4yaI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ea3ozrpC7TdBg3aOeWgoJLgB15Jl2ui-292i8Z1SiGjnOQ?e=Kq4yaI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ea3ozrpC7TdBg3aOeWgoJLgB15Jl2ui-292i8Z1SiGjnOQ?e=Kq4yaI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ea3ozrpC7TdBg3aOeWgoJLgB15Jl2ui-292i8Z1SiGjnOQ?e=Kq4yaI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ea3ozrpC7TdBg3aOeWgoJLgB15Jl2ui-292i8Z1SiGjnOQ?e=Kq4yaI
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EcGxnhCfPTpKgRCBj9FTicgBw6K5BkcTY6BPJSWUG92nGQ?e=KFCst3
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EX4VA1eyzutBpjySX3X4znEBCwUvpI4zGcWWX4xCEFkASQ?e=xfqjmh

2024 with full
presentation to
Cabinet within May
2024.

We will aim Key progress to Paul
to be carbon date in year Sanders
neutral as a includes electric
Council by vehicle
2030, and as deployment, EV
a district by charging, LED
2050. installations, bulb
and tree planting
and a favourable
Climate
Emergency
Scoring. Plans for
our buildings are a
key priority along
with understanding
the costs involved
of achieving net
Zero.
We will N/A The Dylan
increase the commencement Jones
biodiversity date for
of our Biodiversity Net
District. gain has yet to be
set by the
Government so
there is nothing to
report at this stage.
It is expected that
BNG for Major
applications will be
enacted at some
point in January
2024 and for minor
applications at
some point in April
2024.
We will have | Ongoing An initial draft is in | Paul
produced a place detailing Sanders
Tree tree/hedgerow
Management management
Strateqy to considerations
better including
manage our Council/partnership
tree stock. tree planting

approaches, as
well as targets to
help support the
Council’s Zero
Carbon targets
However, due to
resource and
procurement
pressures, work to
catalogue and risk

223



https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EWJ489cyUgNLiXPEaTnWcgIBVQVJtkzK7PBD03_EHGCdjg?e=K25aMu
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EUTtN7fSEvpOhppNTmoJ3-cBOfyhSN833lg-ZV9H-oKf5w?e=psS2iQ
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EUTtN7fSEvpOhppNTmoJ3-cBOfyhSN833lg-ZV9H-oKf5w?e=psS2iQ
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EUTtN7fSEvpOhppNTmoJ3-cBOfyhSN833lg-ZV9H-oKf5w?e=psS2iQ
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EUTtN7fSEvpOhppNTmoJ3-cBOfyhSN833lg-ZV9H-oKf5w?e=psS2iQ
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EUTtN7fSEvpOhppNTmoJ3-cBOfyhSN833lg-ZV9H-oKf5w?e=psS2iQ
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EV3mBDs5SwJCuWwtPk6Tz-UBtOJWqgjCQTlQcI1IrJdwKA?e=TnEADP

assess the trees
within the Housing
Portfolio is yet to
commence. It is
anticipated this will
be picked up in the
new financial year
2024/5 once
resources are on
board.

16 Our 85% 2023-4 70% of An ongoing focus
customers Complaints from the feedback
are at the responded to on | officer and Team
heart of time by end of manager to ensure
everything we year. that complaints are
do. treated as a priority
and within
timescale
continues.
17 We will 2021/22 Unqualified Will submit to Audit | Anna
provide value | Statement | Opinion to be and Governance Crouch
for money of provided. Committee on 13
services. Accounts March 2024.
not Report to Council
completed. meeting on 22
February 2024 to
ol explain situation.
'.' 18 We live within Zero funding £252k deficit Anna
our means gap. forecast for Crouch
2023/24.

A well-run Council.

Balanced budget
proposed for
2024/25. Funding
gap reduced as a
result of budget
options proposed
for 2024/25
budget.

Policies and other considerations, as appropriate

Council Priorities:

This report measures progress against all of the new
Council priorities

Policy Considerations:

Council Delivery Plan

Safeguarding:

No direct considerations

Equalities/Diversity:

No direct considerations, the Plan impacts across all of
the district’'s communities.

Customer Impact:

The plan seeks to improve customer impacts and
interactions with our many customers. An indicator
around customer response times is included.

Economic and Social Impact:

The plan seeks to improve the economic and social
impact of the Council’s activities in the district.

224


https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EaieWUtBBjpHodzZD7fwR8oB-is_ORm1jLvi1vAN2K2u8g?e=PDOkDG
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EaieWUtBBjpHodzZD7fwR8oB-is_ORm1jLvi1vAN2K2u8g?e=PDOkDG
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EaieWUtBBjpHodzZD7fwR8oB-is_ORm1jLvi1vAN2K2u8g?e=PDOkDG
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EaieWUtBBjpHodzZD7fwR8oB-is_ORm1jLvi1vAN2K2u8g?e=PDOkDG
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EaieWUtBBjpHodzZD7fwR8oB-is_ORm1jLvi1vAN2K2u8g?e=PDOkDG
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EaieWUtBBjpHodzZD7fwR8oB-is_ORm1jLvi1vAN2K2u8g?e=PDOkDG
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ec1-U2eKltNGgyKQwVX7k0sBaNBGCcdxuR1KqIgYZESciw?e=LZe6F0
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ec1-U2eKltNGgyKQwVX7k0sBaNBGCcdxuR1KqIgYZESciw?e=LZe6F0
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ec1-U2eKltNGgyKQwVX7k0sBaNBGCcdxuR1KqIgYZESciw?e=LZe6F0
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/Ec1-U2eKltNGgyKQwVX7k0sBaNBGCcdxuR1KqIgYZESciw?e=LZe6F0
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYEIYHNNLd1Nonixb0QLnvoBnN61v4mtWHOD88kUe8wkBw?e=WL7fRQ
https://nwleicestershire-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/laura_staveley_nwleicestershire_gov_uk/EYEIYHNNLd1Nonixb0QLnvoBnN61v4mtWHOD88kUe8wkBw?e=WL7fRQ

Environment, Climate Change and Zero
Carbon:

The plan contains the Council’'s commitments to a
clean, green and zero carbon district.

Consultation/Community/Tenant
Engagement:

No current or planned consultations.

Risks:

Consideration has been given to the corporate risk
register when compiling the plan.

Officer Contact

Mike Murphy
Head of HR and OD
Mike.murphy@nwileicestershire.gov.uk

Allison Thomas
Chief Executive
Allison.thomas@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

225




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8.

0’0‘0
)
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL ,Oo o
North West
CABINET — TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 Le | Ce Ste rS h | re

Title of Report INVESTMENT PROPERTY LEASEHOLD DISPOSALS

Presented by Councillor Andrew Woodman
Housing, Property and Customer Services Portfolio Holder

PH Briefed: yes

Background Papers N/A Public Report: Yes

Key Decision: Yes

Financial Implications Leasing out the Council’s investment properties provides an
income to the Council’s general fund.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications The Council’s constitution requires all leases where the total
income over the life of the tenancy is more than £30,000 to
be approved by Cabinet.

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate None
Implications

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Purpose of Report To seek Cabinet approval for the letting of Council-owned
commercial properties in accordance with Section G2, 8.4 of
the Constitution.

Reason for Decision To enable the letting of Council-owned commercial properties
to proceed and rental income to be generated.

Recommendations THAT CABINET APPROVES THE GRANT OF THE
LEASES DETAILED IN TABLE 2.4.

1.0 BACKGROUND

The Council has a portfolio of investment properties that are rented out on a commercial basis
to provide an income. The Council’'s Property Services Team manages this portfolio and is
responsible for negotiating lease terms with prospective tenants. The current Constitution
(following its recent revision) only provides authority to officers to grant leases where the total
rental value does not exceed £30,000 over the life of the lease. Where the value of the rental
stream over the life of the tenancy exceeds £30,000, Cabinet has reserved the power to
approve the lease to itself.

227



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

CURRENT APPLICATIONS

Cabinet approval to lease units 7 and 9 at The Courtyard Coalville was granted on 24
October 2023 but the lease has not yet been signed. The company has been
reconsidering whether the premises are big enough for their needs. In the meantime, unit
11 (adjacent to units 7 and 9) has become vacant and the company proposing to lease
units 7 and 9 has enquired about leasing this space as well.

The additional rent for unit 11 over the term of the proposed lease will exceed £30,000
and therefore Cabinet approval of the letting is required. The letting is proposed to be
carried out using the Council’s standard lease terms (prepared by Legal Services) and at
a negotiated rent which recognises the total amount of floorspace the company proposes
to rent. Details of the proposed additional letting are set out in table 2.4 below.

In addition to the above, an application is currently being processed for unit 14 Market
Street, Coalville where the total rental value for the term will exceed £30,000. The letting
is proposed to be carried out using the Council’s standard lease terms (prepared by
Legal Services) and at market rent (as determined by the Council’s valuer).

Table 2.4

Property Lease Total rent for the term of

Term the lease (subject to rent
reviews)

Unit 11 The Courtyard, Stenson Road, Coalville, | 6 years £119,361

Leics. LE67 4JP

Unit 14, Market Street, Coalville, LE67 3DX 6 years £31,620

3.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Should the above leases not proceed, the Council will not generate income, the premises will
remain vacant and additional holding costs will be incurred. In addition, the previously agreed
application for units 7 and 9 The Courtyard, generating an income of £112,104 over the term
of the lease is unlikely to proceed.

4.0

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Cabinet agrees to the grant of the leases set out in table 2.4 of the
report.

Policies and other considerations, as appropriate

Council Priorities: A Well Run Council

Planning and Regeneration

Policy Considerations: Council Constitution — existing limits to delegated
powers.
Safeguarding: N/A

228




Equalities/Diversity:

N/A

Customer Impact:

N/A

Economic and Social Impact:

Enable businesses to take up premises within the
Council’s estate.

Environment, Climate Change and | N/A
Zero Carbon:
Consultation/Community/Tenant N/A

Engagement:

Risks:

When granting leases, the Council needs to
consider whether it is achieving best value in terms
of rent achieved. To manage this risk the lettings
recommended are based on market rent and
contain appropriate provisions for review of the rent
during the term.

Officer Contact

Paul Wheatley
Head of Property and Economic Regeneration
paul.wheatley@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

229



mailto:paul.wheatley@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4. Minutes
	5. Community Lottery Scheme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	6. NWL Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan and Strategy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	7. Performance Monitoring Report
	8. Investment Property Leasehold Disposals

